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203 set odu ion record of ibm llion ounces of silver and 1491800 ounces ot gold

ur prov
rd probable sliver ieral reserves by 2% to record 323 mdhon ounces of silver

ar ide potivc thus onto expand our La Colorada mine one of our most profitable operations

Ir ar dramat tic tel pr cc dechnes we reduced our cash costsW by 10% to $10.81 per ounce

ilve net of by oduct edIts we po ted Industry leading Alkn Sustamlng Cost per Stlver Ounce

ol .1 Al CSOS of 33 net of by product credIts and we maIntaIned our lndustryleading cash

vI 2ei oaylng tota million to our shart holders Our achtevements attest to our operat onil

kr our ir anclal tr ngth and the compelhng cash returns we offer our shareholders
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Silver million ounces

Gold ounces

Zinc toiines

Lead tonnes

opper tonnes

Average price per silver ounce 05$ London fix

Average price per gok ounce 05$ London fix

cN IA
cc

Cult

Net loss/earnings

Adjusted loss/earnings

Mine operating earning151

Net cash generated frcm operating activites

Dividends paid

Share repurchasing program

Cash and short term investments at December 31

26

149800

42400

13500

5500

$2379

$1411

$4499

$495

$1a1s

$1196

$798

$6.7

$422

25

112300

36800

12300

4200

$31 15

$I66G

$184

$166.8

$3039

$193

$24.9

$41.7

$541.3
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Common shares outstanding at December 31 millIon 191 151.8

Employees and contractors at December31
7339 8327



ii rn ican Si ye cleb cs ts 2O anniversary this year

ilvsr iii ring om any When we began our journey in

394 ru rnssror wa to corns ths vc rids biggest and

hr rir iary srlvs.r nining ompany ar to deliver our

ehc lers the ereat st possible levsrage to hig icr silver

icr was bold iuission in 1994 since our shares

rs trading at ily 10 and we had assets1 But when

vs nn ru ice bjective we wers rewarded with

trcm ous support lty trim our early shartholders

hs allow to na ch forward along an unwavering

th tcwards ur goal

oday Arne ican lver as growr to become th

wo Id ond largest primary silver nir ing co npvny

bc nd eat Mexican silver co npany Fresnillo whose

rrtion ave beer productior for na iy
decades this

ash vei iert has happs nod with the riejicatior and hard

work of thousands of pcopl throughout the Arne icas not

st of who in Ii dc he over 300 individuals who today

gun err oloymer on Par American Silver at our peratrons

Ir iist atior office rn sui you an imagir my

rr de aid pleisu eat hieverne ts asa eatt.am ill

wo rgto coismoi purpose aid also with the support

of ii rnriunitres around our operations the governments

the in es whe we work id arge number of

oporting mpnie and individuals who work with us

daily as contractors suppliers and consultants lo each of

these groups
and individuals extend my appreciation With

our grow ng silver production our s.normous silver reserves

and resources and our wonderful team look forward with

optimism to tF future and to achieving our rnision of

becoming the worlds pre eminent primary silver producer

he year 2013 was really year of two halvs Tue first half

was tough the silver price dropped sha ply from $30 87

per ounce on January 1st to $18 61 per oun on June 27

along with similar sharp decline in the price of our most

important by product metal gold This resulted in significant

revenue declines at all of our operations and serious

increases in our cash costs of production The second half

was better however Beginning in May we mbarked on

round ol naor cost reductions arid focussd productivity

improvements throughout the coripany his was hmd and

difficult task hut necessary It resulted in greatly improved

production and financial results which began in the third

quarter and continued in the fourth quarter of 2013 sxpect

we will continue to see these positive results durir 2014

Pan American Silver now has one of the best balance sheets

in the mining ndustry we ended the year with cash and

short term investments of $423 mi lion wo king capital

of $689 millro and long term debt cnly 540 million In



addition our shareholders enjoy receiving one of the highest

dividends in the precious metals industry at our April third

slare price of $13.17 our dividend of $0.50 per share on an

annual basis yields about 3.8 percent Our Board of Directors

is assiduous in its dedication to preserving this dividend in

gcod times and bad Even though current silver prices remain

allenging expect Pan American Silver will continue to

tintain its strong balance sheet and dividend record

During 2013 operations remained rteady and on budget

at Manantial Espejo in Argentina San Vicente in Bolivia

Morococha and Huaron in Peru and Alamo Dorado in Mexico

The most exciting developments du ing the year were at our

La Colorada and Dolores mines in Vexico At La Colorada

the spectacular exploration discoveries over the last few

years resulted in our decision late iii 2013 to expand the

mi ics production from about 4.6 million ounces annually

to an estimated 7.7 million ounces ly 2018 after we invest

approx mately $80 million This is especially pleasing since we

began operating the mine in 2001 with less than one year of

reserves Not only have reserves inc eased profoundly since

then believe we will continue to make new discoveries in

the near future that will allow the mine to further extend its

life and add additional value to our company At the Dolores

mine we made major efforts ii 2013 to add leach capacity to

the operation in order to improve profitability We continue

to review pulp agglomeration project that would improve

recoveries and enhance value and hope to make goahead
decision on this project during 2014

remain hopeful that we will be able Sn advance our

great Navidad silver project in Argentina during 2014 Our

efforts during 2012 and 2013 to advance the project were

frustrated by political events particularly in the province

of Chubut where the deposit is located However there

are clear indications that the situation in Chubut and in

Argentina is improving and becoming more favourable for

the development of Navidad in the near future Navidad

holds silver resources of more than 750 million ounces and

could result in annual production of over 20 million ounces of

silver which would be huge economic benefit to Chubut to

Argentina to our shareholders and to the local communities

around the deposit

expect Pan American Silver will have another record year of

silver production in 2014 and that we will continue to deliver

value to our owners and those around our operations our

communities regional and national governments suppliers

and employees thank you all for your efforts during 2013

and your efforts to come in 2014



it cpanie cc typically va ed on their mine quality

to ty id In igevity of heir rest vs and rasuurces

it owtl pro pe and their financi il performance

cr is no ouesti tat th se are vital elements it

id standing oc wort futur prospects but behevrr

iu cost valuable isset ou plc and want to start

ani ng every ou employee their families and

ou rot tracto Ic the eytraordrnary efforts in 2013 Thanks

their tori ire and

dedrcaton Par America

Silver quickly adjusted

tc dramatically different

prices by reed brating

nd refocusing our

business This allowed

to port ancth

ord yea
for silver

and gold production

hi simultar cously

significantly ret uring

our costs thereby

tre rgthenr ig our

apar id eg inrr ability to generate profr for

shot holders iti ued II being for our local

iui ti fbi an tact mg am hievement worthy of

20 wic on of oui nus cl allenging are it startrd out

arc ilisimig good iatal pr cc id strong margrrs

tit dly det rota ed vet tur ned from uvr 28 per

in mm ant $L late June while gold our

scond cost mportar pr duct startad the or at almost

100 ocr ounoc onl to low of $1192 these

od red uipredictc ble drops put nu it dustry and us on

lrt and proc ted much like ii 20 8to rwevaluate

rt term busir ess plot ii order to adapt to the new

ral ty flower ietal

Jowever ilike 2008 thi 11 tie we re in murh stronger

ancral position wf ich allo ved us to systematically and

ogrc ally rv ew II rut sun ope at on looki ig for costs

vi igs ccli iced produ lv and tu adjust our timing

plans without omisi ig ou onger term ability to

opim ou err aral ceources slow our growth prospects

II roulr rat wurk it it vat on and scipline we revitalized

bus ness an dras cally
edu ed our osts in two short

quarters We achieved this by cutting exploration and capital

spending educing companywide employment levels by

13% or 000 jobs cancelling discretionary expenses and in

particular by adjusting our mining ilans at our higheocost

iimnes in Peru

Those actions proved highly effective and in the third quarter

if 1013 cash costs were down 25% from the previous yea

and dowr 14% from the second quarter At the same time

our silver and gold production actually increased 8% and

39% resaectivly from the second quarter Perhaps as

importantly the production gains and cost rrductions we

achieved were sustained throughout the fourth quarter and

ontinue well into 1014

With our third quarter resuts we also published for the

first time netric that have internally followed for years

All in Sustai iing Costs per Sr vet Ounce Sold or AISCSOS

AISCSOS measures our ability to generate cash by considering

every element required to run our business including

general and adrrrnistrative expenses exploration costs

and sustaining capital which gives clearer picture of our

true earnings potertial at different silver pries What was

particularly gratifying for me was demonstrating that our eel

cost of mm
rig

each silver ounce is in the lowest quartile in

our sectc which is in contrast to the view of scm who see

Parr American Silver as hrghcost producer In the fourth

or.arter last yrour AISCSOS wars ci 1.03 per ounce arid

in 2014 we are forecasting $11.00 to $18 00 per ounce We

remain extremely competitive at current silver prices

In short we are more productive

and better able to utilize our financial

personnel and mineral resources

which translated into record silver

and gold oroduction lower costs arid

trerriendous exploration success In

2013 our exploration prograrrs
still

delivered another year of mineral

reserve growth even assurrring lower

long term tidal prices Due mostly to

an outstanding exploration campaign

at our to Culorada mine we finished

2013 with record proven and probable

mineral reserves 3235 mil ion ounces

of silver and million ourrces of



gold At current mining rates we cai sustain over 10 years

production with our resources In addition we have industry

Ic iding mineral resources in excess of 715 million ounces of

silver in the ground am confident that the great exploration

pctential of our key assets and our arge mineral resources

will be the genesis for further production growth and strong

cashflow generation for many years

This is particularly true of our La Co orada and Dolores

mines After years of outstanding nserve growth we have

decided to significantly expand La Coloradas production

capacity When the expansion is complete in 2018 the mine

is expected to become our largest lowest cost and one of our

most profitable mines At price of $19 per silver ounce the

expansion will generate an aftertax IRR of 22% and it will pay

back our expansion investment in 2.5 years In addition am

also optimistic about the results of the technical study we are

preparing for the addition of pulp agglomeration circuit at

Dolores Not only does it look techr ically feasible but the

preliminary economics are very promising and would boost

silver and gold recoveries as well as allow us to potentially

tap into significant silver and gold neral resources that are

almost certainly available only through underground mining

look forward to sharing the results of this study with you in

the first half of this year

Production growth mineral reserve trowth costs

cortainment organic growth orojects while 2013 was

indeed challenging we achieved gieat deal But without

question our most important accomplishment was attaining

the best safety record in our history Pan American Silver

achieved world class safety performance as measured by

industry standard Lost Time Injury Frequency and Lost Time

Injury Severity My personal thanks to each and every one

of our workers who made safety their number one priority

every day and every shift and who helped create safer and

healthier environment throughout the Company

It is always difficult to predict the future price of any

commodity and silver is no exception In the short term

have no strong conviction as to the direction of the silver

price from the current levels of approximately $20 per

ounce However believe we are at or very close to cyclical

bottom and we have certainly retooled Pan American Silver

to thrive and continue to grow at this price level or even

somewhat lower Longerterm am more convinced than

ever tIia silver and gold will again become an investment of

choice when investors realize the speculative nature of the

stock markets rally over the past 24 months the enormous

and evergrowing government debt levels in the developed

countries and the truly astonishing amount of money still

being printed by central banks in the US Europe and Japan

Silver and gold will again be seen as stores of real value

against mounting levels of flat currency

In closing would like to thank our shareholders for their

continued support firmly believe that your patience with

us last year will be handsomely rewaded and look fowaid

to updating you on our achievements throughout 2014

and beyond
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ice told in 013 Silv minral reserves rose 2% and
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rnrkable bccaus it was achieved lespi significantly
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Roplacing mnod

mmeral reserves is
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thr dnving factors

for our cash flow and

ea nings and iave

to be based solid
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car rplar or ow mioral reso through ii ne

rt xp oration ific Id xploratic fl new prolects ir
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Alth ugh ower rio al Pr rs forced make cut backs

su enhel exploratior spendirg we ar still actively

03k
it

sri ow over especially if they are close

oroxirli ytoor peratlo VeryLwexplo ation projects

ually make into pro luction Acq iring dccovered

re it or is o3 way to rec uc and to fast4rack

aw oject wa ds oduction

ri any mi se new or mature mineiite exploration is

paramount Since 2004 our exploration programs have

added close to 270 million new silver ounces to our mineral

reserves atan average cost of just $O38 per ounce and

today our proven and probable silver reserves can sustain

current production levels for at least 10 years think this

is fantastic return on our investment Mosi of our recent

exploration success was at La olorada wheie we discovered

over 86 milk sri ounces of silver in the last years

In 2013 we invested $36.3 million to drill almost 150

kilometers at our mines and successfully replaced the silver

ounces rn nod at La Colorada Huaron Morococha and San

Vicente In total we discovered 40 million contained silver

ounces of new mninrral reserves which far exceeded the

33 million contained silver ounces we mined last year In

addition we optimized Dolores mineral reserve estimate by

focusing on lower tonnage but at significan ly higher grades

In 2014 we II continue to explore some very promising

targets in and around our mines We plan tc invest $14

million or approximately 108 kilor leters of liamnond drilling

with specia emphasis on La olorada Dolores Huaron and

San Vicente We will also devote approximately $6 million

to few selected greenfield exploration activities

Michae teinrnarirr Executive ice Presidit Ceprate

Dvelopnert ond Geology
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2013 will be remembered as tough year for precious

metals Although there had been some signs of weakness

as early as the summer of 2012 gold and silver performed

WEll during that year and the silver rice held well above $30

per ounce until the first few months of 2013 Last year silver

climbed from S30.87 per ounLe on January to its high

of $3200 per ounce on February after which it steadily

descended to low of $18.61 per ounce on June27 Silver

traded at $19.50 per ounce on December 31 2013 averaging

$23.79 for the full-year

Investment demand continued to dnve silver prices

Last years precipitous price decline was largely due

to institutional investors exodus from precious metals

markets Large institutions liquidated their precious metals

investments when after years of hedging their bets on hard

assets in anticipation of high inflation and
rising interest

ratss early signals of economic recovery in the US and

Europe and the absence of inflation encouraged them to seek

higher returns in stock markets

The brusque price fall provided strong incentive to retail

investment demand mostly in the bullion sectoC lending

supoort to the silver price in late surr mer In August and

September silver averaged over $24 per ounce but it slid

down
again towards the end of the year to finish 2013 at

$1950 per ounce In 2013 silver lost 37% of its value while

gold lost 29% of its value According to CPM Research total

silver Exchange Traded Funds ETF5 Loldings lost only 13

million ounces during 2013 and ended the year close to 617

million ounces In contrast in 2013 the largest gold exchange

trad fund the Gold SPDR lost 40% of its holdings Silver

Vu If 15R1C
t.iS$/OiAg

also found price support due to higher fabrication demand
which represents 50% of total global demand and from

purchases from India where restrictions on gold imports

prompted investors to move to silver

In the first quarter of 2014

precious metals prices

seem to have stabilized

with silver prices hovering

around $20 per ounce and

gold trading in range

of $1220 and $1385

per ounce Investment

demand seems to have

found its footing after the first effects of the tapering

announced by the US Federal Reserve passed In fact

February of 2014 was the first month when LIEs were net

buyers of silver in over year As for gold the worlds largest

buyers are ramping up purchases and there seems to be

more upside as India appears set to remove restrictions on

gold imports Another promising sign is that in January 2014
Chinas gold demand reached its highest level in the past

nine months

Currently the precious metals market seems to have moved

past the bottom of the recent downward cycle although

risks to the downside still exist In any event drops in prices

will likely be seen as buying opportunities especially by retail

and long-term investors who continue to believe that

the massive amounts of world-wide liquidity

will sooner or later bode very well for

precious metal prices

40
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lo ad mi se is atcd in the stats of Zac.atecas
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iventional cyani pC nt that trea approxin ately

to nc pcr day of oxide addition to ilver rich

lea an nc concc tra Ir flotatior plant th st treats

aup oxi ately 800 cnn ocr day of sulphide Currently

pia is share unu uhg cu yielding

curs bi sed tot capacity of so roximately 200 tonries

or day

O0 La olurad lye pro3uc ioi has st adily

reasec result oft sines inc eased sulphide

oduc ion Diring tic time the silver neral

reserves have more than doubled to todays 81 million

ounces of proven and probable silver miners reserves This

was largely due to the extension of the NC2 vein which still

remains open at depth and to the east as wll as to the

discovery of the Amolillo vein parallel structure to the

main N2 vein which also remains srgeiy open for further

increases Motivated by the recent xploration success

we thoroughly analyzed the possib lity of ezpanding the

mnes ou put and in December of 2013 our Board of

Directors approved the La Colorada expansion project tt at is

now underway

the expansion project will build upon safe and effective

mining and processing techniques currently used with its key

components being

The installation of new 600 metre deep shaft and

hoisting system strategically located between the two

primary nirieralized structures

the development of additional nr ining zones both deeper

and latnrally within the existing mine

the expansion of the existing underground ning fleet



the expansion of the sulphide pLant to approximately 1500

tonnes per day

expansions and upgrades to the nines dowatering and

ventilation systems

the expansion of the tailings storage facilities and

the construction of new 115 Ky power line to the

mine site

The new shaft will be constructed between the Candelaria

and Estrella mines The new shaft rr ay be developed using
SILVER PRoDucrIoNmodern raiseboring technique and will be fitted with

toisting system located on tie surface equipped with

singledeck cage which will increasr the mines extraction

capacity to approximately 2300 tonnes per day by 2018 The

ho St will accommodate both ore and waste extraction as

well as serve as the main access to working areas for mine

personnel The expansion plan cnntemplates mining the

despest defined ore reserves on the Candelana structure at

the 740 metre level with potential to increase mining depths

to where the deepest drill hole interepted mineralization to

date at the 100 metre level Ihe pan also contemplates

mining the deepest defined ore reserves on the Amolillo



utur the 610 mc vel id potentially going to the

en si nerahed ill
hole intercept to date at the 135

nictr kv Given La oloradas outstanding exploration

oter ti ii the haft ha been designed to sustain the

00 me ocr day capauty down to just below 000

rs low surfacs

kcy aspsc of ok red xpansion is that it is relatively

sC in ter so operatlo ci executro regulatory

envrror icnt mc allurgy id oj conomics yen that it

xJncu of suc sful exisli ig operation ft mine

fully pe rnitted id ess goc understanding of
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uirc placemsrt to tarn the Cu rent miring rates

urn the ew res rye xpar sions rhercfore the expansion

orojec icremer talc prtal cf $80 millir represents very

ic des nvestme to the prod tic in rease

l.a Colorada expansion has an rrstl iiated mi iimum project

minelife of 10 years following comoletion in 2018 At

the more conservative silver pnce of $19 per ounce the

expansion PFA estirrates that the project wil generate

approximately $1.9 billion in net revenue and $510 milton of

undiscounted after tax cash flow over 14 year mine life this

is wrihout consideration of any future explorations successes

that could further extend the mine life

In 2014 our project team will focus detai ed engineering

rune development and on preparations to start runstructing

the new shaft and plant expansion in 2015 Colorada has

become one of the pillars of our business and we are very

much looking forward to developing its full pots itial for the

benefit of our Company and all of our stakeholdeis

Steve Busby Chief Operohng Officer



ANNUAL PRODUCTION CASH COSTS 23

IJ it
PROCESSING RATES

II 11111

II

liLII

MINE SHAFT
EXTRACTION CAPACITY

90



60011861 lype
ficatIse

00
56 1050

Pobabie

P40 o0e 3V t/Mn 306

i/\4000
046

66cc 04 0666 13

bakl

6604661
ft Von 99

060 obablo

Al Dorolo rroo 1.3 ve

sommat 0461

661100

4/616 1009

P60606k

.660 ovoe

506 06061

ft rIO 95% aOvpa
10

6/no Pobifto

1661565 960640

6941664 764 ol4oedA0 Pb Lo

64/1 Mot 49/1 000 oc 4% 4%

16 tI/A ft/A 044 136

lb 219 N/A ft/A 642 50 209

668 161 P4/A N/A 664/

06 .646
ft/A 96 13 406

400
21 N/A

4/

1/6 532 0.49 519 ft/A

36 31 4195 P4/A P4/A N/A

05 1602 ft/A N/I N/A

41 16 N/A N/A

00 61 63 N/A N/A N/A

60 31 6161 26366 P4/A
86 N/I

1.4 0.571 153 N/A N/A N/A

130 1/3 206 200/ H/A P4/S N/A

140 60 261 924 ft/A N/A Il/P

616
P4/A N/A N/A 61

406 N/A N/ N/S 64 46

84 45 667/ 2491 041 12/ 604

188686 41181691
66644184881 CII 546 18

ftt4oo 06ap ClaoIllcts1100 Ml 9/1 Moo g/t P4O0oot 64 4%

8o8df p49
4f M%Ioore4

60 16 P4/A P4/A 29 4169 3116

51

nd 0003 166 N/A N/A 18 89 22

M9f066306 92 9% 16
646

6/ 66/ 646 6109 P4 09 106 P4/A N/A 61 36 67

V86fl/ Mantoc 6860643 11 202 /4 P4/A N/A 054 145 331

C4opod9 64 51661
Miooqd 08 6/8 64

15 P4/A 58 6115

Vnlr
6.800864 17 255 130 0.29 16.1 N/A 092

6466 66
6/860 6494566648

24 6451 804 P4/A P4/A P4/A

0666 63 06504 90 12 92 096 2790 N/A N/A P4/A

6446600669646 6466666
16 e9669068d M6060604

43 022 66 P4/A P4/A 64/A

51 196 14198 6ndated
040 10.9 N/A N/A

69149469
oo 0/85 Mo6164c1 j4 11

0660 118 ft/A P4/A N/A

6/6166
61866013

50 59 N/A 1/A N/A

69060614 069864
66610 4/860 644601 64

26 493 319 P41 P406 NJ6 11/A

60 60800 ed 90 99 10 027 ft/A N/A

886/4601 95% 90160 51.66 04a r4 05 111 P4/A ft/A
P4/A 69 215

6/61
kdia668 02 .129 09 N/A P4/A I/A 012 1.47

Novldo6
46 it 6460145 61 Moo 469474 158 679 P4/A P4/A 60 44 N/A

P400505 06 IndoaNd 138 126 04 N/A N/A 004 /9 P4/A

41460 Mh9y 16 16
1051604606641 fr1o 64 41 P4/A P4/S 11 91 61/5 P4/A P4

10696 nate lndftated N/A N/A 067 127 N/A ft/A ft/A

Colcotreo 696 6600 64
6644464644 60 61/ 64 6760 P4/A P4/A P4/A

I7TAV

Measured 2050 614 /16 110 1508.0 005 53/ 243

486618

Ml

669

41

.6

61

94

/69

0/

95

62

.3

07

3261



INI RR11

Lonation Type

VIn

reacha 93 3% Peru Vetn/Munfs Irtkrred

La eardp Mettlcb VILEr Inferred

lacer Mexico Veor Inferred

Alaraa D9t4d0 MackB oleMhrC IefCrbed

La 8elra Meuatx VeIn Inferred

Arpeptlne Valor pierced

San Vkerrte 90% ltxItvra Vu Inferred

$aeNlad Andenpea MaCION ni Inferred

Pico Machay Peru uuerrrrruted Inferred

Cekaif real rpetIrru Va Inferred

TOTAISCI Irrferrerl

Ii An ti tin itttiO

iirk .h .t

Cli sos di itt aI tint ti dtirg

at
ct

Ii itirtI Vi St raft is

iii 51 tti cc Vial It rat

ft ry 1sf Cr to toni ii
Ii

ii fepI ttttttOi SViiO

Us nil in nb Cs

ill aio IA Oti ffa di 11 Ott au

trIO AC alt tan Ii tf
in tt It alt rnC no am

Hmdfsn tdjh trprbt notrru no -mid in In ircs rat

or itd ia ol so or no not ft Ii ruf alt fn

Vt 11 ft at AlIt ii trtI fbi Ci

Iii Ott itt ii to

Sb it tout

11 Ic9LfCA fiat-GPO tON

Taruler Ap Ceatalnad All

Ml /t Moe

Ill-I 44f1

8.0 209 039

29 21-h IfS

107 39 033

t9 09

911 43

3.1 330 33.2

23 N/A N/A

121 93 297.7

triO tat ui t- itai .1 tin
uS tot kit Ii if rt 15 lIt Inc

Zn

Al

SOb

312

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

53

N/A

N/A

N/A

30

ta3 lot Ii Sn uS

itt $11 iii tt

tt
rim

t- cc td In lit
.01 .t rd 5l

Ut pit di ttrtitrnr tt Ste norm Ip Sb

It tprN cotcir0t nat 101 it it tub
it it an

Cf pn In rut -1 5i /0 at Ut toO

13 tt Nil lift it rotc alt Otttt 91 Cc it it

ty itt Itt It ibi

Mt tt tic di mi It tat hr It Vi id

tot ta
tj

trti ia It lv ci ha is ti
tis

liii
if

mi of it it in
Lot

Cli Ot ii c-

ttit irtrt t0
0$ if ill Iota It 1t

nra0 atea aliT Iitiasi it tAft tltttt jiot to
10

1.1 3170 to Its no

1tttt if/ill
tt Litsttt Los itt urn rh Ii tilt tAt alt ttntt

nit tfiiConnltii tot ooaUo it nit itst It iii Itt Ii lit II it tOt

lAM At LNMAVN 1100 \ND MN 10/01 RN EN 15111 0I WI III RE C/UALII III II RSON IllS tEl If IS DI 1-IN dl 11 301 AC

RI II WI AND tPI IA DItto ORT RTS 11115 ANNUl REPCtIII

AOl ONAPY NOtEd 1005 INV1 LOFtS CNCl RId Nd lSItCtn ES 0011 SI RVLS AND SOURCES

H1S NNUAI FPOIl HAS EllEN PRI It IN CL RD\N WIN ONE LIEQUIREMINTS OF C1INAD AN IRLIVINCtAL MOOR ilOt \55 aVIStO DIll-RI- tNt

III QU1REMINIS 00 US SICURU LOS AWS 055 00130 RWtSE ISDICAICI 121 IiIlrdIIb RI SIRS RI-ID RI SOURCE SIIMAOES ItdCl liPID IN III ANRCA

POlO AVE BIEN EREIARCD IN ACCORDANCE AtTN CANAl IAN NATIONAL tNtrIRUMLRO 41303 StANDARDS CE DISCIO0LIRI I-Of MtNIftAl ROtC It NI

JOt AND IHI ANADIAN NAII101L 01 MINING MI IAL 101 Itia ANt P1 OROLL IIM UI ItNtllC SIANDARI NI 113 103 Al tILE DEVEIOP1 II NY ILL Ii SN DAN
SE UI II IES RDM1NISt RAIORS ill/Il 1-511 It HIS im1ANDAIIDS OR All PUBLIC DIaCIO5III1E AN ISSUEI VMS OF SC lENT II AND III HNtI CL tiLIORM0 CaN

COiN RNINt.t tat RURAL PROJECIS ANA tAN SI NNOA 103 INc LUDINCi NI 43 101 LEO ICtNIF IC ANIIT lOOM 1110 IIICIUIREMI II IA 01- IC 01211111 iT ES

SE000II ES UNI EXCIIANLit COMMInSIC iLIHru SIC AND INFORMAtION CONCERNINI MINIRAUZA11UI DEPCIol IA NRAL RESERVE IND RLSIUIiC1

NI DOW ATICtIA COOL dINED ON REI ROLL IC NFL 1-IN MAY NOl lIE CDMI1ARABLI IOU IVIILAR INIUIIMA ION DISCACI ED ISV 111 1/1 VIIANIL IN It 11111 CL

SND VA 111001 OM1T NC lIE CrAARAI lbs CtI THE IDE EGO1NA tHIS ANNUAL REPORt ESTIIE IERMS tMEASIJPFD OOURCES INDICAIL DIII tI 001

II 11311 15 ES NCt /E sOUl tILE oUDIS tERMS ARE 001tNI/FI ANDRE /UIRLD BY AN \DIRN SEc 01111151 AlAS

II
Ill- III If dIC II FOR IDINILL ILAII IN UI RE SI 11121Si /101 Al SI Not TI SAME AS HIlt OlIN SI

St Is ultotEt ilY 111 CII tI-Slob 11111 oh tJI3 Nb .1 lOut MAY NOB blUAt IS AS 11-SERVE UNDEI SIC S1ANLIAL US CR1111 IS tIrNDLRDS

ci II nO tOL Itti Ni 1101 it EC lAS tHE CELl I1MINAL ON HAS BEEN MADE 114/IT lIt MlNPRAUCnt ION COULD BEE ONOM LIV

sn 1E EL 001MB tI Cl It 11 it EllIS 0011190 NAtION IS MADE US All/ES CJR1 ARE CU IITIONI NOI ID ASS 1111 111/11 ASS

.5 It rI It tO LII Cl ND tJ CaIll sul LIV RI CONVERIFf INTO RESEll/I Ut INIE Ob SRI 011 AIM UNDI btSI ED

tIM LOPEP IISC CI 11 101 NI IC 1st-I tELlS AS1CI tHEIR EXISTEN AND GREAT UNCER tIEoIY AS ID THE1R ECONOMII Al 1115
El CRC Of CAt lA /1 IC ASia II IELI RI fp OX bEll LtNC III 1111115 NE/B WIll

II AN Cl CI 1519 111011 911 SC II

IAABOCSi ill 1Ot1ioI .1 obhI Nil NI NINCI 5011 ItI1I IL Ill CI iII
II lull C1t \lCt P11 tO Call 11 IN AtI 11 tiC IAld 1N 11 it

oL CE Ut fIll
.1

Al 010 ClIll II co NE El lIt 11 RIsC

11 tEll 15CC NI NE Ii tIC II 51CR alt

Au C8lrtln8d Au Cu

3/5 13813s at Na

N/A N/A 029

N/A N/A 04d

042 398 N/A

091 33411 N/A

111/4 00 N/A

051 2224 N/A

31/ 51/ N/A

N/A N/A N/A

N/A N/A

058 4/07 N/A

lOft 2290 N/A

01/3 13180 009

P1

lIrE

145

134

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

213

115/

N/A

N/A

82





Pan American Silver Corp

Suite 1440 625 Howe Street

Vancouver British Columbia

Canada V6C 2T6

Tel 604 684 1175

f-ax 604-684-0147

nfo@panamericansilver corn

wwwpanamencanslver corn

Pan Amencan Silve Argentina

Tel 54-11-5533 8700

Fax 54 11-5533-8700 ext 1110

Country Manager Bret Boater

Pan Amencan Silver Bohvia SA
Tel S9-1-2279-699O0

Fax 59-122154216

Country Manager Gary Hannan

Pan Amencan Silver Mexico

Tel 52618-128-Q709 101

Fax 62-618 128 0692 102

Country Manager Chns Warwick

Pan American Silver Peru SA

Tel 51 1-618-9700

Frix 51 1-618 972ti

Country Manager Jorge Ugarte

Mx
VjJ

ccc cor4cmc

VII
100%

ALfI1

IIItItJ

HeSock Printer wwtc it
to

Ptr oUoltl tl
CorIt nO ROt olOo Cool

TNt 2- lC 1000



Pan American



Pan American
SILVER CORP

MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 2013

PAN AMERICAN SILVER CORP



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Introduction

ore Business and Strategi

..

Highkghts.of203

2014 Operating Outicok

2014 Project OavBlO.pment Outlook

2.013 Prcject Odvdlopment Update 16

Ovdrview 7Q3 OnncidI Results 17

Investmenis and Inve.sttnent Income 23

Ge ne.ral and Adminhtrative Expense 23

Related Pdrty Transactions 24

Expioradon and rojact Development 24

Liquidity Pcsitlon 24

CapitalReso.ur.cvs 25

Fin.ancial I.nstruments 25

Closure and Dacctnmissioning Cost ProviSion 26

Contra ctuai Ctimndtrnentsand Contingencies 27

f4J nefindars Tran.saction 27

Purchase Price AIIot4tin 27

IitOr.native PS1formance jnon.TCAAP Measures 28

Riskeand Ur.ctirtainties 32

Significanat Judgments and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty in the Application

of Accounting i..i.cies 36

Key Sources of Estimatiun Uncertainty in the Applitation of

AccountittgPcilicles 37

Changes ID ADtbuntiDg .Star.dards 38

Govvrnanc.e .Cbrp orate Sociai Respohsibi.Iity and

EnvironnentaI .Steward.ship 39

DiscIc..s.ureCcntr.is and Procedures 40

Mineral Reserves and fiasburci.s 42

Cons Iidatad Find.n.ciAI Statements and Notes 46



MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

March 26 2014

INTRODUCTION

Managements discussion and analysis MDA is intended

to help the reader understand the significant factors that have

affected Pan American Silver Corps and its subsidiaries Pan
American or the Company performance and such factors that

may affect its future performance The MDA should be read in

conjunction with the Companys Audited Consolidated Financial

Statements for the year ended December 31 2013 and the

related notes contained therein All amounts in this MDA and

in the consolidated financial statements are expressed in United

States dollars USD unless identified otherwise The Company

reports its financial position results of operations and cash flows

in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as

issued by the International Accounting Standards Board IFRS
Pan Americans significant accounting policies are set out in Note

of the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements

This MDA refers to various non-Generally Accepted Accounting

Principles non-GAAP measures such as all-in sustaining

cost per silver ounce sold cash costs per ounce of silver

total cost per ounce of silver adjusted earnings and basic

adjusted earning per shareç which are used by the Company

to manage and evaluate operating performance at each of the

Companys mines and are widely reported in the mining industry

as benchmarks for performance but do not have standardized

meaning To facilitate better understanding of these non-GAAP

measures as calculated by the Company additional information

has been provided in this MDA Please refer to the section

entitled Alternative Performance Non-GAAP Measures

beginning on page 40 for detailed description of all-in sustaining

cost per silver ounce sold total cost per ounce of silver adjusted

earnings and basic adjusted earnings as well as the cash cost

calculation details of the Companys by-product credits and

reconciliation of this measure to the Audited Consolidated

Financial Statements

Any reference to cash costs or cash costs per ounce of silver in

this M0A should be understood to mean cash costs per ounce of

silver net of by-product credits

Except for historical information contained in this MDA the

following disclosures are forward-looking statements within the

meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995

and forward-looking information within the meaning of applicable

Canadian provincial securities laws or are future oriented financial

information and as such are based on an assumed set of economic

conditions and courses of action Please refer to the cautionary

note regarding the risks associated with forward looking

statements at the back of this MDA and the Risks Related to

Pan Americans Business contained in the Companys most recent

Form 40-F and Annual Information Form on file with the U.S

Securities and Exchange Commission and the Canadian provincial

securrties ul tory authontae Addition Inform bout
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HIGHLIGHTS OF 2013

OPERATIONS PROJECT DEVELOPMENT

Record Silver and Gold Production

Silver production was record 26 million ou ices in 2013 an

increase of 4ff over the 29 million ounces produced in 2012

while gold production also set new Compa uy
record at 149800

ounces 33% higher than 2012 produc ion The increase in silver

production was mainly attributable to full ear of production

fror it me Dolores mine in Mexico which was acquired upcn

the closing of the Minefinders transaction on March 30 2012

augmented by higher silver production at all of Pan Americans

mines other than Manantial Espejo and Alamo Dorado over 2012

levels Gold production increases in 2013 were driven by full

year of produr.tion it Dolores and gnificantly higher grades at

Manantmal Espejo

Disciplined Cast Control

An extensive range of operational optimizations and cost cuthng

initiatives were analysed and executed to realign the Companys

operational performance with the prevailing price environment

and to ensure that we maintained our strong financial position

All in sus aining cost per ounce of silver sold declined by 18% in

2013 relative the 2012 down $3.93 to $1833 per ounce Cash

costs were $10.81 for 2013 as compared to $12.03 in 2012 and

well below managements guidance range of $11 80 to $12 80 per

siivr onnce

Organic Growth

he Car ioany decided to proceed with the expansion of its La

Colorada rune in Mexico based on the positive results of

recently iompleted Preliminary Economic Assessment the PEA
The PEA demonstrates that the relatively low risk expansion

project has the potential to provide robust zftertax economic

returns usir $19 per ounce long term sileer price The PEA

contemplates an increase in silver production from the current

level of aporoximately million ounces per year to million

ounces per year by the end of 201i for an incremental capital

investment om $eu million tne rriajurity of which will be spent

over the nxt years

Robust Proven and Probable Silver Mrneral Reserves

successful exploration and resource conversion program in

2013 more than replaced mineral reserves that were mined

during tte year As at December 2013 Proven and Probable

mineral re.jerves totalled 323.9 llion ounces For the complete

breakdown of mineral reserves and resources by property and

category fer to the section Mineral Reseves and Resources

contained herein

FINANCIAL

Challenging Metal Price Fnvironment

The mininq irdustry generally and precious metal producers in

particular were impacted by sharp decline in metal prices in

2013 The Companys financial performance year over year was

negatively affected by the decrease in silver and gold prices with

reduced revenue and mine operating earnings as well as the

triggering of mpairment charges to certain mineral properties arid

goodwill



Strong Operating Cash Flow Liquidity and Working Capital

Position

Despite the decrease in metal prices cash flow from operations

was $1l96 million and together with its strong balance sheet

liquichty the Company was comfortably able to fund capital

expenditures of $159.4 million during the year The Company had

cash 3nd short term investment balances of $422.7 million and

work rig capital position of $6890 million at December 31 2013

decrease of $119.6 million and $74.9 million respectively from

year ago

Return of Value to Shareholders

Strong operating cash flow facilitated the continued return of

value to shareholders in 2013 by way of approximately $758

million in dividend payments and $6.7 million of common share

repurchases under the Companys normal course issuer bid

program The Company received approval and commenced third

share repurchase program in late 2013 an initiative which started

in September 2011 The Companys quarterly dividend continues

to be an industryeading $0125 per share or $0.50 on an annual

basis

Robust Revenue

Revenue in 2013 was $824.5 million decrease of 11% as

compared to 2012 revenue driven primarily by lower realized

prices for silver and gold and negative price and quantity

adjustments of $25.4 million related to provisionally priced sales

recorded in 2012 partially offset by record quantities of silver and

gold sold

Margins and Earnings

The Company was able to achieve gross margin mine operating

earnings/revenue of 16% with mine operating earnings of $131.5

million in 2013 despite lower realized metal prices negative price

and quantity adjustments of $25.4 million related to provisionally

priced sales recorded in 2012 and $13.0 million negative

adjustment for the net realizable value of inprocess inventories

This compared to gross margin of 33% achieved in 2012 net

loss was recorded in 2013 of $445 million or $2 94 per share

pi manly due to impairment charges net of tax of $4204 million

and an $86.8 million deferred tax charge relating to Mexican tax

reforms that included new taxes and changes to income tax rates

This compared to net earnings of $78.4 million achieved in 2012

2014 OPERATING OUTLOOK
These estimates are forwardlooking statements and information that are subject to the cautionary note regarding the risks associated

with forwarddooking statements and information at the end of this MDA
The following tables set out managements 2014 forecast for each operations silver production cash and total costs per ounce by

product production and expected capita investments We also provide our expected consolidated aIlin sustaining costs per silver ounce

sold for 2014

TNCASAN SS

Cash 00515 per owi and

tridl costs psi ounce err non

GAAP rneaurerncrit Plessc

refer to section Alternative

Perform icon Non GAAP
MeasrJres tur deter

rsconctr non of how these

me isures calculited ftc

ish cost to Csts ensue

byproduct credit price of

31 880/tonne 30.84th for

sino 02100/torrne 00 95/

lb for Rid 3/000/tonno

33 18/lb for copper and

00/oz to sold

The Company expects its seven mines to produce between 25.75 million and 26.75 million ounces of silver in 2014 similar to or

potentially modest increase from 2013 production of 26.0 million ounces

Cash costs for the full year 2014 are expected to increase to between $11.70 and $12 70 per ounce of silve net of byproduct credits

which represents an increase of between 8% and 17% as compared to 2013 cash costs of $10 81 per ounce The largest factor behind

this increase in cash costs is the lower assumed gold byproduct credits in 2014 based on gold price of $1200 per ounce for estimating

gold bv.product credits which is 15% reduction compared to the average market price in 2013 of $1411 per ounce

PAN AMERICAN SILVFR C3RP
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ppo ml ti nv stm

tie so produ ti ms

mae llyhm han or df production

Re mi tmnrmt

rOan 300 000

IUP
La Cokrada

Atanle Dorarlo

clara

Huarori

Morocorha

588 Vmcante

Marantial Espejo

ormsolldated Total

2.6

170 190

640 080

06 1/

18 20

69.0 720

155 1050

eSu 700

1350 1400

1500 15.51

50 600

aescth4L5O

au o.su

536 5/8

380 400

045

32 /0 1830

007 00/

335 ASS

178 208

530 510

cloradi

Al mODorm

uaron

Vrmo ocR

San VAemte

ManntmaI pj

Iustalr log .apital St4dTotaI

ma ad ProjcI

mIcro Pr ir.ct

opec Sub total

2014 TotmHCrplal

58

$05

$95

$9.0

$60

$300
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2014 MINE OPERATION
FORECASTS

Managements expectations of each mines operating

performance in 2014 are set out below including discussion

on expected production cash costs per ounce and capital

expenditures

La Colorado mine

La Colorada plans to increase ore mined from the sulphide

zone to ensure that the sulphide plant runs at 850 tpd while

maintaining production rates from the oxide plant at 400 tpd

The ncreased overall throughput rate5 combined with modestly

higher silver grades are expected to result in higher silver

production in 2014 The shift towards higher proportion of

ore feed coming from the sulphide zore is expected to result in

high zr base metal byproduct production while gold production is

expected to benefit from slightly higher grades in 2014

Cash costs per ounce are expected to remain similar to 2013

cash costs as an increase in byproduct credits despite lower

price assumptions and the benefits of higher silver production

will kely be offset by an increase in direct operating costs

The expected inc ease in operating costs is driven primarily by
assumed escalations in

electricity and diesel costs of 15% and in

labour and security costs of 3%

Capital expenditures at La Colorada in 014 are expected to

increase from 2013 levels to $40.0 million inclusive of $32.0

million related to the expansion project Please see 2014 Project

Deve opment Outlook section for detailed description of the

expenditures planned for the La Colorada expansion project The

rema ning capital expenditures of $8.0 million for the existing

operztion includes equipment repair arid replacements and

upgrcdes for $2.7 million underground ventilation systems for

$1.5 million and near mine exploration for $3.8 million

Alamo Dorada mine

2014 signals the beginning of declining production profile at

Alamo Dorado as the operation begins to process more ore from

the lower grade stockpiles while the miling operation depletes

the last of the reserves over the next two years at higher effective

strip ratios We expect to hold processir rates steady at 4750

tpd but decline in silver grades and recoveries are likely to result

in drop in silver production Gold production in 2014 is expected

to benefit from marginally higher grades from gold zone that will

be mined along the northern pit limits mesulting in an uptick in

gold production

Cash costs are expected to increase significantly at Alamo Dorado

in 2014 as result of higher direct operating costs and lower silver

production Cost escalations are expected from the increased

waste stripping required to extract the remaining ore reserve

extensions as well as higher diesel fuel md energy costs

Capital expenditures at Alamo Domado ir 2014 are expected to

be $0.5 million predominantly for tailings dam and laboratory

equipment replacements

Dolores mine

Dolores will aim to stack an average of 16200 tpd onto leach pads

in 2014 10% improvement on 2013 stacking rates combined

with better expected recoveries This will be partially offset

by an anticipated decline in silver grades The combination of

these operating parameters is expected to result in higher silver

production while gold grades are expected to hold steady but be

offset by lower recoveries resulting in similar gold production as

was achieved in 2013

Cash costs are expected to increase sharply from 2013 levels

primarily due to significantly lower byproduct credits on per

ounce basis due to the lower anticipated gold price Operating

costs on per tonne basis are expected to remain similar to 2013

costs with increases anticipated in materials most notably diesel

lime and explosives costs offset by reductions in
staffing costs and

the benefit of higher stacking rates

Capital expenditures of sustaining nature for the existing

operation at Dolores are expected to be $32.5 million which

include pit prestripping for $18.2 million equipment repair and

replacements of $7 million access road improvements of $0.8

million and support infrastructure upgrades of $i.9 million The

proposed sustaining capital program also includes $3.6 million for

nearmine exploration

In addition capital expenditures relating to the pad expansion

new power line installation and process plant optimization

projects are expected to require $35 million These are discussed

separately under the 2014 Project Development Outlook section

of this MDA

Huaron mine

In 2014 the plan at Huaron is to continue the positive trend of

increasing mining and milling rates as compared to the 2013

rates The increases in these throughput rates have been enabled

by progressively increasing the amount of ore released from

long.hole mining facilitated by direct capital investments in

mechanizations made over the past few years The improved

throughput in 2014 is expected to be coupled with modestly

higher silver grades from mine sequencing and recoveries to result

in greater silver production Base metal production is expected to

fall
slightly from 2013 production levels

Cash costs per ounce are expected to remain similar to 2013 cash

costs as the benefit of higher silver production is expected to be

offset by decline in byproduct credits based on lower expected

byproduct metal prices We expect to hold operating costs

stable while achieving increased processing rates assuming 3%
devaluation of the local Peruvian currency

Capital spending at Huaron in 2014 is expected to be
drastically

reduced from the elevated levels seen in previous years as the

intensive mechanization efforts are largely completed The 2014

capital budget totals $9.5 million and is comprised of sustaining

investments related to repair and replacements of equipment for

$2.4 million upgrades to the ventilation systems of $1 million

and regional infrastructure for $0.5 million In addition business

improvement projects are proposed for camp upgrades for $0.5

million as well as nearmine exploration for $1.6 million

PAN AMERICAN S1LVEi CRP



Morowche mine

Tonrcs iiilled and silver un and copper grades and recovenes

at \il oct ch in 2014 are exoected to improve compared to

lesols ultmir whr oducaan nf slver and all by

oroduct bis metals These expeted improvements am possible

due multi year mc anmzati and enhanc development

nv tmqnt that Company has nade it the Morococha mine

Wc ticmpat
cash sts per our cern 014 to reduce sharply

impawd to 20 dur prim ian to the benefits of lower operating

costs coupled with ghei grad ore Base smetal by product

credit re expected to rerramn teady as higher levels of base

mc ci prodc ctmon is cx ect to be offset by ower me prices

dat veto 013 Opt rating costs are expeetcd to decline over

013 costs prim irmly
suit redc cOons in hird party ore

iii s-es wmcn 1y hr en raplared with the use of

produ tiv omoany mriployee togethei with the benefit

of umed wakcr lo ci Pri vian currency

Mo aches capital budget for 0140 $9 million is

ubstantially wee ian he prior years cap tel spending as the

utn we rr ultm year mechanc coon and devolopment efforts are

rgIy ama etcd Ihe majority of theta imtal expenditures in

1014 ar anned for sustainmr the mine and includes crosscuts

arid vntml ion aises for uillion additional reserve definition

cr Ii got Lb million an overhaul of quipment for $2

nu mci TBcr ar ddioonal f0 million for dvanci ug on

3enrg pm rid $0 millior for metallurgical testing

to ef itt re p11 it fiowsheets

an i/i cntc mm

plc uair tair roughp ates 013 level iii 2014

vf ile mbl to hold si vet grades anti recoveries stable

Based on tho opera para eter Ba cente is expected to

car rmbuth ci uumlar uant1ties silver Par American in 2014

Stcady sO iii uing es ire expected to diver ore with similar

in arid lead grades is 2013 levels resul ing in stable zinc arid

ad production

lot ratine osts ir expected to ucrease slightly is compared to

201 dr ye predominant by anticipated wage increases More

affsettmrg thes st in teases we expect mproved market

mditians mu the hig gr
adc sil er co ice utrates market to result

low uielting
and neff ir charges an we expect declining

oyultmrs Item Co nibol hased on lower expected silver price

Cash tests pe ounc ir xpected to dec lint noticeably over the

013 cash osts due primarily th decrease sme long md royalty

to ts offset partially by the higher wage ate

With the ailing dcii raise comolete in 2013 the capital

budget in 014 if $6 million is signiticir ly reduced from

013 soendi ip the cciii sust mningcapmtal includes $07 million

tom equipment mepam nd eplacements and $0 mill for

it it ii ne cxplorati ri
md $1 million for other equipment

ha icement optirr zatior mid upgrades It addition there is

$0 ii lImo foreca ted for projects ur dcrw
my

at the end of 2013

ire ily ssocmateo with shaft and rnist pgnade project

Mcmnanticul Eapejo atine

plan icras alan thm ughput by 8% to 150 tonne per

day 2014 at
smg

am ican lv ctter silve and gold grades according

thc mint planm ed out rcing Achieving he increased

plant throughput rates is highly dependent an sustaining plant

availabilities and utilizations throughout the year and avoiding

unscheduled disruptions as occurred during the first half of 2013

With steady recovery rates we expect silver raduction and gold

production to be up to 25% higher thri u013 productiom

Dire operating costs refining costs and royalties are expected to

increase in 2014 but should be offset by an expected increase in

silver and gold piaductian resulting in cash costs per ounce net

of by products remaining similar to 2013 cash costs Operating

costs an per onne basis are expected to remain stable with

the assumption of continued cost inflation in Argentina which

especially affects costs of labor and consumables fully offset

weaker Peso

Capital investments planrmed at Manantial Espejo total $30.8

million in 2814 dominated by $23 million fcmr capitalized

open pit pre stripping in Maria and ancpci in and capitalized

underground development Additionally $1 million is needed

for tailings
dim expansion $08 million for equipment repair

amid replacements $1 million for busmnss enhancement

projects and another $14 million far rmearrrmne exploration

around eurren workings

2014 PROJECT DEVELOPMENT
OUTLOOK
The major pro ects for Pan American in 2014 are

An expansion of the La Cola rada operation requiring

capitl investments of $32 million in 2014 including the

commencement ate shaft and hoist installation of $8.8 million

plant expansion of $36 million mmufrastructure upgrades of

$6 mill an tailings expansion of $08 million system and

equipment upgrades of 3.2 million and project mndirects

assoc ated with the shaft and hoist installation and plant

expar sian cit $2.3 million

The next construction phase of Dolores leach pad is

advancing to increase the storage capacity of the pad to

provide sufiuen volume ostai operations into 20m7

which will require capital expenditures of approximately $240

million iii 2814

power line construction project at Dolores by third party

carmtrai tar is expected to commence 2814 and require an

investment of $8 million for completion and power delivery

to operations in 2015

The pulp agglomeration expansmmn project studies at Dolores

metallurgical testing pit dewatermng and other smaller

assocmmted projects are expected to require approximately $3.0

million in capital spending

We are assuming that the law in Chubut will not be amended in

2014 in manner which encourages further investment at ths

stage at the Navidad project and as such our 2014 plans are for

the project to remain focused an care and nnai itenance as well

as adhering to the investment plan filed with the authorities All

expenditures at Navidad in 2014 will he expensed as incurred

under exploration and project development and arc expected to

total $3 million



2013 OPERATING PERFORMANCE

The allowing table reflects alive production and cash costs net of

by produot credits at each of Pan Americans operations for 2013

as compared to 2012 and 2011

013 01 01 013 01

olor .6 $7.74

Al mo Dorad 079 00 $74 05 $4 80

litrest $4.06

Huaron 04 2909 2769 $17.51 $14.03

Quliuvilt 215 881 53633 53747

Moiocorha11 2083 1712 $2348 $16 11

tan Vicenteel 3126 3130 $1892 $1348

Marcantial

Espejo 44 3632 3767 5835 $14.65 $736

ry reference to cash costs this MDA
is defined as cash costs nt of by product

credits Please refer to the sect on Alternative

Performance Non GAAP Messures for

detailed dear rrptrorr of the rash cost calcutaoorr

details of the Company by produrt credits and

rcco rciliaoon of tt is reasur to th Audited

Co rsolidatcd Financial Statcrrents

the Dolores mine is acquired on March

30 2012 and as such the 2012 flgcrre is thc

production Tor ii months or tIre Co irpany

wnershrp

Morococ data epreserrts Pan Arnrrcarr

023% arterest crc ch mines production

Sari Viceir data rc presents Part \nrenrc sir

95 0/i rnterei icr the crimes productro

Totals Tray nit add dccc to rounding

In 2013 Pan Americans silver production increased to 26.0 million

ounces 4% higher than production levels in 2012 The increase

in silver production was mainly attributable to full year of

production from the Dolores mine in Mexico which was acquired

upon the closing of the Minefinders transaction on March 30

2012 Higher annual silver production was achieved at all of

Pan Americans mines other than Manantial Espejo and Alamo

Dorado The Quiruvilca mine was sold by Pan American effective

from June 2012 and was not part of 2013 production

Silver production in 2013 was at the top end of managements

forecast range of between 25 million and 26 million ounces

Alamo Dorado as described in the December 31 2012 MDA Alamo Dorado

23 Moz Dolores Huaron and San Vice nte all oxceeaed the high end of

our guidance La Colorada and Morococha achieved the guidance

range while only Manantial Espejo was below guidance

Consolidated cash costs per ounce of silver were $10.81 in 2013

10% decrease from 2012 cash costs per ounce of $1203 and well

below managements forecast range $11.80 to $12.80 per silver

ounce for the year The decrease year over year was attributable

to significant increase in byproducts produced including

33% increase in gold produced and meaningful reductions in

cash costs at our Peruvian operations due to more mechanized

mining at Huaron and higher grades recoveries and throughputs

at Morococha Manantial Espejo cash costs were also reduced

significantly with the devaluation of the Argentine peso outpacing

local inflation in 2013 in addition to the 40% increase in gold

produced at that mine Offsetting these positive effects on cash

costs were the lower byproduct prices realized especially for

gold and cost increases at Alamo Dorado where lower grades

had negative effect on production and costs and at Dolores

where costs rose mainly on higher non capitalized prestripping

expenditures

The graph below presents silver production by mine in 2013 and

highlrghts the diverse nature of Pan Americans silver production

La Colorada

Mo
Manantial Espejo

Mo7

Sas Vicente

Moc

orococha

Mci

Huaron

33 Mo

Mexico

Peru

Bolivia

Bolivia

Dolores

Mc
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Tb fc Howi tables out the ompany hyproduct production aver the past three years and the metal prices realized for each

metal produce

2013 20 2011 2013 2012 2011

Cold ounces 149815 112283 18 426 Silver/ounce 2329 81 26 35 03

ire tar ic 42141 36848 37234 Gold/ounce 1398 1672 1567

ad to ins 13499 12266 11701 Zrnd/tonne 1908 1961 2208

oper tonnes 5543 4162 4544 2141 2052 2402

Copper/tonno 7251 8/9 625

01 production gold increased by 333 as result of additional productroi from Dolores and Manantial Espejo An additional

diicti it tic follnwinp the Mai ch 30 2012 acquisition of the mine and an anticipated increase in gold grade at

\flan intia spejo we th factors bahind these increases

Co isc lida ed base tal roduction hievc doubledig percentage increasas as resu of higher production at all of our

poly tietalic ape rtio most notably at the ompany Peruvian mines Base metal production in 20 easily exceeded the high end of

ianag ris forecasted ranges for zinc a6000 39000 tonnes load 11 500 V500 tonnes and copper 3500 4000 tonnes as

cart bi aed result of better than expected throughput rates grades and recoveries

41 IN SUSfAININC COSTS PER SILVER OUNCE SOLD

We he hove ha AISC OS rare mpreh nsive measure of the cost of operating our consolidated business than traditional cash and

otal ts per ounce it aclaces th cost replacing ounces through exploration the cost of ongoing capital invest oents sustaining

capit gen ral and admi aist ative expen is well as other items that affect the Companys consolidated earnings and cash flow

To facilitate better under ta cdi
ig

of he measures aa calculated by the toir pany the following taole provioes the aetailed

oncili Won of th cea to the applcahle cost items as reporte in the co solidated income staternnts for the respective

lad ided it vrr iii
ract

If udited mu olidated our

530613 485 lF3 ate maim urd tleutu

ci mcli ad eta pr nm tar

Royaltie 26459 0/7
uppl le oar in

Smelting refining ar mpc riati harges 93 926 94438 /eAP rearm um

Or eti
iii

Alt relive

by roduct credits 331809 293209
Ic curer Ian CAAP

ash ot of saes net ef by products 319189 321410
fur dIr

tt are cccii to th di

t4irthrlg ca il 111647 130/23 tar ii rim IF mar hI Ste crc cc

Ool coo projer
vel prue 15415 36/46

tarn Ii ott sccrtion 3030 999

Ge al adnilnuctrative xpen 17596 20 790

All In
sustaining cost 466937 517 /26

Payable ounces sold 25478014 23037493

AISCSOS dcclined by 18% in 2013 relative the 20i2 down $3 93 to $18 33 per ounce Some expense items in our business are directly

elated with rneta prices such as yalties which declined in 2013 in unison with ower metal prices Ouscretiona expense items

sat exploration id ger eral and ad rrinistiative expense were reduced in 203 relative to the prior year as an extensive range of cost

tlar mi lativos were analys nd exeuted to realign the Companys operational performance with the prevailing price environmnt

arid tc sure that wr itained our strong financial position

Ar analysis each opt atio 2013 operating performa ace follows as compared to 2012 operating performance and managements

gui fo 01 ontancd ii the 2012 yearmnd MDA

deretoru costs
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La olorada mine

5iver ounces 4566377

sold ounces 2579

Zinc tonnes
6759

3324

Pay rble ounces of sfver 4364727

Ciis cost per ounce of silver net of byproduct credits

Cash cost per ounce net of by

products 943

total cost per oum net of by

products

Capital Expenditures thousands

Actual cash costs of $9.43 per ounce were within managements
forecast range of between $900 and $9.75 per ounce Cash costs

at La Colorada in 2013 were positively influenced by stronger

than expected byproduct production while offset by significantly

lower realized prices than forecast

Capital expenditures at La Colorada during 2013 totalled $13
million below our forecast of $15.0 million The capital was spent

mainly on mine development and equipment purchases for the

Estrella and Candelaria mines an Estrella mine expansion and
896

continuation of the neaemine exploration drilling program
4431111

35/8 Alamo Dorado mine

5599

1166

4215075

Cash costs pci ounce and tutu costs per ounce arc non sAAP
is easorements lease refer to scctrorr Attn mOve Perforrnanre Non
OAAP Measures for di tailed re onrrliatrorr of these nrasu as to our

rsi or salas

SrteO metal Irpures in tl tables ri this secoon are volume of

setal odur.ed

2013 VERSUS 2012

Silver production st the La Colorada mire in 2013 was million

ounces 3% increase compared to the previous year This

increase was due to 7% higher through ut rates and
slightly

improved silver recoveries partially offset by 6% decline in

silver grades Production of lead and air benefited from higher

throughput while anticipated lower gold grades led to modest
decrease in gold oduction

2013 cash costs increased by 9% to $9.43 per ounce of silver when

compa red to 2012 The increase was the result of higher operating

costs while byproduct credits remained similar to the prior year

as increased base metal production was offset by lower gold

production and realized prices

2013 VERSUS 2013 GUIDANCE

Silver production at La Colorada in 2013 as in line with the low
end of managements forecast range of 4.6 million to 4.7 million

ounces as higher than expected throughput rates were offset by
belowexpected grades Base metal production benefited from
the better than expected throughput ratc grades and recoveries

resultirg in zinc and lead production which exceeded our

guidance Gold grades lagged managements expectation leading

to actual gold production falling short of guidance

Torrnes milled

8.64 Average silver grade grams

per tonne

Average gold grade grams

per tonne

Average silver recovery 87.1

Silver ounces 5078807

Gold ounces
17600

Copper tonnes 123

Payable ounces of silver 5042779

Cash cost per ounce of silver net of byproduct credits

Cash cost per ounce net of by
products11 7.45

Total cost per ounce net of by

productsirl 1098 195

Capital Expenditures thousands 7621 10936

Ca Is tosts por norma arrd totsl costs nor or rice am rron GAAP
asure on rts Please icier to section Alternative Perfornia rce Norr

AAP Measures tars dctrrleo oncrir it on of tI on mi mu es
cost of ales

2013 VERSUS 2012

While silver production at Alamo Dorado in 1013 declined to

5.1 million ounces from 5.4 million ounces produced in 2012
it remained the Companys largest silver producer Silver

production was impacted as expected by lower silver grades
partially offset by higher throughput rates and recoveries Gold

production of 17600 ounces in 2013 represented 2% decrease

over production levels in 2012 as lower gold grades were largely

overcome by higher throughput rates

Alamo Dorados cash costs per ounce were $7.45 in 2013
48% increase from the 2012 cash costs of $5.05 due to higher

operating costs and significant decline in gold byproduct credits

due to lower gold prices in 2013

Average silver grade grams

pci tonne 352

Average silver recovery 89.9

11.27 996

13574 21700

101 116

036 018

mIt

364011

17966

11/

5345677

5.05
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201 JfRSUS 2013 GUIDANC 2013 VERSUS 2012

Dolores produced 3S milbon ounces of silver and 65230 ounces

of gold from full year of production in 2013 sigr ficantly

higher than silver and gold production for the months that

Pan American owned and operated the mine in 2012 On an

annualized basis the 2013 silver product rate was in line with

that of 2012 despite 2013 production being affected by leach pad

construction midway through the year which hindered efficient

pad loading and leaching However the successful completion of

the extension of pad in June of 2013 and the commissioning

of the first phase of pad on schedule in October 2013 allowed

for uninterrupted stacking and leaching operators throughout

the remainder of the year apart from planned maintenance and

commissioning outages Decreased stacking chroughput was

offset by higher silver grades processed The annualized gold

production rate of 2012 was exceeued 2013 due to higher gold

grades stacked and improved recoveries

Dolores cash costs per ounce were $7 47 in 2013 an 84%

ncrease from the 2012 cash costs of $4 due to higher

operating cost and decline in gold byprod act credits per ounce

resulting frcm lower actual gold prices in 2013

2013 VFRSUS 2013 GUDANF

Silver production was 2% above the top of managements

guidance range of between 25 million and 34 million ounces

result of higher silver grades outweighing tie effect of less ore

tonnes staciced thar anticipated Gold piudusiori was within

managements expected range as better than expected recoveries

040 were off et by lower stacking rates

45 Cash costs for 2013 were $7 47 per ounce of silver 113%

180
above the $225 to $350 per ounce forecast range provided by

managerrerit The main causes for this regative variance were

62 13
significantly

lower gold cred ts than forecasted due to lower gold

434 113 prices together with operating costs that were slightly higher than

anticipated

Capital expenditures at Dolores in 2013 totalled $36

million excluding the kach pad expansions projects and mine

47
optimization projects which was in line with managements

guidance of $370 million Capital expenditures in 2013 at Dolores

were predominantly related to mine operations comprised of

prestripping activities truck rehabilitation nd other mobile

equipment purchases near mine exploratio and other sustaining

infrastruct ire

Alani Do Jos Iver oroductior in 2013 exceeded the top of

isa age eser fore ast range of 48 Ilo to Ilo ounces

the rest It of througnpu re uit war alce our expethtions

Gold produc5on was 1ff above he top of our guidance range

1600 ounce as actua tt oughput rates and gold grides

exceeded expect itiori

Cast costs we ci 10% lowe than he low end of our forecast range

of $8 to $8 50 ocr ounc resul the better than expected

ilvc oduction and higher gold byproduet credits resulting from

stro eger thin expecte gold productio partially offset by lower

ictu gold pr th in ass me

ital xpenditure Al mo tiorado duc ny 2013 totall $7 13

million co apared to mar gements gudar cc of $7 riillon

pred imina itly for pre stripping of the ph sse II pit expansion and

mine quipnient

amine

Aveiag godgrad graIl

Orric

Average dvci err very

48 42

04h

4L7

songs oil ecovr 821

ilvc or ii es
3502522

tld an 65230

lay ibl err of silver 3493166

Casi cOst per ounce of sliver net of by product redlts

tc can erie of by

prrcu

pci ou of

pro
CS

2012

ita riditu tho sand 36159

15 tie hr aipany ratE ihi

nr1 Is Ill 11
Ii

cc or
fl Alt her or oil No

Al Ic lie cl iii in hat ii Cl esr Ill
OSlo ow oct

id o0 Ilion ci nih or

th ill cli pr rhO rd cp tl rr later apiCal

rr tIcl cr3 ee sioi ioectt ed cosrhn thc

SIr atV fir lea
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Average zinc grade

Average silver recovery 8t8

3303595

936

14017

Lead tonries 5842

opper Sonnet 3395

Payable ounces of silver 883758

Casd cost per ounce of silver net of by product credits

Cas cost per ounce net of by

prolucts111 161 1751

fot cost per ounce net of by

products11

Capital Expenditures thousands

tj I- por oe cl it son na ASP
mc sourer cots In ase refer to coCk tn native Performance Nor

GAAl Mcasures for detailcd noons lia0ou of thee non asures to our cost

of saltis

2013 VERSUS 2012

In 2013 mill throughput at Huaron ncr eased by 17% relative to

2012 partially offset by slightly lower silver grades processed

resulting in silver production that rose by 14% year-on year

Base metal and gold production also rose at Huaron on higher

throughput rates and recoveries

Cash costs at Huaron decreased by 17% in 2013 to $14.61 per

ounce Cash costs benefited from higher silver production and

rise in by-product credits as higher production of all by-product

metals were only partially offset by lower by-product metal prices

in 2013

2013 VERSUS 2013 GUIDANCE

Silve production in 2013 was 12% above the high end of

managements guidance of between 2.85 million and 95 million

ounces Throughput rates grades and recoveries positively

outpsrrformed managements expectatons and the result was

that oroduction of all base metals was above managements

guidince

The actual cash costs in 2013 were 279t better than the bottom

of our forecast range of $20 to $22 per ounce This positive

performance was attributable to better than expected silver

production and higher by-product cred ts driven by higher

quantities of by-product metals produced that were partially

offsei by lower metal prices

Capital expenditures at Huaron during 1013 totalled $15 million

compared to our forecast of $20.0 million as several discretionary

capital projects were rationalized in response to lower metal

prices Capital expenditures were primarily to complete

significant tailings dam expansion project initiated in 2012 to

purchase and overhaul mobile mine equipment and to continue

near-mine exploration

Payable ounces of silver 2049487 1776313

Cash cost per ounce of sliver net of by product credits

Cash cost per ounce net of by

products 1756 23.48

total cost per ounce net of by

products111

Capital Expenditures1 thousands

Production anti cost fituros arc for Pair Anroricarr5 92.1 sham only

.5 as costs ounce arid total toots
per ou are no tAAP

measurements Please refer to section Alterriativc Performarroc Nor

tAAP Measors for detailed reconciliation of lOose asuics to ocr os

sairm

Sustkrng capital expenditures exclcidrnp $64 rillicrni ri 201 of spit

incurred at the Morocoofra P100 tao disnios in tlr soctrun Altcrrranv

Performance lior AAP Mesues

2013 VERSUS 2012

Morocochas 2013 silver production increased to 2.4 million

ounces or 15% as compared to 2012 due to increased silver

grades combined with higher throughput rates and recoveries

Base metal production also benefited from higher grades

throughput rates and recoveries resulting in increased

production particularly of ainc arid copper

Cash costs at Morococha decreased by 25% in 2013 to $17.56

per ounce of silver due mainly to substantially higher by product

credits and higher silver production while holding operating costs

steady for 2013 compared to 2012 The increase in by product

credits was driven by higher quantities of by product metals

produced that were partially
offset by lower metal prices

Huaron mine

Avt rage silver gradegrams

per tonne 158 162

2625

%ilvr ounces

Gold ounces

lin tones

Morocoeha mine

81.7

3909890

655

11824

Average silver grade grams per

4727 tonne

2251
Average zinc grade 32

2506481
Average silver recovery 879

149 143

1865 2102

15474 22935

28

84

Silvor ounces 2396767 2081126

Gold ounces 2650 2840

linc tonnes 15165 192%

Lead tonnes 3769 3501

Copper tonnes 2026 1601

1617 2915

18652 20805
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201 VERSUS 2013 CU1DtNC

Iver woc uclion performaicc it Morococh in 2013 was in

ft thc bottorr or of cia agem nt guidance ra ige

nf .8 illi 11 to rirllini cii ic Ac ual gold rc and

copper pr
xluction all excc dccl our guidance ranges while

led production was vithir puidince Act al throughpt rates

Ii htly sh rt iag mi its exp ctations but were

omp isat by rr odestly bette than
cxi

ect silver grades

md ecovsri Oolc zin ii opper 3rades and recoveries all

exce 2cd managements for ists intl ire than offset the lower

thar anticipa ed throughput ates

ual cast osts in wer 14% lower th the bottom end of

ur fort cis ang of $2030 to 22 23 pci arce due primarily to

mctua byp oduct credits beiny higher fan expected

ft ining capital ex ncJiture at Mo oco ha aunng 2uz tocailed

Cl 1lioicomparec tomarlagerl ntsguidanceof $15.0

lion The majority of th ip tal caper ditures ir 2013 were

fo th win developri and included ramp advances md

ertilatol syster exp nsior werhaul and replacements of

er ii iged mobilc eqi ioment and eammine exploration

act vOles

3614290

Ca cost per ounce of silver let of by product credits

tO ci tpm oun enctrfby

It alcott unceie cObs

Piodi
1807

pit xpe iii turc iou nil 165

pi to ire

IC..i rft NC

to rr to cr cist

20 VERSUS 201

lr 33 Vicnte ailve production mci ased by 6% ompared

to du tc ighei throughout rates id an inc ease

to ovens Zinc production ire oved by 26% and lead production

by on accour of tie tE iughput icrias in c.omhinatio

If ui ides ar rec er .s

Cash costs at San Vicente decreased by 18% to $13 Si in 2013

as cc mpuired to the previous year The lower cash costs in 2013

re ulted from the combined effect of lower operating costs higher

by product credits and an increase in silver production The lower

operating costs were primarily driven by decline in royalties

paid which were highly correlated to the lower metal prices

ealized in 2013 Higher by.product zinc and lead revenues were

resu of inici eased production of those metals

2013 VERSUS 201 GUIDANCE

Silver production attributable to Pan American in 2013 of

million ounces was 3% over managements fcrecast range of

75 million to 3.85 mOron ounces as silver recoveries exceeded

expectations Both actual zinc and cad production were

within managements guidance as slightly better than expected

icoveries offsct mall shortfalls in xpected grades

Actual cash costs of $13 per ounce of silver were 10% below

nanagemerts forecast range of $17 to $18.00 per ounce due

to lower than expected operating costs as actual oyalties were

well below managements expectations

apital expenditures at San Vicente during 2013 totalled $8

million which was below managements forecast of $11 million

due to capital rationing initiatives Capital spcnding in 2013 was

primarily for mine development underground mobile equipment

mainte aricr and exploration

60870

Payable nies of silver 3137720 025285

Cash cost per ounce of sbver net of by produ credits

Total cost pci ounce net of by

prickit 1943 Ii 73

capital Expenditures thousands 12002 15858

ts pa on to arid otal cots otort are or OAA
Cr CU íí mutt Pleate raft to tier Air flatly crier mince No

sr Mr as for rI JuN recoIn ninut or thesc it oar en lur en

11 In

San Vrc.cante mine

Moncrntaal Espejo mine

412

Ave egc snlver mclvi 007

3967263 1260

4918

Average sfvcr grade grams per

tcnne 150 110

201 394

3190083 Averagi aniver rrcovery 913

1531 189

Average gold ecov ry

Silver on riccr

934

3144008

8911

94

632550

ash coat per ounce net of by

cii products 855 14 65
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2013 VERSUS 2012

Silver production at the Manantial Espejo mine in 2013 was 3.1

million ounces 13% decrease from the production level in 2012

This decrease was the result of 12% decline in grades and 2%

decrease in throughput offset by similar increase in recoveries

from the previous year Gold production jumped significantly by

40% in 2013 due to higher gold grades and recoveries in line with

the mine plan

In 2013 cash costs at Manantial Espejo decreased to $8.55 per

ounce of silver 42 below 2012 cash costs of $14 65 per ounce

The main dnvers of the decrease in cash costs were 12/

redui tion in operating costs together with 16% lift in by product

gold credits The lower operating costs were mainly due to lower

royalty expenses cost cutting initiative and the devaluation of the

local currency offset by high sustained inflation rates in Argentina

ET VL MN
ATE

The following table reflects the amounts spent at each of Pan

Americans significant projects in 2013 as compared to 2012 and

2011 Our accounting policies determine what portion of the

amounts spent at our projects is capitalized and what portion is

expensed during the period
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OVERVIEW 1013 FINANCIAL RESULTS

icy ar ended ecc iber 2013 tf Company snot

in ome and rash flow from operation decreased from the

ompatable ucriod in 201 he results wrie primanly due to

low real meta prices ir cally offset by higher qu intities

met Is sold lr dditton write downs of the Dolores mine

ar i5 in ited goodwill reco dud tfe second and fourth

quartei of 2013 due gely the th cli se in precious notal

or furthermore eforms to Mexicar fIxes were enacted

the fourth ou resu ting charge to noncash furred

ast

the following table sets out selected quartetly results for the past

twelve quarters which are stated ii thousands of USD except for

the per share amounts The dominant factoi affecting results in

the quarters preserted below is volatility of icetal prices realized

industry wide cost pressures and the timing of the sales of

production which varies with the tIming of shipments Beginning

in the second quarter of 2012 results include the Dolores mine

which was acquired with the completion of the Minefinders

acquisition on March 30 2012 The fourth quarter of 2012

included p0rtial write down of the fsaeidaci project discussed

further in the section that follows

esh flow fr sri proc ing ectiviti

Cash div dc rids cld pci har

ihn fin nuis/ info rustier

fit lat ibutablin shirchold equity1

194625

113012

.110144

no 01 192 CO 04

ti ring

ributabi hr mm sforth

44 attrlbut ii 10

20148

40044

13

10

32251

125

tie in loss ocr nines sh civ

Diluted loss erring pot shei

ash flow tons ooera ir mctiv tic

ash dividends paid per shqre

he fnon rlnfnrroc 001

tel sets

lotal long tcrm finani.rm Ii hi itre

Total etthibutable sharrholdcrs cqcity

180 5391

108531

123

469

02

1.5.

12158

000

009

40730

125

293611

84861

94

1144

46156

012S

445851

49501

294

296L

119.600

050

161456

110088

2182 334j

22.8819

101890

Attrthc tibui los mom nm ig for th ferloct
49884

Adusted ttrib mtablc rings lo forth nodtm 68 181

Gas ai nm
psi sire 41

Os

3739

003/

51 611

16920

8108

14

lo

5201

003/a

65440

22582

3/548

is

19501

006

85091

31 185

54110

18

81 603

00

301944

/8200

16854/

56

$9

193 305

81/5

117



total assets

Total long term financial liabilities

.1 lvi so operating rniogs uriadus ed red adjustd attnbutable earnings and basic rod diluted
carninigs per sham forth put ters tried Jr rre 30

pt mber 30 December 31 2012 and the ear ended December It 2011 have been recast for the finalization of the Mincfimrd rs pot hose price

allocahon tfss recast also affected total asets and total attributable shareholdors equity as at December 31 1012 herders fiould refer to Notc of thc

It dited oiisolidatrd iriaiicial Statenierits for full detaiN of the recast resufts

$osted mttributable earnings for the period is an alternaflve porformance measure Please refer tc the csctrorr Alti native erforrnarrce Nor GAAP
Mt asures of this MDA for calculation of adjusted earnings for the period

If cad misted alt ibiitabk foss for re thrrc months ended lone 30 2013 has been revised to $16 BSIfronr th amount previously presrnte

101/1 In Q2 Di3 the Company added liackll 32 million of net realizable value cif eiventory writc downs 51.5 rrriflior net tf tOe rpplmcah to rertain

oore srrd stcrkp moo As dore was sold she norr ial ccrurse of business during ct ulo and parDsl reveoal ot the
stockpile was reccgrezcd iii

20 the Conrp ely longer presents tin ems as rr adjusting item

Imluted ciii irmgs per lvi ire for tIme rice nor his end Mar 31 1013 has bee evised tci bO per sfia front tho stunt pmcsvrc usly pr semrted

lv PC 86 per share prof enly effect th ect under ICRS of thc diluhve share porch roe warrants which are classified as Iiabimty

totil attributable shareholders equrtyini

ihe following graph illustrates the key actors leading to the change from net earnings in the year ended December 31 2012 to the net

loss incurred in 2013 Further analysis of the key factors and the changes is discussed in the section that follows
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Earning It 2013 cre rigatrvt $4498 mUion compared to earnngs of $184 milhon 2012 and basic ass per share for 2013

of 91 ompared to ear togs of $0 Isis pcr share to 201 Two key reasons behtnd the decrease to earnings to 2013 were that the

or ma ecorded of tax ooncash write downs of $4204 million pnmartly related to the Dolores mtne and assoctated goodwill

12 npatr nt iarge of $130 mtllton related to Navtdad in ldttion to an $86 million deferred tax adjusl mont artstng from

the to redo non of Msx ca tax rcfor Company bottom lme benefited from increases tn overall quantities of most metals sold

is cte th abk abov but was offset by decreases tn the realtzed meta prices rec eived Htgher cos of sales in 2013 whtch

iuudc oduction cost deprwatior and amortization and royalty expense pr siar ly reflected an tncrcase the quantities sold

wtth op srating co pr ssur ore than offset by cost reduction benefits realtzed

ie ollo vt ig table htghltghts 11 key toil that affected net tocome loss year over year

Net earnIngs for lOU

is is sales volume

Dru as discomotixexpro

ccas exploration expcnsc

Net other Items

xOt cc pat ccr ital im airmnl

is id ax mpact of Msxicar ax efotos

Ii rca cd prc
ductlon duct licrea ductiorl

lnsreased ariortisaton

Nctchtiget IX

Invartory adlust is ott ton scat able vilue

Net loss for 2013

Re erue 2013 Is824 ti tilion an 11% discrease from

vou for 2012 of 5928 millton liii decrease was drtven by

f193 itilto put anance from lower metal prices roaluzed for

most nstals tnclust of gative prtce and quantity adjustments

ir 013 of 525 mdl ti of set by $1s8 mullton posttive volume

to fro ii htgher quantttue rnetstls sold

Mi uIt car tang earrings were i31S mtl to to 2013 decrease

of 51% fro the 5303 mrllton enerated to 2012 fht decrease

result fr th lower itive iu note above and an tncrease

to cos sales by $68 ri lift whtch pnmartiy reflected higher

1$ II 18355

45359

212/1

8968

13201911

253494

86800

32451

31504

120 14

12967

volumes sold Muon operating earn ngs are equal to revenue less

cost of sales whuch ts considered to be substantially the same

as gross margin Production costs neluded wrttedowns of tn

process toventory to net realtzable vulue of 130 mtllioo whtch

was composed of writedown of $10 million to heap leach

tnveotortes at Dolores and $2 mtllion to dore tnventory also at

Dolores

Net writedowns of mining assets and goodwill of $540 mtllioo

ore tax $4204 mtllion net of tax were recorded to 2013 as non
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cash charges primarily related to the Dolores mine and associated for this project The Companys key assumptsons were information

goodwill arising upon the acquisition of Minefinders in 2012

The .harp declines in metal prices that occurred in the quarter

ended June 30 2013 caused the Company to conclude that

thess were significant enough to constitute an indication of

impeirment triggering impairment testing as per the Companys

accounting policies and applicable accounting standards In

addition to the recent metal price dccl nes the valuation models

also ncorporated the potential implen entation of new Mexican

taxes Accordingly an impairment charge of $187.5 million net

of ta $138.6 million before tax comprised of goodwill of $184.7

million and non-current assets of $2.8 million was determined to

be appropriate in the second quarter of 2013

Duo to the sustained decrease in metal prices that began during

the second quarter of 2013 and continued through the balance of

the year during the fourth quarter of 2013 the Company lowered

the lver and gold prices assumed in it reserve and resource

estimates and its life of mine cash flow models and concluded

that these changes constituted further indication of impairment

Based on the Companys assessment at December 31 2013 of the

recoverable amounts of its mineral properties determined on

fair value less costs to sell basis the Company concluded that

further impairment charge was required for the Dolores mine As

result the Company recorded an impairment charge of $218.1

million net of tax $336.8 million before tax which was allocated

pro-rata amongst the Dolores mineral property $194.6 million

exploatmon and evaluation property $116 million and property

plant and equipment assets $26.1 million For the purposes of

this impairment review the Companys key assumptions included

the most current information on operat ng and capital costs

long term silver price of $22 per ounce long term gold price

of $1300 per ounce the effects of the Mexican tax reforms

that were substantively enacted in the fourth quarter and risk

adjusted project specific discount rate of 6% The Company used

median of analysts consensus pricing for the first four years

of its economic modeling for impairment purposes which had

further deteriorated since June 30 2013 At December 31 2013

the Cc mpeny determined that the carry rig
value related to the

Dolores mine of approximately $723 niillion net of associated

deferred tax liabilities was greater than its recoverable amount of

$505 miliion

At June 30 2013 the Company reclassified certain exploration

assets from assets held for sale to exploration and evaluation

property which required assessment of heir carrying amounts

based on fair value less costs to sell ThEse assets were classified

as held for sale in the first quarter of 2013 when the Company

entered into an agreement to potentiallt dispose of them and

recorded an impairment charge of $18.3 million At June 30

2013 it was determined that the estimated recoverable value

of the ion-current assets on fair value ess costs to sell basis

requirrd an impairment recovery of $3.4 million and brought the

impairment charge for these properties to approximately $14

million as of June 30 2013

The 2012 impairment charge of $100.0 rr illion with nil tax effect

related to the Navidad project in Argentina The impairment was

result of the deterioration in economic conditions in Argentina

including rampant inflation increasing capital and operating costs

government imposed capital restrictions and the nationalization

of certain petroleum assets in 2012 These factors resulted in

higher Jiscount rates used in the companys impairment testing

on operating and capital costs long term silver price of $25

per ounce along with long term forecast base metal prices

probability weighted range of possible outcomes related to

the timing of the start of construction taxation regulatory and

economic risks including range of possible future exchange
rates between the USD and the Argentine peso ARG ranging

from 45 to 105 ARS/USD and risk adjusted project specific

discount rate of 12 5% It was determined that the estimated

recoverable value of the Navidad project on fair value less costs

to sell FVLCTS was below its carrying value and as result an

impairment charge of $100.0 million was recorded at December

31 2012 The Company concluded that as at December 31 2013

there was no further impairment or reversal of impairment to be

recorded

Key assumptions and sensftivty

The metal prices used to calculate the recoverable amounts at

December 31 2013 are based on analysts consensus prices and

the Companys long term reserve prices and are summarized in

the following table

Gold Price $/oz

$22.43

If

Silver Price

Zinc Pric $/DMT

Lead Price $/DMI

$1338

$2184

$2205

$2200

$1300

$1850

$1950

$25.00

$1350

$1850

$1150

Metal prices used at June 30 2013

Silver Price $/oz $26.19

old Pore $/oz $1508

Zinc Price $/DMT $2238

teed Price $/OML $2221

Metal prices used at December 31 2012

Silver Price $/cz $30.38

$164/

Zinc Price $/DMT $2289

Lead Prire $/DMI $2213

Gold Price $/oz

$2S.oo

$i 350

$1750

$1850

20 PAN AMERICAN SILVEr CORP



ompiny asses noairment at thr cash-generatmg unit

lrvol whi cor side rd to be individual mine sites

jevelopriont pr oertres discount rates used to present

val mpany fc of minc cash flows are donved from the

Co ipanys weighted averag cost of capital which was calculated

is 8% for 2013 201 8% wi rates apphed to the va bus

es nd projects ngmg frorr 5Q to 5% depending on

th ompa ys assessment of -ountry nsk project nsk and other

ioter tial risks specific to tech GU

key as umptions in do ermining th cverable value of

thu or pany mnr cal uos rti are metal prices operating

an cap tal cost fore gn ange rates and discount ates At

Lccembe lot the tom uny performed ensitivity analysis

or ky assumption th it as umed negative 10% ch inge for

cc Ii md vdual as ur lotio while holding the other assumptions

com star ide certain such scenarios the carrying value

ft cc mpany mine ii os orb associated with the Alamo

lent snd thu Mar antral Ispe mrn may cxc eed their

ecoverab ire for pt rooses of hr impairmen test

tc Alec io Do ad no ether decrease in the silver pnce

of 2ff ci rca thc gold cc of 3% an increase operating

cr ts 2ff or an appreciation of the Mexican peso of 5% would

dcc reasc ir thL grovis on income taxes was prim irily

no iseqaci cc of dc creased taxable earnings generated at

operations ii we the cifects of van us temporary and

rr snent diffr es iown in tI tab below Those result

cf liv tax rat that var coimside ably fro ii ti-c comparable

ri fror thc mount hat would rcsult from applying

ti- tidran tderal nd viicial statutory in ome tax rates

to circe rgs
beforc ricer ic ta es he main factors which have

fected th effectiv tax rates for the yer ended December31

20 nfl the cori rablc pe rod of 201 wert the non taxable

in isolation cause the estimated recoverable amount to be equal

to the carrying value of 57 million 2012$569 million At

Decembe 31 2012 none of these facto if negatively affected

by 10% would have caused the carrying value to equal or exceed

the recov -cable value

For the Manantial Espejo mine either decrease in the silver or

gold pr cc of 7% or an increase in operating costs of 4% would

in isolation cause the estimated recoverable amount to be equal

to the carrying value of 160 million 2012 $146 million At

December 31 2012 none of these factors if negatively affected

by 10% would have causedthe carrying value to equal or exceed

the recoverab value

In the case of the Dolores mine the Navidad project and certain

non core exploration properties which all have had their carrying

values adiusted to fair value less cost to sell through impairment

charges modest decrease in any on key assumption would

reduce the recoverable amount below the carrying amount as

there is only thin margin between the two

Income taxes for 2013 wore $16 rnillicn $18 niillion

decrease from the $95 mhlion in ome tax orovision recorded in

2012 and were comprised of currert and deferred income taxes

as follow

portion of the unrealized gains on thc Company derivatives

foreign income tax rate differentials additional mining taxes paid

and withholding taxes paid on payments from foreign subsidiaries

In addition to the non cash impairment charge the Company

took on its Dolores assets the Company recorded the deferred

tax impact of the Mexiuan corporte namc tax rate increas

and new special mining duty which were substantively iacted

in 2013 The Company expects that these and other factors will

continue to cause volatility
in effective tax rites in the future

UT et CS

rs iii ccxc is irs CcU of the curr It ycar
54365

AcJu til nit ro 05 med thr cur cOt ar with respmrt to prior yecra
1326 7193

r5j9 101050

Delco- ci taxes

DiEt ml fix cop iso recogneod in the ur year
865 965

Ac justice
its rctognio

ci intl su rent .r with espect to prior years
523 45231

stmcnts to cit cci tax attributahl to cI anges in tax atm and laws 86825

Redocto- in doff crc tax liabilities due to lax impact of impairment of property plar
and eqwpment 119800

isd stiuo eu dt Citt du ott ipaC of raiubie vli chcrge to neon ore 4571

38934 54881

ro on for Inc me tax
16 157 95562
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Loss income before taxes 429089 113917

Statutory tax rate

Income tax recovery expense based on above rates

Increase decrease due to

Non deductible expenses

Change in net deferred tax assets not reognized

Non taxable unrealized gain on deirvative financial instruments warrants and

convertible notes

Foreign tax rate differences

Efect of other taxes paid mining and thholding

Change in net deferred tax assets not re ognized for exploration expenses

Non deductible foreign exchange gain loss

Impairment charges

Impact of Mexican tax reform

Cther

Effe53ive tax rate

25 75%

110490

5198

3598

4304

22164

14451

2042

242

41166

86825

193

16757

3.91%

26.00%

43479

5110

5145

6040

6148

9418

2111

2649

35003

1323

96562

The 20t3 sttutor come tax rates ri tie uuntrrus that the Corrrparry has op rations in rr as follow Argr Ti ra 35% Bolrvra 2534 Mesrc 9054

30/

ii
Jj rrruu bx uLa5 ft 539 th 530 Furclrse Fre AtO 53 kr tie Acursri 536 infsndcrs

Stalement of Cash Flows

Cash flow from operations generated $119.6 million in 2013

38% decrease from the $193.3 million generated year ago

large part of the decrease in cash flow from operations resulted

from the decrease in cash mine operating earnings as discussed

previously partly offset by less payment for income taxes In

2013 $98.0 million was paid in cash income taxes compared to

$162.3 million paid in 2012 largely as result of higher taxable

income generated in 2012 Cash income tax payments have

lagged effect and as such portion of 2013 taxes paid related to

the high operating income of 2012 Changes in noncash working

capital used $1.7 million compared to $11.1 million used in 2012

Investing activities used $125.3 million in 2013 inclusive of $19.9

million generated from net short53erm investment liquidations and

$13 million cash generated by proceeds of asset dispositions

The balance of investing activities consisted primarily of spending

$159 million on capital at the Companys mines and projects as

described in the 2013 Operational Pereormance section above

Investing activities used $39.3 million ir 2012 inclusive of $30.4

miliion generated from net short53erm investment liquidatinnc

and $86.5 million in net cash acquired in the acquisition of

Minefinders Capital at the Companys mines and projects in 2012

used $159.9 million similar to 2013

Iinancing activities in 2013 used $90.2 million whereas financing

activities in 2012 used $70.8 million Cash used in financing

activities in 2013 consisted of $75.8 million paid as dividends to

shareholders $6.7 million used in the share buyback program

and $30.2 million in repayments of construction and equipment

leases which was offset by $23.5 million received as proceeds in

Argentine pesos from short term bank loan received by one

of the Companys subsidiaries for short term cash management

purposes and mitigating exposure to foreign exchange risk

In 2012 the $70 million in cash used in financing activities

consisted primarily of $41.7 million used for the share buy back

program $24.9 million in dividend payments to our shareholders

and $6 million repaid to construction and equipment leases

which was offset by $3.2 million in proceeds from the exercising of

options and warrants

Income Statement Q4 2013

The following table reflects the metal prices that the Company

realized and tee quantities of metal sold during each respective

period
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Stateirent of Cash Flows Q4 2013

Cast flow from operations ge rated $46 million in 04 2013

down oi hc $81 million gcnrated one yea ago The change

Iarg ty explained by the cia se in cash mine operata i$

di nings excluding no cash preciatio and amortization

an Ito lesser degree the fiang in working capital Changes in

no cac working ca ital aera ed $214 Ilion compared with

wo trig capital usinp $2 cull on in 04 20 The net ion cisla

working capital generated ii 0/ 2013 consisted primarily of

dc raise in cour tsr cc ivable and prepaids of 510.8 million

rease account oayable nd accrued liabilities $8

oillion nd decre is in inve aries $2 million Ir 042012

Ci ret wo king capita used an aggregate of various largely

iff char timing differences in he normal course of op rations

Cash flow fror investing activities used $13 million in 04

2013 Tb consisted primarily of $41 million in liquidations

of stiorc on nvasaments dnd an aggiagdte of 433.7 million ira

captal investments at the operating rr ines mv sting activities

ira 14 of 2012 used $140 million which consisted primarily of

$77 milion in the purchase of short term investments ai an

additional $66 mi lion in capital investments at the operating

mines

Financing activitnes in 04 2013 used $11 rriillion and

consisted prirranly of $189 ml br in divide ad payments to

our shareholders offset by $4 million in proceeds necervd

from short term bank loan received by one of the Company

subsidiaries for sho term cash management purposes and

mitigatri5 exposure to foreign exchaage isk 14 of 2012

financing activities used $20 million and consisted primarily

of $10.1 million used for the share buyback program and 57

mullion dividend payments to our shareholders

INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT
INCOME
At the end of cOM cash plus short ten ii investments were $422.2

million $542 million at December 31 2012 described in the

Liquidity Positiarisection below

Pan Anae CdiiS investffleflt eubjectivas fun its casH balances aic to

preserve capital to provide liquidity and to maximize return The

Companys strategy to achieve these objectives is to invest excess

cash balances in portfolio cf primarily fixed income instruments

with specified credit rating targets established by the Board of

Directors arid by diversifying the currencies in which it maintains

its cash balances

Investment ncome for the year ended Decenaber 31 2013

tctalled $3.1 million 2012 46 ho and Co asisted mainly

of interest income and net gains from the sales of the securities

within the Companys short term investment portfolio

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE
EXPENSE

General and administrative costs includnug share based

compensation decreased by 15% in 2013 to 517 million 2012

$20.8 mit ion This decrease was primarily as result of the cost

reduction initiatives adopted by the Comoany in response to the

educed mc etal price environment

Our 2014 general and administrative costs including share based

compensation are expected to increase slightly
from our 2013

ievel to approx mately $19.6 million his figure is subject to
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fluctuations in the Canadian doUar CAD to USD exchange rate as well as the Companys ability to allocate certain head office costs

that dre directly attributable to operating subsidiaries

The following table compares our general and administrative forecast for 2014 against the general and administrative costs incurred

over he previous two years as well as on per ounce of silver produced basis nonGAAP measure

iii iurir ii 11U rivrw
2014 2013

Genera and administrative costs DOOs of USD 19600

Silver production in OOOs of ounces 262501

General and admitiistrative costs per silver ounce produced121 15

orecast nile production at the rn point of the guidam gwen in this MDA forth Csinpany oxintirig operations

deneral and administrative costs per silve ounce produ ed non GAAP measure used by the Company tI access rho am ci it of goocral

edwin stratve costs clause to production It is calculated as geneial and administranve costs dividod by total ounces of silver produchon in the perlo

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended December 31 213 company indirectly

owned by trust of which director of he Company Robert

Pirooz is beneficiary was paid $0.4 Ilion 2012 $0.3 million

for co isulting services charged to general and administrative

costs Similarly at December 31 2013 en accrual was recorded

for coisulting services from the same individual under the same

arrangement for nominal amount 2012 nominal amount

These transactions are in the normal course of operations and

are measured at the exchange amount Nhich is the amount of

consideration established and agreed to by the parties

The remuneration of directors and othei members of key

management personnel during the year was as follows

EXPLORATION AND PROJECT
DEVELOPMENT
Exploration and project development expenses in 2013 were

$15 million compared to $36.7 million ncurred in 2012 The

expenses incurred in 2013 were reduced from the prior year levels

given tie decline in metal prices Exploration activities in 2013

focused on greenfield exploration in the dcinity of our existing

mines

Our greenfield exploration activities in 214 are expected to cost

approx.mately $15.8 million which will be expensed Greenfield

exploration drilling will again be focused the
vicinity of our

current operations and only few select additional prolects will

attract expenditures

The 20.t3 nearmine exploration programs were successful at

replacing 119% of the 2013 contained silver ounces mined by

adding 64 million ounces to the proven and probable mineral

reserves having completed nearly 150 kilometers of diamond

drilling at the operating mines at cost of $16.3 million most of

which was capitalized

Our neammine exploration program will continue to be very

active in 2014 with approximately 106 km of
drilling planned

The cost of these programs is included as part of each mines

capital budget exploration and resource to reserve conversion

drilling or included in its operating costs infill drilling The

total amount expected to be spent on this
drilling in 2014 is

approximately $139 million The main objective of this program is

to replace reserves and resources mined at our sites and as such

expenditures related to this program will be capitalized The main

targets for these reserve additions include the Amolillo and NC

zones at La Colorada Morro Solar at Morococha Tapada and San

Narciso at Huaron Maria and Melissa at Manantial Espejo and

LitoralR2 at San Vicente Inferred resources will also be defined

for future upgrade to reserves at each operation At Dolores the

south zone will be upgraded to indicated the confidence level to

be converted to reserves once economic viability is demonstrated

and the far south extension of the two main structures will be

tested at wide spacing

LIQUIDITY POSITION

The Companys cash balance at December 31 2013 was $249.9

million which was decrease of $96.3 million from the balance

at December 31 2012 The balance of the Companys short.term

investments at December 31 2013 was $172.8 million decrease

of $23.3 million from year ago The decrease in net cash and

short term investments in 2013 resulted primarily from capital

expenditures on property plant and equipment the payment
of dividends to our shareholders and the cash utilized to repay

construction leases that outpaced cash generated by operating

activities proceeds from short term loans and proceeds from the

sales of assets

The Company does not own any assetbacked commercial paper
or other similar known atrisk investments in its investment

portfolio

Working capital at December 31 2013 was $689.0 rriillion

decrease of $74 million from the prior yeamends working capital

of $764.0 million The decrease in working capital was due to the

decrease in cash and short4erm investments described above

decrease in accounts receivable of $19.8 million and an increase

in loans payable of $20.1 million These items were partially offset

by change in net taxes payable of $44.9 million decrease in

accounts payables current portion of leases and provisions of

11596

25959

68

2012

20790

25075

0.83
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this MOA for rro detailed description of the sustaining

caoital expenditures planr ed foi each mine in 2814 The
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ne mpact of mat an ml the ouipdily fiuiaro p0srto1
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CAPLIAL RESOURCES

ta attributable hareholder equity at December 2013 was

it %on decrea of $527 rriillion troll December

31 2012 crim irily sul at the let loss incurred in the

urr nt year dividends paid and the share repurchase and

canellatio progrmnm at Deombr 31 2013 the Company

ri pprr itt ly IS million corn co hares outstanding for

hare capital halar cc of $2 952 million December 31 2812

ii II and 300 Ilion the ha ic weighted average

mber if com eon shares outstanding was 151 millio land

3101 riillion for thc yea se ided Derembe 31 2013 and 2012

spectively Ihe in reas in 013 was due to the shires issued as

consideration the nehnders acquisition on March 30 2812

Or No Them 28 2013 the Co ripany announced that the Toronto

tock ix ha ige th TSX at pterl
the Companys notice of its

rntc ttio mike an rrra ourse issuer NCIB to purchase

up to 535 of common shares mc presenting up to 5% of

ii Sm nt sud ar outstanding sh tres The period of the

begar ecrnhc 2013 and wil continue urrtrl December

014 an arlit date shc the Corlp my complete ts

put iase IhisistleCo ipa mysthird con ecutiveNClBprog am

wve ru share tam bee report based undei this program

urtil he date of ti MDA Under the Company previous

program hit ended on ptember 2013 th Company acquired

Iota of 101 900 of cor mon sir ires at in average price of

51 415 800 of such res being purchased in th calendar

201 Since traCing
share buy backs in 2011 the Company

as acqu red Ind ir tIled ipproximately million of its shares

to tha pursuant to NOB rquired to be made on the

up ma ket tI ough the fm ii ties ot the TSX and the NASDAQ

at thom rket icr th tin of acqui ition of any common

stares and in ordanc tho rul aid policies of the 151

id N4SDPQ and apolicebl securities law Pan American is not

bligated tc caIro my to the rurchases under the program All

omrr on harts acquir bytli Core parry under the share buy

back programs hay been anrelled and purchases were funded

it of an Amerk sw rkmng capital

Air trican maiimtiins he NOB bec use in he opinion of its

Sam Drecto he nmarkrt price of its common sha as from

cm to rme nay fully rofloct thc underlying value of its

mining operations properties and future growth prospects The

Company believes that in such circumstances the outstanding

comrrion shares represent an appealing investment for Pan

American since portion of the Companys excess cash generated

on an annual basis can be invested for an attractive risk adjusted

return on capital through the share buy back program

opy of the Companys notice of its intention to make NCIB

tiled with the TSX can be obtained from the Corporate Secretary of

Parr Americar without charge

As at Din ember 31 2013 the Company had approximately

million stock options outstanding with exercise prices in the range

CAD $11 49 to CAD $40 22 and weighted average life of 52

months Approximately 1.0 million of the stock options were

vested arid exercisable at December 31 2813 with an average

weighted exercise arice of $239O per share Additionally as

described in the December 31 2813 audited ftrancial statements

in the note entitled Acquisition and Divestiture and Long Term

Debt Notes ca and 18 respectively in the consolidated audited

financial statements the Company has outstanding convertible

no es associated with the Mineftnders acquisition that could resul

in the issuance of variable amount of common shares

The following table sets out the common shares warrants and

options outstanding as at the date of this MDA

The warrants noted were all issued as part of the Aquiline

acquisition in December of 2009 and expire in December 2014

with an exercise price of CAD $35 00

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

From tide to time Pan 4mcrican mitigates the price risk

associated th its base metal production by committing some

of its future production under forward sales or option contracts

However at December 31 2013 the Company had no metal

under contract At Decembem 31 2812 the Company had zinc

option eortracts for 7500 tonries with floor and cap strike prices

assurir settlement between $2008 and $2200 per tonrme or that

quantity of zinc that were settled iionthly between January and

December of 2013

part of the Companys operating arid capital expenditures is

denominated in local currencies other than the USD These

expenditures are exposed to fluctuations in 1158 exchange rates

dative Cu the local currencies From time to time the Company

mitigates part of this currency exposure by accumulating local

currencies entering into contracts designed to fix on limit the

Companys exposure to changes in the value 0C local currencies

relative to the USD or assuming liability positions to offset

financial assets subject to currency risk The Company held cash

and short term investments of $156 million in CAD and $6

Common

Warrants

Options

151500294

$18BOS

13973/0
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mill on Mexican pesos at the balance sheet date At December

31 2013 and at the date of this MDA all foreign currency

forward contract positions had been closed out Additionally in

the second and fourth quarters of 20 the Company entered

into short term bank loans in Argentina for proceeds of $18.6

million and $4.9 million These loans are denominated in

Argentine pesos and were drawn for tie purposes of short term

cash management and to partially offset the foreign exchange

exposure of holding local currency denominated financial assets

In response to the sharp decline in silver and gold prices in

the quarter ended June 30 2013 the Company evaluated its

alternatives to mitigate the financial risk of further price declines

The Company decided it was appropriate to protect portion

of itS precious metal production associated with its higher cost

Peruvian and Argentine operations ag0inst the potential of further

price eroaion As such during July 2013 the Company entered

into orward contracts of up to one year for up to 25% of its silver

and oold production contracting for the sale of 5.3 million ounces

of silaer and 24000 ounces of gold

On Septe iber 10 2013 the Company decided to accelerate the

closing out of its outstanding silver and gold hedges after re

evaluation of the financial risk of further price declines The total

realized loss recognized from closing the Companys silver and

gold hedges in 2013 was $5.1 million At December 31 2013 there

wore no outstanding positions under this program

In aggregate the Company recorded net loss on its forward

contrxts and commodity and foreign currency contracts of $4.6

million in 2013 compared to gain of $0.4 million in 2012

The csrrying value of share purchase warrants and the conversion

feature or convertible notes are at fair zalue while cash accounts

receisable accounts payable and accrued liabilities approximate
their lair value due to the relatively shott periods to maturity of

these financial instruments

The Companys share purchase warrant are classified and

accounted for as financial liabilities and as such are measured at

their fair values with changes in fair yak es reported in the income

statement as gain/loss on derivatives The Company used as its

assumptions for calculating fair value of the 7.8 million warrants

outstanding at December 31 2013 risi free interest rate of

1.0% expected stock price volatility of 46.8% expected life of

093 yiars expiry in December 2014 expected dividend yield

of 4.0% quoted market price of the Cempanys shares on the

ISX of $12 41 an exchange rate of CAD to USD of 0.94 and an

exercise price of CAD $35 per share The change in the valuation

of these share purchase warrants creates permanent difference

for tax purposes and results in signrfrcan volatility of our effective

tax rat

The conversion feature of the convertible notes acquired in the

Minefinders transaction is carried at fair value and is adjusted

each period The Company has the
right to pay all or part of the

liabilitt associated with the Companys outstanding convertible

notes ii cash on the conversion date Accordingly the Company
classifies the convertible notes as finanial liability with an

embedded derivative The financial
liability and embedded

derivatve were recognized initially at their respective fair values

The embedded derivative is now recognh ed at fair value with

changes in fair value reflected in profit or loss and the debt

liability component is recognized as amortized cost using the

effective interest method Interest gains nd losses related

to the debt liability component or embedded derivatives are

recognized in profit or loss On conversion the equity instrument

is measured at the carrying value of the
liability component and

the fair value of the derivative component on the conversion date

Assumptions used in the fair value calculation of the embedded
derivative component at December 31 2013 were expected stock

price volatility of 44% expected life of 1.96 years and expected

dividend yield of 4%

During the years ended December 31 2013 and 2012 the

Company recorded gain on the revaluation of the share purchase

warrants and the convertible notes of $16.7 million and $24.2

million respectively

Fair value estimates are made at specific point in time based on
relevant market information and information about the financial

instrument These estimates are subjective in nature and involve

uncertainties and matters of significant judgment and therefore

cannot be determined with precision Changes in assumptions
could

significantly affect the estimates

CLOSURE AND DECOMMISSIONING
COST PROVISION
The estimated future closure and decommissioning costs are

based principally on the requirements of relevant authorities

and the Companys environmental policies The provision is

measured using managements assumptions and estimates for

future cash outflows The Company accrues these costs
initially at

their fair value which are determined by discounting costs using

rates specific to the underlying obligation Upon recognition of

liability for the closure and decommissioning costs the Company
capitalizes these costs to the related mine and amortizes it over

the life of each mine on unit.ofproduction basis except in the

case of exploration projects for which the offset to the
liability

is expensed The accretion of the discount due to the passage
of time is recognized as an increase in the liability and finance

expense

The total inflated and undiscounted amount of estimated cash

flows required to settle the Company estimated future closure

and decommissioning costs is $107 million 2012 $83 million

which has been discounted using discount rates between 4%
and 11% The provision on the statement of financial position

as at December 31 2013 is $41.4 million 2012 $45.6 million

Decommissioning obligations at the Alamo Dorado and Manantial

Espejo mines are estimated to be incurred starting in two to

three years respectively while the remainder of the obligations

are expected to be paid through 2035 or later if mine life is

extended Revisions made to the reclamation obligations in 2013
were primarily result of increased site disturbance from the

ordinary cuurse of operations at the mines as well as revisions

to the estimates based on periodic reviews of closure plans

actual expenditures incurred and concurrent closure activities

completed These obligations will be funded from operating cash

flows reclamation deposits and cash on hand

The accretion of the discount charged to 2013 earnings as

finance expense was $3 million in line with $3.0 million in 2012
Reclamation expenditures incurred during the current year were
down slightly from the previous year at $0.4 million 2012 $0

million
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CONrRACIUAL OMMITMENTS AND CONIINGENCIES
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resulted in $18

million inc ease in fair value allocated to mineral interest

as conipared to the preliminary fair value Retrospective

application of the changes made to the alloration of the purchase

consideration in the first quarter of 2013 decreased retained

earn igs omponent of equity as of December 31 201 arid net

osr Ii aton

srnvontrbie nato

km urc aim tmeo is ports aoc ued for

Ri i_ted share iron

ontnrbution pI

nrtraotu it bioat arm witi
rr aria yuan

363 1286

1631 1631

27



Goodwill has been recognized as result of the requirement to

record deferred tax liability for the difference between the fair

vakes of assets acquired and liabilities assumed over the tax

basas of assets acquired and liabilities assumed None of the

goodwill is deductible for tax purposes

The following tables summarize the flial purchase consideration

the preliminary purchase price allocation reported in the Company
2012 year-end financial statements and the final purchase price

allolation with the applicable recast adjustments made upon
fina ization during the 2013 first quarter

Replacement option award

Fai value of Pan American shares issied

Closure and

decommissioning

provisions 1108801

Lon-terni debt 1496881

ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE
NONGAAP MEASURES

Cash and Total Costs per Ounce of Silve net of by-product

credits

Pan American produces by product metals incidentally to our

silver mining activities For the year ended December 31 2013

sales of silver contributed approximately 64% of our total

revenues while by products were responsible for the remaining

36% We have adopted the practice of calculating the net cost

of producing an ounce of silver our primary payable metal after

deducting revenues gained from incidental by-product production

as performance measure This performance measurement has

been commonly used in the mining industry for many years and

was developed as relatively simple way of comparing the net

production costs of the primary metal for specific period against

the prevailing market price of that metal

To facilitate better understanding of these measures as

calculated by the Company the following table provides the

detailed reconciliation of these measures to the production

costs as reported in the consolidated income statements for the

respective periods

lfl Inc kde cali of million foi ws cal rcceiv of $965 illin dOd

accou its receivable of $11 mi lii ii

Further details related to the Minefindrrs transaction can be

found in Note of the consolidated financial statements

earnings due to an increase in depredation and value of inventory

by $9 million for the year ended December 31 2012

Cash 165413 Cash costs per ounce net of by-product credits are utilized

10 739
extensively in our internal decision making processes We believe

they are useful to investors as these metrics facilitate comparison

________
1088104 on mine by mine basis notwithstanding the unique mix of

1264256 incidental by-product production at each mine of our operations

relative performance on period by period basis and against the

operations of our peers in the silver industry on consistent basis

Net working capital

acquired 333 478 18971 332581

Mineral property

plait and equipment 1045 126 10728 1056054

000dwil 211 292 1123461 198946

5316 lS5641

149685

Defer red tas liabilities 1265275 128011 12680761

1.264286 126ft256
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ii The Dolores mine was acquired with efectrom March 30 2012 and therefore the operahons under Pan Americans ownership are only for the rune

months ended December 31 2012

The Quiruvihca mine was sold too private company effective June 12012
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As di cussed an presented in section 2014 Operating Outlook and 2013 Operating Performance the Company has adopted

the cc rtlng AISCS 35 tI/sAP measure of silver mining company operating performance and the ability to generate cash

low frors operations

\s oar of th AlS OS ii asu sustai 111 capital included while expansionary or acquisition capital referred to by the Company as

tvestrnen capital is tot Inclusion of sus41 img capital only is better measure of capital costs associated with corrent ounces sold

orsnsr investrnei capital trots wf ich benefits will flow to future ounces For the periods under review the below noted items

asociated with the Mo ococha rIo ation proloct Navidad project and Dolores leach pad and offer expansionary expenditurts are
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ADJI SI El EARNINGS AND BASIC ADJUSTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

Adusted eai ning is non tIAAP tie nrc that the Company considers to better reflect normalized earnings as it eliminates items that

cay be volatile from oeriod to period elating to positions which will settle in future periods and items that ar non recurring Certain

to ssc th it or ic ap alk bit period may be adiusted for with ftc Company retroactively presenting comparabl oeriods with

in djustme it for soc items aid corversely items no nger applicable may be removed from the calculation The Company adjusts

ertain items in the period hat they oc rred but does not reverse or otherwise unwind the effect of such items in future periods

the following table shows .a recoriciliaton of adjusted loss and earnings for the fourth quarter and full year 2013 and 2012 to the net

loss iiningo It eai per or

293064 31535 445846 78355

1249 114503 1615 M159l

656 584 922 6124
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56 36 33 118

159401 159915
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RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Company is exposed to many risks in conducting its business

including but not limited to metal price risk as the Company

derives its revenue from the sale of silver zinc lead copper

and gold credit risk in the normal course of dealing with other

companies foreign exchange risk as the Company reports its

financial statements in USD whereas the Company operates

in jurisdictions that utilize other currenc es the inherent risk

of uncertainties in estimating mineral reserves and mineral

resources political risks and environmental risks and risks

related to its relations with employees rhese and other risks are

described in Pan Americans Annual lnfomation Form available

on SEDAR at www.sedar.com Form 40-f filed with the SEC and

the Audited Annual Consolidated Financ al Statements for the

year e.ided December 31 2013 Readers are encouraged to refer

to these documents for more detailed description of some of the

risks id uncertainties inherent to Pan Americans business

Fare ye Jurisdiction Risk

Pan American currently conducts operatons in Peru Mexico

Argentina and Bolivia All of these jurisd ctions are potentially

subject to number of political and ecor omic risks including

those described in the ftllowing section The Company is unable

to determine the impact of these risks on its future financial

position or results of operations and the Companys exploration

development and production activities ii ay be substantially

affected by factors outside of Pan Amerk ans control These

potential factors include but are not limited to royalty and

tax inceases or claims by governmental nodies expropriation

or natianalization foreign exchange controls import and

export regulations cancellation or renegotiation of contracts

and environmental and permitting regulations The Company

currendy has no political risk insurance coverage against these

risks

All of Pan Americars current production and revenue is derived

from its operations in Peru Mexico Argentina and Bolivia As

Pan Americans business is carried on in number of developing

countries it is exposed to number of rhks and uncertainties

including the following expropriation or nationalization without

adequate compensation economic and regulatory instability

military repression and increased likelihood of international

conflicts or aggression possible need to obtain political risk

insurarce and the costs and availability of this and other

insurance unreliable or undeveloped infrastructure labour

unrest lack of availability of skilled labour difficulty obtaining

key equipment and components for equipment regulations

and restrictions with respect to import ar export and currency

controls changing fiscal regimes high rates of inflation the

possibl unilateral cancellation or forced renegotiation of

contracts unanticipated changes to royalty and tax regimes

extreme fluctuations in currency exchange rates volatile local

political and economic developments uncertainty regarding

enforceability of contractual rights difficulty understanding and

complying with the regulatory and legal fiamework respecting

the ow iership and maintenance of mineral properties mines and

mining operations and with respect to permitting violence and

more evalent or stronger organized crime groups terrorism

and hostage taking difficulties enforcing judgments obtained

in Canadian or United States courts againt assets and entities

located outside of those jurisdictions anc increased public health

concerns In most cases the effect of these factors cannot be

accurately predicted

The Companys Mexican operations Alamo Dorado and La

Colorada suffered from armed robberies of dord within the past

three years The Company has instituted number of additional

security measures and more frequent shipping schedule in

response to these incidents The Company has subsequently

renewed its insurance policy to mitigate some of the financial

loss that would result from such criminal activities in the future

however substantial deductible amount would apply to any such

losses in Mexico

In December 2012 the Mexican government introduced changes

to the Federal labour law which made certain amendments to the

law relating to the use of service companies and subcontractors

and the obligations with respect 10 employee benefits These

amendments may have an effect on the distribution of profits to

workers and this could result in additional financial obligations

to the Company At this time the Company is evaluating these

amendments in detail but currently believes that it continues

to be in compliance with the federal labour law and that these

amendments will not result in any new material obligations for

the Company Based on this assessment the Company has not

accrued any amounts for the years ended December 31 2012 or

2013 The Company will continue to monitor developments in

Mexico to assess the potential impact of these amendments

In 2013 the Mexican government introduced various 2014 tax

reforms Amongst other changes the bill proposed deductible

royalty of 7.5% on mine operating income before certain

deductions including amortization and depreciation as well as

0.5% mining duty on mining companies precious metal revenue

In addition the corporate income tax rate is expected to remain at

30% whereas it was previously forecast to be reduced to 28% by

2015 The Company has evaluated the effects of the tax reforms

on our future cash flows and future earnings and recorded

deferred tax charge of $86 million in the fourth quarter of 2013

in addition to incorporating the impact of the tax returns in our

impairment models for the Companys Mexican mining assets

Local opposition to mine development projects has arisen

periodically in some of the jurisdictions in which we operate

and such opposition has at times been violent There ran be

no assurance that similar local opposition will not arise in the

future with respect to Pan Americans foreign operations If Pan

American were to experience resistance or unrest in connection

with its foreign operations it could have material adverse effect

on Pan Americans operations or profitability

On September 22 2011 Perus Parliament approved law that

increased mining taxes to fund anti poverty infrastructure projects

in the country effective October 2011 The law changed the

scheme for royalty payments so that mining companies that had

not signed legal stability agreements with the government had

to pay royalties of 1% to 12% on operating profit while royalties

under the previous rules were 1% to 3% on net sales In addition

to these royalties such companies were subject to special tax

at rate ranging from 2% to 8.4% of operating profit Companies

that had concluded legal stability agreements under the General

Mining Law will be required to pay special contribution of

between 4% and 13.12% of operating profits The change in the

royalty and the new tax had no material impact on the results of

the Companys Peruvian operations

Government regulation in Argentina related to the economy has

increased substantially over the past few years In particular the

government has intensified the use of once foreign exchange
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md iriport contro in esponse to unfavourable dorm estic

conomic trends An exa iiple of the hinging regulations which

avc affected hr tompanys octwities rim Argentina was the

\rgentir can Mi irs ry of Economy and Public Finance resolution

012 that reduced the time within whicS exporters were

ret ui ed to rep itri it proceeds from export sales from

180 dry to days after the date of export As result of this

change the Manantial Fspejo operation temporarily suspended

dome shipments while lo al rm anagemerit reviewed how the new

rr lution would be app red by tht government In rcsponse

petitior
from mme ous xporte rs for relief from the new

solution shortly ft cr ifter the Ministry issued rev sed

solution which extend the 1aday rm it to 120 days and the

effect of the delayrd shiomen sand als was made up during the

mar mdci of 012

gr tine govu mment ha also mposed restrictions on the

import ition goods aid se ee and increased admi mistrative

ocedure equired to mport equipment materials and services

req red for ope ations mnantia Espejo In addition ry

20 th gayer irrent mandated that mining companies establish

tern functio be responsible for substituting Argentiniam

produced goods an rm ateri for imported goods and materials

der th mandate the Company is required to submit its plans

to miport goods and materials for govemnmen review 120 days in

acv mnce the drr red date of Importation

TI guy rn mient Arg itina has also tightened control over

pr al flows id
rergr cxc ma ige id iding informal restrictions

divid nd ir terest md service payments abroad md limitations

im the Irty of individuals ii businesses to convert Argentine

pm os United States olla or other hard currencies these

crc cc which inte nded to curtail the outflow of hard

cu rency and protect Argentmn inte natio mal currency reserves

may advors ly affct the Cor ipany ability to convert dividends

by current op ration or me venues generated by future

pc atior nto haid ricy and to distribute those revenues

off more sh mreh Iders Maim tarnilg ope ating revenues ii

Argentine pesos ould expose the Company to the risks of peso

cluat ri mrirt high rlnmrct inf1r inn

epterrrber 201 the roy ial govemnrwnt of Santa tact

Argentina pass arm mdment to its tax code that rrtrodueod

new mining property tax with rate of 1% to be charged annually

publi med proven ives whirl ha tie potential to affect

the Mi ma iii spec mire as well as other companies operating

in tie provr icc It nec law ime into affect on July 2013

LXPF Cl ED 2011 RI VI NUE 000S USD

The Camp my has in place certain contracts that could potentially

affect or cxc mmpt the Company from having this new tax applicable

and as such is evaluating its options with its advisors The

Compary and potentially other mining corripanies in the province

are als evaluating options that include challenging the legality

and constitutionality of the tax As at December 31 2013 the

Cc mpary has esti miated that he annual tax impact for the first

year of this new law would be $2 million

In Bolivia new constitution was enacted in 2009 that further

entrenches the governments ability to amend or enact certain

laws including those that may affect mining On May 2011

Bolivian President Evo Morales announced the formation of

multi disciplinary committee to reevaluate several pieces of

legislation inc udrng the mining law and this has caused some

concerns amongst foreign companies doing business in Bolivia due

to the governments policy objective of nationalizing parts ot the

resource cectom However President Morales made no reference

to reviewing terminating agreements with private mining

compa mies Operations at Sam Vicente have continued to run

normally cinder Pan Americans administration and it is expected

that normal operations will continue stitus quo Pan American

will take eve measure available to nforce its rights urmder

its agreement with COMIBOL but there is rio guarantee that

governmental actions will riot impact the San Vicente operation

and its profitability Risks of doing business in Bol via include being

subject to new higher taxes and mining royalties some of which

have ilmeady boon proposed or threatened revision of contracts

and threatened expropriation of assets all of which could have

material adverse impact on the Companys operations or

profi ability

Management and the Board of Directors ontir uously assess

risks that the Company is exposed to and zttempt to mitigate

these sks where practical through range of risk management

strategies including employing qualified an experienced

personnel

Metal Price Risk

Pan Amer ran derives its revenue from the sale of silver zinc load

Lopper and gold The Companys sales are directly dependent on

metal prices ttat have shown sign ficant volatility and are beyond

the Companys control The table below illustrates the effect of

changes in silver and gold prices on anticipated revenues for 2014

This analysis assumes that quantities of silver and gold produced

and sold remain constant cinder all price sc nanios presented

Id Cmi

$706 669 10 96

It $164 233 6//0216 802 160

ma IfffIIlItItIUlIf

LO lIt 20 5/18011 $193991 80 97 $84942

/86 816 5801/9/ 4817 179 337 84914 $866724

809 9/ $826519 $841 161 114 8/3 5889606

UUIIUU
$840261 $865343 807 06 49 4mM
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The Company has long-term contracts to sell the zinc lead and

copper concentrates produced by the Huaron Morococha

San Vicente and La Colorada mines These contracts include

pray sions for pricing the contained tals including silver based

on average spot prices over defined 30-day periods that may differ

from the month in which the cor centrate was produced Under

these circumstances the Company may from time to time fix the

puce for portion of the payable metal content during the month

that the concentrates are produced

Credit Risk

The zinc lead and copper concentrates produced by Pan American

are sold through long-term supply arrangements to metal traders

or inegrated mining and smelting companies The terms of

the concentrate contracts may require the Company to deliver

concantrate that has value greater than the payment received

at the time of delivery thereby introducing the Company to

credit risk of the buyers of our concent ates Should any of these

counterparties not honour supply arrangements or should any

of th am become insolvent Pan American may incur losses for

products already shipped and be forced to sell its concentrates on

the spot market or it may not have market for its concentrates

arid therefore its future operating results may be materially

adve sely impacted

For esample the Doe Run Peru DRP smelte past significant

buyer of Pan Americans production in eru experienced financial

diffic lties in the first quarter of 2009 and closed Pan American

continued to sell copper concentrates to other buyers but on

inferior terms At the end of 2013 and at the date of this MDA
Pan 4mericzin is owed approximately $8.2 million under the

term of its contract with DRP for deliveries of concentrates that

occurred early 2009 The Company has established doubtful

accounts receivable provision for the full amount receivable from

DRP The Company continues to pursue all legal and commercial

avenues to collect the amount outstanding

At December 31 2013 the Company had receivable balances

associated with buyers of our concentrates of $31.7 million

2012 $39.1 million All of this receivable balance is owed by

nine well known concentrate buyers and the vast majority of our

concentrate is sold to those same counterparts

Silver dord production is refined under long term agreements

with fixed refining terms at four refineries worldwide The

Company generally retains the risk and title to the precious metals

throughout the process of refining and therefore is exposed to the

risk that the refineries will not be able to perform in accordance

with the refining contract and that the Company may not be

able to fully recover our precious metals in such circumstances

At December 31 2013 the Company had approximately $54.7

million 2012 -$48.8 million of value contained in precious

metal inventory at refineries The Company maintains insurance

coverage against the loss of precious metal dord and base metal

concentrates at our mine sites in-transit to refineries and while at

the refineries and smelters

Refined silver and gold is sold on the spot market to various

bullion traders and banks Credit risk may arise from these

activities if the Company is not paid for metal at the time it is

delivered as required by spot sale contracts

The Company maintains trading facilities with several banks and

bullion dealers far the purposes of transacting the Companys

trading activities None of these facilities are subject to margin

arrangements The Companys trading activities can expose us to

the credit risk of our counterparties to the extent that our trading

positions have positive mark-to-market value

Pan American Silver takes the view that its precious metals production should not be hedged thereby allowing the Company to

maintain maximum exposure to precious metal prices

From time to time Pan American mitigates the price risk associated with its base metal production by committing some of its forecasted

base metal production under forward sales and option contracts as described under the Financial Instruments section of this MDA
The Board of Directors continually assesses the Companys strategy towards its base metal exposure depending on market conditions

Since base metal and gold revenue arm treated as by-product credit for purposes of calculating cash costs per ounce of silver this non

GAAP measure is highly sensitive to base metal and gold prices The table below illustrates this point by plotting the expected cash cost

per ounce according to our 2014 forecast against various price assumptions for the Companys two main by-product credits zinc and

gold

CASH COST PER OUNCE OF SILVER PRODUCED USDIOZ

Gold Price

$13.45 $12.82

112.69

$13.18 $12.51

$05 .$
$12.92 $12.30

$12.72 $12.09

$11.56

$12.06

$1192

$L261

$11.43

$11.29

$1116

$11.04

$10.93

$1083

$10.73

$11.67

$11.56

$11.46

$1199

-1

$10.80

$10.67

$10.53

$10.41

$10.30

$10.20

$1136 $10 10
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v1an orncnt nstan ly monito and assesses the credit risk

resul from it onceitrate sales refining ar angeme its nd

cor rodity cor tract Eu thor iore management carefully

or siC A5 credit sk when allocating prospective sales and refining

busi ics to counterpartie Ii riaking allocation decisions

iiar agem rt attempts to void unacceptahl concentration of

cr lit to ny single counteroirty

Interest Rate Risk

itt ate ci the risk th the fair va ues and future cash

fey of th ompany will fluctuate because if changes in market

trst ate At Dc riber Ii 2013 the Company has $10.2

iiilli ii it lease ubliga ions 01 millionequipment

rid or ruction advar cot of $nil 2012 million hat are

ubject to In annualiied interes ate of 1% and unsecured

or ibEi iots wtm pnnq amount 46 mOO in

2011 $36 millie that bear iterest at 5% payable semi

inua ly on June 15 and ecember LL The interest paid by the

omnpany ii the year er tied Dec en be 31 2013 on its lease

obl gations and equipment sn onst uction advances was

rn ISo 201 meiltior Ito Compary has received short

ir lear ii Argenti totaling $130.0 milliu Argentina Pesos

US $23 million at an annual interest rile of 25 1% $300

million iCr are duc Februa 2014 and $1000

iillion Argentine pesos are du in June 2014 he itt rest paid

by the Compa ry or the year idcd Dc erribe 31 2013 on the

convertible notes was $1.6 million 2012 $1 million the

Company is not subjected to variable market interest rate changes

as all debt included above have stated interest rates

The werige interest rate earned by th Company during the year

ended Decerriber 31 2013 on its cash and short term investments

was 0.68% 10% increase or decrease in the interest earned

from financial institutions err cash and short term investments

would result in $0.3 million increase or decrease in the

Company before tax earnings 2012 $0 million

Exchange Rate Risk

Pan American reports its financial statements in USD however the

Company operates ri jurisdictions that utilize other currencies As

consequence the financial results of the Companys operations

as reported in 050 are subject to changes in the value of the USO

dative to local currencies Since the Companys revenues are

denominated in tJSD and portion otthe Companys operating

costs and capital spending are in local currencies the Company

is negatively impacted by strengthening local currencies relative

to the USD and positively impacted by the inverse The locIl

currencies that the Company has th most exposure to are the

Peruvian soles PEN Mexican pesos MXN and Argentine

pesos ARS The following table illustrates the effect of

changes in the exchange rate of PEN and MXN against the USD on

anticipated cost of sales for 2014 expressed in percentage terms

11% O4o 18% 103 18% 0%

10% 0/ 10 18 100% 7%

Ch% 103% 101% 9/% 96%
vi

10 10 100%

10 104% 10 91% 431

186 ii 10 /4 4%

lots JO lOW 96 933 0I

Und tE is an slysis our cot of ales is ref cted at 100% of our

to eta ted foreign exchange assu options fr the PEN and MXN

of 80r id J2 /Eper inc 050 respectively Devaluation of the

USU ci stive to the PEN an has the fleet of increasing our

iticipatod cost of ales above 100% lid vice versa

ord to mitigate ii posu the ui ipany maintair sa

portion of ts cash ba an in EN MXN id CAD and from

ir to time iters ito forward curme icy positions to niatch

ii iticipate spending as discuss in the section tinan ial

nit um mit

Ti mnpany balance beet cor tains various monetary

assets an liabilities ome of which are denominated in

fo eign cui end cou iin conventio dictates that these

ian ii artran ed at the end of each period with resulting

adjust sients being reflected as foreign xchange gains or losses on

the mpany incorr state nen

quidity Risk

riquidity risk is the is that the ompany will not be able to moe

ti irancii obligations as hey ome due Ttevolatility of the

rrietals mirkots can impact the Companys ab Sty to forecast cash

low Ire ii operations

the Company roust maintain sufficient liquidity to meet its short

term business requirements taking inti account its anticipated

cash flows from operations its holdings of cash amid cash

equivalents and committed loan facilities

the Company manages its liquidity
risk by cent nuously

Tionitoring fonirasted and actual cash flows The Company has

place rigorous reporting planning and budgeting process to

help determine the funds required to support its normal operating

equirements on an ongoing basis and its expansion plans The

ompany continually evaluates and reviews capital and operating

expenditures in order to identify decrease and limit all non

essential expenditures Pan American expects to generate positive

cash flow from operations in 2014 aid to utilize this and the

strength of its balance sheet to manage its liquidity position

Environmental and Health and Safety Risks

Pan Americans activities are subject to extensive laws and

regulations governing onvironmntal protection and employee
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health and safety Environmental laws and regulations are complex to pursue those opportunities that it believes are in its long-term

and have tended to become more stringent over time Pan

American is required to obtain governmental permits and in some

instances provide bonding requirements under federal state

or provincial air water qualit and mine reclamation rules and

permits Although Pan American makes provisions for reclamation

costs it cannot be assured that these provisions will be adequate

to discharge its future obligations for these costs

Failure to comply with applicable environmental and health and

safety laws may result in injunctions damages suspension or

revocation of permits and imposition of penalties While the

health and safety of our people and responsible environmental

stewardship are our top priorities there can be no assurance

that Pan American has been or will be at all times in complete

compliance with such laws regulations and permits or that

the costs of complying with current and future environmental

and health and safety laws and permits will not materially and

adversely affect Pan Americans business results of operations or

financial condition

Employee Relations

Pan Americans business depends on good relations with its

employees At December 31 2013 there were approximately

7339 employees and employees of mining contractors performing

work for the Company of which approximately 60% were

represented by unions or covered by union agreements in Mexico

Peru Argentina and Bolivia The Company has experienced short-

duration labour strikes and work stoppages in the past and may

experience future labour related events

The number of persons skilled in acquisition exploration and

development of mining properties is limited and competition

for such persons is intense As Pan Americans business activity

grows Pan American will require additional key mining personnel

as well as additional financial and administrative staff There can

be no assurance that Pan American will be successful in attracting

training and retaining qualified personnel as competition for

persons with these skill sets increases If Pan American is not

successful in this regard the efficiency of its operations could be

impaired which could have an adverse impact on Pan Americans

future cash flows earnings results of operations and financial

condition

Claims and Legal Proceedings

Pan American is subject to various claims and legal proceedings

covering wide range of matters that arise in the ordinary

course of business activities including claims relating to ex- or

current employees Each of these matters is subject to various

uncertainties and it is possible that some of these matters may
be resolved unfavourably to Pan American The Company carries

liability insurance coverage and establishes provisions for matters

that are probable and can be reasonably estimated In addition

Pan American may be involved in disputes with other parties in

the future which may result in material adverse impact on our

financial condition cash flow and results of operations Please

refer to Commitments and Contingencies Note 29 of the Audited

Consolidated Financial Statements for further information

Corporate Development Activities

An element of the Companys business strategy is to make

selected acquisitions The Company expects to continue to

evaluate acquisition opportunities on regular basis and intends

best interests The success of the Companys acquisitions will

depend upon the Companys ability to effectively manage the

operations of entities it acquires and to realize other anticipated

benefits The process of managing acquired businesses may
involve unforeseen difficulties and may require disproportionate

amount of management resources There can be no assurance

that the Company will be able to successfully manage the

operations of businesses it acquires or that the anticipated

benefits of its acquisitions will be realized

SIGNIFICANT JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY IN THE
APPLICATION OF ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

In preparing financial statements in accordance with International

Financial Reporting Standards management is required to make

estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in

the consolidated financial statements These critical accounting

estimates represent management estimates and judgments that

are uncertain and any changes in these could materially impact

the Companys financial statements Management continuously

reviews its estimates judgments and assumptions using the most

current information available

Readers should also refer to Note of the consolidated financial

statements for the year ended December 31 2013 for the

Companys summary of significant accounting policies

Judgments that have the most significant effect on the amounts

recognized in the Companys consolidated financial statements are

as follows

Capitalization 0/evaluation costs The Company has determined

that evaluation costs capitalized during the year relating to

the operating mines and certain other exploration interests

have potential future economic benefits and are potentially

economically recoverable subject to impairment analysis In

making this judgement the Company has assessed various

sources of information including but not limited to the geologic

and metallurgic information history of conversion of mineral

deposits to proven and probable mineral reserves scoping and

feasibility studies proximity to existing ore bodies operating

management expertise and required environmental operating

and other permits

Commencement of commercial production During the

determination of whether mine has reached an operating level

that is consistent with the use intended by management costs

incurred are capitalized as mineral property plant and equipment

and any consideration from commissioning sales are offset

against costs capitalized The Company defines commencement

of commercial production as the date that mine has achieved

sustainable level of production based on percentage of design

capacity along with various qualitative factors including but not

limited to the achievement of mechanical completion continuous

nominated level of production the working effectiveness of the

plant and equipment at or near expected levels and whether

there is sustainable level of production input available including

power water and diesel
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Assets carrying values and impairment charges In determining

carrying values and impairment charges the Company looks at

recoverable amounts defined as the higher of value in use or

fair value less cost to sell in the case of assets and at objective

evidence that identifies significant or prolonged decline of

fair value on financial assets indicating impairment These

determinations and their individual assumptions require that

management make decision based on the best available

information at each reporting period

Functional currency The functional currency for the Company

and its subsidiaries is the currency of the primaryeconomic

environment in which each operates The Company has

determined that its functional currency and that of its subsidiaries

is the USD The determination of functional currency may

require certain judgments to determine the primary economic

environment The Company reconsiders the functional currency

used when there is change in events and conditions which

determined the primary economic environment

Business combinations Determination of whether set of

assets acquired and liabilities assumed constitute business may

require the Company to make certain judgments taking into

account all facts and circumstances business consists of inputs

including non-current assets and processes including operational

processes that when applied to those inputs have the ability

to create outputs that provide return to the Company and its

shareholders

Deferral of stripping costs In determining whether stripping costs

incurred during the production phase of mining property relate

to mineral reserves and mineral resources that will be mined in

future period and therefore should be capitalized the Company

treats the costs of removal of the waste material during mines

production phase as deferred where it gives rise to future

benefits These capitalized costs are subsequently amortized on

unit of production basis over the reserves that directly benefit

from the specific stripping activity As at December 31 2013

the carrying amount of stripping costs capitalized was $59.2

million comprised of Manantial $13.8 million Dolores $32.8

million and Alamo Dorado $12.6 million 2012 -$22.1 million

was capitalized comprised of $5.3 $13.5 and $3.2 million

respectively

Replacement convertible debenture As part of the 2009 Aquiline

transaction the Company issued replacement convertible

debenture that allowed the holder to convert the debenture into

either 363854 Pan American shares or Silver Stream contract

The holder subsequently selected the Silver Stream contract

The convertible debenture is classified and accounted for as

deferred credit In determining the appropriate classification

of the convertible debenture as deferred credit the Company

evaluated the economics underlying the contract as of the date

the Company assumed the obligation As at December 31 2013

the carrying amount of the deferred credit arising from the

Aquiline acquisition was $20.8 million 2012 $20.8 million

Convertible Notes The Company has the right to pay all or

part of the liability associated with the Companys outstanding

convertible notes in cash on the conversion date Accordingly

the Company classifies the convertible notes as financial

liability
with an embedded derivative The financial liability

and

embedded derivative are recognized initially at their respective

fair values The embedded derivative is subsequently recognized

at fair value with changes in fair value reflected in profit or loss

and the debt liability component is recognized at amortized

cost using the effective interest method Interest gains and

losses related to the debt liability component or embedded

derivatives are recognized in profit or loss On conversion the

equity instrument is measured at the carrying value of the liability

component and the fair value of the derivative component on the

conversion date

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY IN THE
APPLICATION OF ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Key sources of estimation uncertainty that have significant risk

of causing material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets

and liabilities are

Revenue recognition Revenue from the sale of concentrate

to independent smelters is recorded at the time the risks and

rewards of ownership pass to the buyer using forward market

prices on the expected date that final sales prices will be fixed

Variations between the prices set under the smelting contracts

may be caused by changes in market prices and result in an

embedded derivative in the accounts receivable The embedded

derivative is recorded at fair value each period until final

settlement occurs with changes in the fair value classified in

revenue In period of high price volatility as experienced under

current economic conditions the effect of mark-to-market price

adjustments related to the quantity of metal which remains to

be settled with independent smelters could be significant For

changes in metal quantities upon receipt of new information and

assay the provisional sales quantities are adjusted

Estimated recoverable ounces The carrying amounts of the

Companys mining properties are depleted based on recoverable

ounces Changes to estimates of recoverable ounces and

depletable costs including changes resulting from revisions to the

Companys mine plans and changes in metal price forecasts can

result in change to future depletion rates

Mineral reserve estimates The figures for mineral reserves and

mineral resources are determined in accordance with 143-101

issued by the Canadian Securities Administrators There are

numerous uncertainties inherent in estimating mineral reserves

and mineral resources including many factors beyond the

Companys control Such estimation is subjective process and

the accuracy of any mineral reserve or mineral resource estimate

is function of the quantity and quality of available data and of

the assumptions made and judgments used in engineering and

geological interpretation Differences between managements

assumptions including economic assumptions such as metal prices

and market conditions could have material effect in the future

on the Companys financial position and results of operation

Valuation of Inventory In determining mine production costs

recognized in the consolidated income statement the Company

makes estimates of quantities of ore stacked in stockpiles placed

on the heap leach pad and in process and the recoverable silver

in this material to determine the average costs of finished goods

sold during the period Changes in these estimates can result in

change in mine operating costs of future periods and carrying

amounts of inventories
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Depreciation and amortization rates/or mineral property

plant and equipment and mineral interests Depreciation and

amortization expenses are allocated based on assumed asset

lives and depreciation and amortization rates Should the asset

life or depreciation rate differ from the initial estimate an

adjustment would be made in the consolidated income statement

prospectively change in the mineral reserve estimate for assets

depreciated using the units of production method would impact

depreciation expense prospectively

Impairment of mining interests While assessing whether

any indications of impairment exist for mining interests

consideration is given to both external and internal sources of

information Information the Company considers include changes

in the market economic and legal environment in which the

Company operates that are not within its control and affect the

recoverable amount of mining interests Internal sources of

information include the manner in which mineral property plant

and equipment are being used or are expected to be used and

indications of the economic performance of the assets Estimates

include but are not limited to estimates of the discounted future

after-tax cash flows expected to be derived from the Companys

mining properties costs to sell the mining properties and the

appropriate discount rate Reductions in metal price forecasts

increases in estimated future costs of production increases

in estimated future capital costs reductions in the amount of

recoverable mineral reserves and mineral resources and/or

adverse current economics can result in write-down of the

carrying amounts of the Companys mining interests Impairments

of mining interests are discussed in Note 12 of the Audited

Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December

31 2013

Estimation of decommissioning and restoration costs and

the timing 0/expenditures The cost estimates are updated

annually during the life of mine to reflect known developments

e.g revisions to cost estimates and to the estimated lives of

operations and are subject to review at regular intervals

Decommissioning restoration and similar liabilities are estimated

based on the Companys interpretation of current regulatory

requirements constructive obligations and are measured at

the best estimate of expenditure required to settle the present

obligation of decommissioning restoration or similar liabilities

that may occur upon decommissioning of the mine at the end of

the reporting period The carrying amount is determined based

on the net present value of estimated future cash expenditures

for the settlement of decommissioning restoration or similar

liabilities that may occur upon decommissioning of the mine Such

estimates are subject to change based on changes in laws and

regulations and negotiations with regulatory authorities

Income taxes and recoverability 0/deferred tax assets In

assessing the probability of realizing income tax assets recognized

the Company makes estimates related to expectations of

future taxable income applicable tax planning opportunities

expected timing of reversals of existing temporary differences

and the likelihood that tax positions taken will be sustained

upon examination by applicable tax authorities In making its

assessments the Company gives additional weight to positive

and negative evidence that can be objectively verified Estimates

of future taxable income are based on forecasted cash flows

from operations and the application of existing tax laws in

each jurisdiction The Company considers relevant tax planning

opportunities that are within the Companys control are feasible

and within managements ability to implement Examination

by applicable tax authorities is supported based on individual

facts and circumstances of the relevant tax position examined

in light of all available evidence Where applicable tax laws and

regulations are either unclear or subject to ongoing varying

interpretations it is reasonably possible that changes in these

estimates can occur that materially affect the amounts of income

tax assets recognized Also future changes in tax laws could limit

the Company from realizing the tax benefits from the deferred tax

assets The Company reassesses unrecognized income tax assets

at each reporting period

Accounting/or acquisitions The provisional fair value of assets

acquired and liabilities assumed and the resulting goodwill if

any requires that management make certain judgments and

estimates taking into account information available at the time of

acquisition about future events including but not restricted to

estimates of mineral reserves and resources required exploration

potential future operating costs and capital expenditures future

metal prices long-term foreign exchange rates and discount rates

Changes to the provisional values of assets acquired and liabilities

assumed deferred income taxes and resulting goodwill if any

are retrospectively adjusted when the final measurements are

determined within one year of the acquisition date

Share purchase warrants The carrying value of share purchase

warrants is equal to fair value The share purchase warrants are

classified and accounted for as financial liabilities and as such are

measured at their fair value with changes in fair value reported

in the income statement as gain or loss on derivatives The

Company utilizes the Black-Scholes pricing model to determine

the fair value of the share purchase warrants as the best

approximation of fair value given the warrants are not listed or

publically traded The Company uses significant judgment in the

evaluation of the input variables in the Black-Scholes calculation

which include risk free interest rate expected stock price

volatility expected life expected dividend yield and quoted

market price of the Companys shares on the Toronto Stock

Exchange Refer to Note 20 of the Audited Consolidated Financial

Statements for the year ended December 31 2013 for details on

share purchase warrants

Contingencies Due to the size complexity and nature of

the Companys operations various legal and tax matters are

outstanding from time to time In the event the Companys

estimates of the future resolution of these matters changes

the Company will recognize the effects of the changes in its

consolidated financial statements on the date such changes occur

Refer to Note 29 of the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended December 31 2013 for further discussion on

contingencies

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS

The Company adopted the following new accounting standards

along with any consequential amendments effective January

2013

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements establishes principles

for the presentation and preparation of consolidated financial

statements when an entity controls one or more other entities

This standard requires parent entity an entity that controls
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one or more other entities to present consolidated financial

statements ii defines the principle of control and establishes

control as the basis for consolidation iii sets out how to apply

the principle of control to identify whether an investor controls

an investee and therefore must consolidate the investee and

iv sets out the accounting requirements for the preparation

of consolidated financial statements IFRS 10 supersedes lAS

27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements and SIC-12

Consolidation Special Purpose Entities The application of IFRS

10 does not have an impact on the Companys consolidated

financial statements

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements establishes the core principle that

party to joint arrangement determines the type of joint

arrangement in which it is involved by assessing its rights and

obligations and accounts for those rights and obligations in

accordance with that type of joint arrangement The Company

has completed its assessment on this standard and concluded

that this standard does not have an impact on the consolidated

financial statements

IFRS 12 Dlsdosure of Interests In Other Entitles requires

the disclosure of information that enables users of financial

statements to evaluate the nature of and risks associated with

its interests in other entities and the effects of those interests on

its financial position financial performance and cash flows The

Company has completed its assessment on this standard and

concluded that this standard does not have significant impact on

the consolidated financial statements

IFRS 13 FaIr Value Measurement defines fair value sets out in

single IFRS framework for measuring fair value and requires

disclosures about fair value measurements IFRS 13 applies when

another IFRS requires or permits fair value measurements or

disclosures about fair value measurements and measurements

such as fair value less costs to sell based on fair value or

disclosures about those measurements except for share-based

payment transactions within the scope of IFRS Share-based

Payment leasing transactions within the scope of lAS 17 leases

measurements that have some similarities to fair value but that

are not fair value such as net realizable value in lAS Inventories

or value in use in lAS 36 Impairment of Assets The Company has

completed its assessment on this standard and concluded that

this standard did not have an impact on the consolidated financial

statements The Company has applied IFRS 13 on prospective

basis commencing January 2013 Additional disclosure on

the fair value of certain financial instruments is included in the

consolidated financial statements as result of applying IFRS 13

lAS Presentation of Financial Statements lAS amendment

issued by the IASB in June 2011 requires an entity to group items

presented in the Statement of Comprehensive Income on the

basis of whether they may be reclassified to earnings subsequent

to initial recognition For those items presented before taxes the

amendments to lAS also require that the taxes related to the

two separate groups be presented separately The amendments

are effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 2012

with earlier adoption permitted The application of lAS does not

have significant impact on the Companys consolidated financial

statements

lAS 19 Employee Benefits amendment issued by the IASB on

June 2011 introduced changes to the accounting for defined

benefit plans and other employee benefits The amendments

include elimination of the options to defer or recognize in full

in earnings actuarial gains and losses and instead mandates the

immediate recognition of all actuarial gains and losses in other

comprehensive income and requires use of the same discount rate

for both the defined benefit obligation and expected asset return

when calculating interest cost Other changes include modification

of the accounting for termination benefits and classification of

other employee benefits The application of the amended lAS 19

does not have significant impact on the Companys consolidated

financial statements

IFRIC 20 StrIpping Costs in the Production Phase ala Surface

Mine clarifies the requirements for accounting for the costs of

stripping activity in the production phase when two benefits

accrue useable ore that can be used to produce inventory

and ii improved access to further quantities of material that will

be mined in future periods The application of IFRIC 20 did not

result in an adjustment to the Companys consolidated financial

statements

Accounting interpretation effective January 2014

IFRIC 21 Levies IFRIC 21 is an interpretation of lAS 37

Provisions Contingent liabilities and Contingent Assets lAS 37
on the accounting for levies imposed by governments In lAS 37

the criterion for recognizing liability includes the requirement

for an entity to have present obligation resulting from past

event IFRIC 21 provides clarification on the past event that gives

rise to the obligation to pay levy as the activity described in the

relevant legislation
that triggers the payment of the levy IFRIC

21 is effective for annual periods commencing on or after January

2014 The Company does not anticipate the application of

IFRIC 21 to have material impact on its consolidated financial

statements

Accounting standards issued but not yet effective

IFRS FinancIal Instruments is intended to replace lAS 39

Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement in its

entirety and some of the requirements of IFRS Financial

Instruments Disclosures including added disclosure about

investments in equity instruments measured at fair value in

Other Comprehensive Income OCI and guidance on financial

liabilities and derecognition of financial instruments The

mandatory effective date will be added when all phases of IFRS

are completed with sufficient lead time for implementation

GOVERNANCE CORPORATE
SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY AND
ENVIRONMENTAL STEWARDSHIP

Governance

Pan American adheres to the highest standards of corporate

governance and closely follows the requirements established by

both the Canadian Securities Administrators and the SEC in the

United States We believe that our current corporate governance

systems meet or exceed these requirements

Our Board of Directors oversees the direction and strategy

of the business and the affairs of the Company The Board is

comprised of eight directors six of whom are independent The

Boards wealth of experience allows it to effectively oversee

the development of corporate strategies provide management

with long-term direction consider and approve major decisions
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oversee the business generally and evaluate corporate

performance The Health Safety and Environment Committee

which is committee appointed by the Board of Directors

provides oversight for the corporate social initiatives of the

Company and reports directly to the Board

We believe that good corporate governance is important to the

effective performance of the Company and plays significant role

in protecting the interests of all stakeholders while helping to

maximize value

Community relations

We are committed to creating sustainable value in the

communities where our people work and live Guided by research

conducted by our local offices we participate in and contribute

to numerous community programs They typically center on

education and health nutrition environmental awareness local

infrastructure and alternative economic activities Some of our key

initiatives are

Strengthening the production chain of livestock breeding

Value adding through the development of alpaca textiles

weaving workshops with product commercialization in North

America

Improving nutrition focusing on children and pregnant women

Promoting community health with emphasis an immunizations

optometry and focusing on oral health

Promoting tourism and local areas of interest such as the Stone

Forest in Huayllay in Peru

Encouraging education for children and adults by contributing

to teachers salaries and providing continuous support through

different scholarships at local and national level

Environmental Stewardship

We are committed to operating our mines and developing our

new projects in an environmentally responsible manner Guided

by our Corporate Environmental Policy we take every practical

measure to minimize the environmental impacts of our operations

in every phase of the mining cycle from early exploration through

development construction and operation up to and after the

mines closure

We build and operate mines in varied environments across the

Americas From the Patagonian plateau to the Sierra Madre in

Mexico our mines are generally located in isolated places where

information about environmental and cultural values is often

limited Our mines in Peru and Bolivia are situated in historic

mining districts where previous operations have left significant

environmental liabilities that have potential to impact on

surrounding habitats and communities

We manage these challenges using best practice methods in

environmental impact assessment and teams of leading local

and international professionals who clearly determine pre

existing environmental values at each location These extensive

baseline studies often take years of work and cover issues such as

biodiversity and ecosystems surface and groundwater resources

air quality soils landscape archeology and paleontolog and

the potential for acid rock drainage in the natural rocks of each

new mineral deposit or historic waste or tailings dump The data

collected often significantly advances scientific knowledge about

the environments and regions where we work

The baseline information is then used interactively in the design of

each new mine or to develop management and closure plans for

historic environmental liabilities in open consultation with local

communities and government authorities We conduct detailed

modeling and simulation of the environmental effects of each

alternative design in order to determine the optimum solution

always aiming for net benefit

Once construction and operations begin we conduct regular

monitoring of all relevant environmental variables in order to

measure real impacts against baseline data and report to the

government and communities on our progress Community

participation in environmental monitoring is encouraged across

all our mines We implement management systems work

procedures and regular staff training to ensure optimum day-to

day management of issues like waste separation and disposal

water conservation spill prevention and incident investigation

and analysis

We conduct corporate environmental audits of our operations

to ensure optimum environmental performance Environmental

staffs from all mines participate in the audits which improves

integration and consolidation of company-wide standards across

our operations In 2012 audits were conducted at Morococha

San Vicente and Huaron mines

DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND
PROCEDURES
Pan Americans management considers the meaning of internal

control to be the processes established by management to

provide reasonable assurance about the achievement of the

Companys objectives regarding operations reporting and

compliance Internal control is designed to address identified risks

that threaten any of these objectives

As of December 31 2013 the Company carried out an evaluation

under the supervision and with the participation of the Companys

management including the Companys Chief Executive Officer

and Chief Financial Officer of the effectiveness of the design and

operation of the Companys disclosure controls and procedures

Based on that evaluation the Chief Executive Officer and Chief

Financial Officer have concluded that as of December 31 2013

the Companys disclosure controls and procedures were effective

Changes in Internal Controls over Financial Reporting

There was no change in the Companys internal control over

financial reporting that occurred during the period that has

materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect its

internal control over financial reporting

Managements Report on Internal Control over Financial

Reporting

Management of Pan American is responsible for establishing and

maintaining an adequate system of internal control including

internal controls over financial reporting Internal control

over financial reporting is process designed by or under the

supervision of the President and Chief Executive Officer and the

Chief Financial Officer and effected by the Board of Directors

management and other personnel to provide reasonable

assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and

the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
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accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as

issued by the International Accounting Standards Board IFRS
It includes those policies and procedures that

pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail

accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of

the assets of Pan American

are designed to provide reasonable assurance that transactions

are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial

statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting

Standards and that receipts and expenditures of Pan American

are being made only in accordance with authorizations of

management and Pan Americans directors and

are designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding

prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use

or disposition of Pan Americans assets that could have material

effect on the annual financial statements or interim financial

reports

The Companys management including its President and Chief

Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer believe that due to

its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting

may not prevent or detect misstatements on timely basis Also

projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of internal

control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to

the risk that the controls may become inadequate because of

changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the

policies or procedures may deteriorate

Management assessed the effectiveness of Pan Americans

internal control over financial reporting as at December 31 2013

based on the criteria set forth in Internal Control Integrated

Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations

of the Treadway Commission 1992 COSO Based on this

assessment management concludes that as of December 31

2013 Pan Americans internal control over financial reporting is

effective

Management reviewed the results of managements assessment

with the Audit Committee of the Companys Board of Directors

Deloitte LLP independent registered public accounting firm were

engaged as approved by vote of the Companys shareholders

to audit and provide independent opinions on the Companys

consolidated financial statements and the effectiveness of

the Companys internal control over financial reporting as of

December 31 2013 Deloitte LLP has provided such opinions
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iii The historical estimate for Waterloo was initially prepared by Asarco

Inc in 1968 In September 1994 Roberti Rodger P.Eng reviewed

the Asarco reports and prepared Technical Evaluation Report on the

Waterloo property prior to the implementation of NI 43-101 The Technical

Evaluation Report confirmed that the historical estimate was based on

reverse circulation drilling and underground sampling and concluded the

estimate was based on sound methodology The historical estimate at

Waterloo was prepared using silver price of $5.00 per ounce the relevant

price at the time of the estimate Michael Steinmann P.Geo has reviewed

the Technical Evaluation Report and believes the historic estimate was

conducted in professional and competent manner and is relevant for

purposes of the Companys decision to maintain its interest in the property

The Company believes that the historical estimate category of 37235000

tons at 2.71 ounces per ton silver of measured and indicated reserves

most closely corresponds to 33758000 tonnes in the CIM definition

category of indicated mineral resource However the Company has not

completed the work necessary to verify the historical estimate Accordingly

the Company is not treating the historical estimate as current NI 43-101

compliant mineral resources based on information prepared by or under

the supervision of OP These historical estimates should not be relied

upon

iv The Company believes that the historical estimate categories of

proven possible reserves heap leach ore stockpile possible

resources and inferred resources most closely correspond to 7639000

tonnes in the NI 43-101 category of inferred resources

The historical estimate for Waterloo was initially prepared by Asarco

Inc in 1968 In September 1994 Robert Rodger P.Eng reviewed the

Asarco reports and prepared Technical Evaluation Report on the Waterloo

property prior to the implementation of NI 43-101 The Technical

Evaluation Report confirmed that the historical estimate was based on

reverse circulation drilling and underground sampling and concluded the

estimate was based on sound methodology The historical estimate at

Waterloo was prepared using silver price of $5.00 per ounce the relevant

price at the time of the estimate Michael Steinmann P.Geo QP for the

Company has reviewed the Technical Evaluation Report and believes the

historic estimate was conducted in professional and competent manner

and is relevant for purposes of the Companys decision to maintain its

interest in the property The Company believes that the historical estimate

category of 37235000 tons at 2.71 ounces per ton silver of measured

and indicated reserves most closely corresponds to 33758000 tonnes in

the NI 43-101 category of indicated resource However the Company

has not completed the work necessary to verify the historical estimate

Accordingly the Company is not treating the historical estimate as current

NI 43-101 compliant mineral resources based on information prepared by

or under the supervision of QP These historical estimates should not be

relied upon

Mineral resource and reserve estimates for Huaron Dolores San Vicente

La Colorada Manantial Espeo Alamo Dorado Morococha Pico Machay
and Calcatreu were prepared under the supervision of or were reviewed

by Michael Steinmann Geo Executive Vice-President Corporate

Development and Geology and Martin Wafforn Eng Vice-President

Technical Services each of whom are Qualified Persons as that term is

defined in National Instrument 43-101 NI 43-101 Navidad mineral

resource estimates were prepared by Pamela De Mark Geo Director

Resources formerly Sr Consultant of Snowden Mining Industry Consultants

also Qualified Person as that term is defined in NI 43-101 Mineral

resource estimates for Hog Heaven and Waterloo are based on historical

third party estimates

TECHNICAL INFORMATION

Michael Steinmann and Martin Wafforn each of whom are Qualified

Persons as the term is defined in NI 43-101 have reviewed and approved

the contents of this MDA

CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS AND
INFORMATION

CERTAIN OF THE STATEMENTS AND INFORMATION IN THIS MDA
CONSTITUTE FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS WITHIN THE MEANING

OF THE UNITED STATES PRIVATE SECURITIES LITIGATION REFORM ACT OF

1995 AND FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION WITHIN THE MEANING

OF APPLICABLE CANADIAN PROVINCIAL SECURITIES LAWS RELATING

TO THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS ALL STATEMENTS OTHER

THAN STATEMENTS OF HISTORICAL FACT ARE FORWARD-LOOKING

STATEMENTS WHEN USED IN THIS MDA THE WORDS BELIEVES

EXPECTS INTENDS PLANS FORECAST OBJECTIVE OUTLOOKç

POSITIONING POTENTIAL ANTICIPATED BUDGET AND OTHER

SIMILAR WORDS AND EXPRESSIONS IDENTIFY FORWARD-LOOKING

STATEMENTS OR INFORMATION THESE FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

OR INFORMATION RELATE TO AMONG OTHER THINGS FUTURE

PRODUCTION OF SILVER GOLD AND OTHER METALS PRODUCED BY THE

COMPANY FUTURE CASH COSTS PER OUNCE OF SILVER THE PRICE OF

SILVER AND OTHER METALS THE EFFECTS OF LAWS REGULATIONS AND

GOVERNMENT POLICIES AFFECTING PAN AMERICANS OPERATIONS OR

POTENTIAL FUTURE OPERATIONS INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO THE

LAWS IN THE PROVINCE OF CI-IUBUT ARGENTINA WHICH CURRENTLY

HAVE SIGNIFICANT RESTRICTIONS ON MINING AND RECENT AMENDMENTS

TO THE LABOUR AND TAX LAWS IN MEXICO AND THE INTRODUCTION

OF THE NEW MINING PROPERTY TAX IN SANTA CRUZ ARGENTINA EACH
OF WHICH COULD PLACE ADDITIONAL FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS ON OUR

MEXICAN SUSBSIDIARIES THE CONTINUING NATURE OF HIGH INFLATION

RISING CAPITAL AND OPERATING COSTS CAPITAL RESTRICTIONS AND

RISKS OF EXPROPRIATION RELATIVE TO CERTAIN OF OUR OPERATIONS
PARTICULARLY IN ARGENTINA AND BOLIVIA AND THEIR EFFECTS ON

OUR BUSINESS FUTURE SUCCESSFUL DEVELOPMENT OF THE NAVIDAD

PROJECT AND OTHER DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS OF THE COMPANY
THE SUFFICIENCY OF THE COMPANYS CURRENT WORKING CAPITAL

ANTICIPATED OPERATING CASH FLOW OR ITS ABILITY TO RAISE NECESSARY

FUNDS TIMING OF PRODUCTION AND THE CASH AND TOTAL COSTS OF

PRODUCTION AT EACH OF THE COMPANYS PROPERTIES THE ESTIMATED

COST OF AND AVAILABILITY OF FUNDING NECESSARY FOR SUSTAINING

CAPITAL THE SUCCESSFUL IMPLEMENTATION AND EFFECTS OF ONGOING

OR FUTURE DEVELOPMENT AND EXPANSION PLANS AND CAPITAL

REPLACEMENT IMPROVEMENT OR REMEDIATION PROGRAMS FORECAST

CAPITAL AND NON-OPERATING SPENDING FUTURE SALES OF THE METALS
CONCENTRATES OR OTHER PRODUCTS PRODUCED BY THE COMPANY AND

THE COMPANYS PLANS AND EXPECTATIONS FOR ITS PROPERTIES AND

OPERATIONS

THESE STATEMENTS REFLECT THE COMPANYS CURRENT VIEWS WITH

RESPECT TO FUTURE EVENTS AND ARE NECESSARILY BASED UPON

NUMBER OF ASSUMPTIONS AND ESTIMATES THAT WHILE CONSIDERED

REASONABLE BY THE COMPANY ARE INHERENTLY SUBJECT TO

SIGNIFICANT BUSINESS ECONOMIC COMPETITIVE POLITICAL AND SOCIAL

UNCERTAINTIES AND CONTINGENCIES MANY FACTORS BOTH KNOWN
AND UNKNOWN COULD CAUSE ACTUAL RESULTS PERFORMANCE OR

ACHIEVEMENTS TO BE MATERIALLY DIFFERENT FROM THE RESULTS

PERFORMANCE OR ACHIEVEMENTS THAT ARE OR MAY BE EXPRESSED
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OR IMPLIED BY SUCH FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS CONTAINED

IN THIS MDA AND THE COMPANY HAS MADE ASSUMPTIONS AND

ESTIMATES 8ASED ON OR RELATED TO MANY OF THESE FACTORS SUCH

FACTORS INCLUDE WITHOUT LIMITATION FLUCTUATIONS IN SPOT AND

FORWARD MARKETS FOR SILVER GOLD BASE METALS AND CERTAIN OTHER

COMMODITIES SUCH AS NATURAL GAS FUEL OIL AND ELECTRICITY

FLUCTUATIONS IN CURRENCY MARKETS SUCH AS THE PERUVIAN SOL

MEXICAN PESO ARGENTINE PESO BOLIVIAN BOLIVIANO AND CANADIAN

DOLLAR VERSUS THE U.S DOLLAR RISKS RELATED TO THE TECHNOLOGICAL

AND OPERATIONAL NATURE OF THE COMPANYS BUSINESS CHANGES IN

NATIONAL AND LOCAL GOVERNMENT LEGISLATION TAXATION CONTROLS

OR REGULATIONS AND POLITICAL OR ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENTS IN

CANADA THE UNITED STATES MEXICO PERU ARGENTINA BOLIVIA OR

OTHER COUNTRIES WHERE THE COMPANY MAY CARRY ON BUSINESS

IN THE FUTURE RISKS AND HAZARDS ASSOCIATED WITH THE BUSINESS

OF MINERAL EXPLORATION DEVELOPMENT AND MINING INCLUDING

ENVIRONMENTAL HAZARDS INDUSTRIAL ACCIDENTS UNUSUAL OR

UNEXPECTED GEOLOGICAL OR STRUCTURAL FORMATIONS PRESSURES

CAVE-INS AND FLOODING RISKS RELATING TO THE CREDIT WORTHINESS

OR FINANCIAL CONDITION OF SUPPLIERS REFINERS AND OTHER PARTIES

WITH WHOM THE COMPANY DOES BUSINESS INADEQUATE INSURANCE

OR INABILITY TO OBTAIN INSURANCE TO COVER THESE RISKS AND

HAZARDS EMPLOYEE RELATIONS RELATIONSHIPS WITH AND CLAIMS BY

LOCAL COMMUNITIES AND INDIGENOUS POPULATIONS AVAILABILITY

AND INCREASING COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH MINING INPUTS AND

LABOUR THE SPECULATIVE NATURE OF MINERAL EXPLORATION AND

DEVELOPMENT INCLUDING THE RISKS OF OBTAINING NECESSARY LICENSES

AND PERMITS AND THE PRESENCE OF LAWS AND REGULATIONS THAT

MAY IMPOSE RESTRICTIONS ON MINING INCLUDING THOSE CURRENTLY

IN THE PROVINCE OF CHUBU1 ARGENTINA DIMINISHING QUANTITIES

OR GRADES OF MINERAL RESERVES AS PROPERTIES ARE MINED GLOBAL

FINANCIAL CONDITIONS THE COMPANYS ABILITY TO COMPLETE AND

SUCCESSFULLY INTEGRATE ACQUISITIONS AND TO MITIGATE OTHER

BUSINESS COMBINATION RISKS CHALLENGES TO OR DIFFICULTY IN

MAINTAINING THE COMPANYS TITLE TO PROPERTIES AND CONTINUED

OWNERSHIP THEREOF THE ACTUAL RESULTS OF CURRENT EXPLORATION

ACTIVITIES CONCLUSIONS OF ECONOMIC EVALUATIONS AND CHANGES

IN PROJECT PARAMETERS TO DEAL WITH UNANTICIPATED ECONOMIC OR

OTHER FACTORS INCREASED COMPETITION IN THE MINING INDUSTRY FOR

PROPERTIES EQUIPMEN1 QUALIFIED PERSONNEL AND THEIR COSTS AND

THOSE FACTORS IDENTIFIED UNDER THE CAPTION RISKS RELATED TO PAN

AMERICANS BUSINESS IN THE COMPANYS MOST RECENT FORM 40-F AND

ANNUAL INFORMATION FORM FILED WITH THE UNITED STATES SECURITIES

AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION AND CANADIAN PROVINCIAL SECURITIES

REGULATORY AUTHORITIES INVESTORS ARE CAUTIONED AGAINST

ATTRIBUTING UNDUE CERTAINTY OR RELIANCE ON FORWARD-LOOKING

STATEMENTS ALTHOUGH THE COMPANY HAS ATTEMPTED TO IDENTIFY

IMPORTANT FACTORS THAT COULD CAUSE ACTUAL RESULTS TO DIFFER

MATERIALL THERE MAY BE OTHER FACTORS THAT CAUSE RESULTS NOT TO

BE AS ANTICIPATED ESTIMATED DESCRIBED OR INTENDED THE COMPANY

DOES NOT INTEND AND DOES NOT ASSUME ANY OBLIGATION TO UPDATE

THESE FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS OR INFORMATION TO REFLECT

CHANGES IN ASSUMPTIONS OR CHANGES IN CIRCUMSTANCES OR ANY

OTHER EVENTS AFFECTING SUCH STATEMENTS OR INFORMATION OTHER

THAN AS REQUIRED BY APPLICABLE LAW

CAUTIONARY NOTE TO US INVESTORS CONCERNING ESTIMATES OF

RESERVES AND RESOURCES

THIS MDA HAS BEEN PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE

REQUIREMENTS OF CANADIAN PROVINCIAL SECURITIES LAWS WHICH

DIFFER FROM THE REQUIREMENTS OF U.S SECURITIES LAWS UNLESS

OTHERWISE INDICATED ALL MINERAL RESERVE AND RESOURCE ESTIMATES

INCLUDED IN THIS MDA HAVE BEEN PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH

CANADIAN NATIONAL INSTRUMENT 43-101 STANDARDS OF DISCLOSURE

FOR MINERAL PROJECTS NI 43-101 AND THE CANADIAN INSTITUTE OF

MINING METALLURGY AND PETROLEUM CLASSIFICATION SYSTEM NI 43-

101 IS RULE DEVELOPED BY THE CANADIAN SECURITIES ADMINISTRATORS

THAT ESTABLISHES STANDARDS FOR ALL PUBLIC DISCLOSURE AN ISSUER

MAKES OF SCIENTIFIC AND TECHNICAL INFORMATION CONCERNING

MINERAL PROJECTS

CANADIAN STANDARDS INCLUDING NI 43-101 DIFFER SIGNIFICANTLY

FROM THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND

EXCHANGE COMMISSION THE SEC AND INFORMATION CONCERNING

MINERALIZATION DEPOSITS MINERAL RESERVE AND RESOURCE

INFORMATION CONTAINED OR REFERRED TO HEREIN MAY NOT BE

COMPARABLE TO SIMILAR INFORMATION DISCLOSED BY U.S COMPANIES

IN PARTICULAR AND WITHOUT LIMITING THE GENERALITY OF THE

FOREGOING THIS MDA USES THE TERMS MEASURED RESOURCES

INDICATED RESOURCES AND INFERRED RESOURCES U.S INVESTORS

ARE ADVISED THAT WHILE SUCH TERMS ARE RECOGNIZED AND REQUIRED

BY CANADIAN SECURITIES LAWS THE SEC DOES NOT RECOGNIZE THEM

UNDER U.S STANDARDS MINERALIZATION MAY NOT BE CLASSIFIED AS

RESERVE UNLESS THE DETERMINATION HAS BEEN MADE THAT THE

MINERALIZATION COULD BE ECONOMICALLY AND LEGALLY PRODUCED

OR EXTRACTED AT THE TIME THE RESERVE DETERMINATION IS MADE

U.S INVESTORS ARE CAUTIONED NOT TO ASSUME THAT ANY PART

OF MEASURED RESOURCE OR INDICATED RESOURCE WILL EVER

BE CONVERTED INTO RESERVE U.S INVESTORS SHOULD ALSO

UNDERSTAND THAT INFERRED RESOURCES HAVE GREAT AMOUNT OF

UNCERTAINTY AS TO THEIR EXISTENCE AND GREAT UNCERTAINTY AS TO

THEIR ECONOMIC AND LEGAL FEASIBILITY IT CANNOT BE ASSUMED THAT

ALL OR ANY PART OF INFERRED RESOURCES EXIST ARE ECONOMICALLY

OR LEGALLY MINEABLE OR WILL EVER BE UPGRADED TO HIGHER

CATEGORY UNDER CANADIAN SECURITIES LAWS ESTIMATED INFERRED

RESOURCES MAY NOT FORM THE BASIS OF FEASIBILITY OR PRE-FEASIBILITY

STUDIES EXCEPT IN RARE CASES DISCLOSURE OF CONTAINED OUNCES

IN MINERAL RESOURCE IS PERMITTED DISCLOSURE UNDER CANADIAN

SECURITIES LAWS HOWEVER THE SEC NORMALLY ONLY PERMITS ISSUERS

TO REPORT MINERALIZATION THAT DOES NOT CONSTITUTE RESERVES

BY SEC STANDARDS AS IN PLAC TONNAGE AND GRADE WITHOUT

REFERENCE TO UNIT MEASURES THE REQUIREMENTS OF NI 43-101 FOR

IDENTIFICATION OF RESERVES ARE ALSO NOT THE SAME AS THOSE OF

THE SEC AND RESERVES REPORTED BY THE COMPANY IN COMPLIANCE

WITH NI 43-101 MAY NOT QUALIFY AS RESERVES UNDER SEC STANDARDS

ACCORDINGLY INFORMATION CONCERNING MINERAL DEPOSITS SET FORTH

HEREIN MAY NOT BE COMPARABLE WITH INFORMATION MADE PUBLIC BY

COMPANIES THAT REPORT IN ACCORDANCE WITH iS STANDARDS
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Pan American

Managements Responsibility For Financial Reporting

The accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of Pan American Silver Corp were prepared by management

which is responsible for the integrity and fairness of the information presented including the many amounts that

must of necessity be based on estimates and judgments These Consolidated Financial Statements were prepared in

accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board

IFRS Financial information appearing throughout our managements discussion and analysis is consistent with these

Consolidated Financial Statements

In discharging our responsibility for the integrity and fairness of the consolidated financial statements and for the

accounting systems from which they are derived we maintain the necessary system of internal controls designed to

ensure that transactions are authorized assets are safeguarded and proper records are maintained These controls

include quality standards in hiring employees policies and procedure manuals corporate code of conduct and

accountability for performance within appropriate and well-defined areas of responsibility

The Board of Directors oversees managements responsibilities for financial reporting through an Audit Committee

which is composed entirely of directors who are neither officers nor employees of Pan American Silver Corp This

Committee reviews our consolidated financial statements and recommends them to the Board for approval Other key

responsibilities of the Audit Committee include reviewing our existing internal control procedures and planned revisions

to those procedures and advising the directors on auditing matters and financial reporting issues

Deloitte LIP Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm appointed by the shareholders of Pan American Silver

Corp upon the recommendation of the Audit Committee and Board have performed an independent audit of the

Consolidated Financial Statements and their report follows The auditors have full and unrestricted access to the Audit

Committee to discuss their audit and related findings

signed signed

Geoff Burns Robert Doyle

President and Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

March 26 2014
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Deloitte LIP

Street

Vancouver BC V7X 1P4

Canada

Tel 604-669-4466

Fax 778-374-0496

www.deloitte.ca

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Pan American Silver Corp

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Pan American Silver Corp and subsidiaries the Company
which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as at December 31 2013 and December 31 2012 and the

consolidated income statements statements of comprehensive loss income cash flows and changes in equity for each of the years in

the two year period ended December 31 2013 and summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

Managements Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with

International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and for such internal control

as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement whether due to fraud or error

Auditors ResponsIbility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits We conducted our audits

in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards and the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board United States Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain

reasonableassurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial

statements The procedures selected depend on the auditors judgment including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement

of the consolidated financial statements whether due to fraud or error In making those risk assessments the auditor considers internal

control relevant to the entitys preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies

used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

consolidated financial statements

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained in our audits is sufficient and appropriate to provide basis for our audit opinion

Opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements present fairly in all material respects the financial position of Pan American Silver

Corp and subsidiaries as at December 31 2013 and December 31 2012 and their financial performance and their cash flows for each

of the years in the two year period ended December 31 2013 in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued

by the International Accounting Standards Board

Other Matter

We have also audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States the

Companys internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2013 based on the criteria established in Internal Control

Integrated Framework 1992 issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated

March 26 2014 expressed an unqualified opinion on the Companys internal control over financial reporting

/s/ Deloitte LLP

Chartered Accountants

Vancouvet Canada

March 26 2014
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Deloitte LLP

tte
Vancouver BC V7X 1P4

Canada

Tel 604-669-4466

Fax 778-374-0496

www.deloitte.ca

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Pan American Silver Corp

We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of Pan American Silver Corp and subsidiaries the Company as of

December 31 2013 based on the criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework 1992 issued by the Committee of

Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission The Companys management is responsible for maintaining effective internal

control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the

accompanying Managements Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the

Companys internal control over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States Those

standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over

financial reporting was maintained in all material respects Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over

financial reporting assessing the risk that material weakness exists testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of

internal control based on the assessed risk and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances

We believe that our audit provides reasonable basis for our opinion

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed by or under the supervision of the companys principal

executive and principal financial officers or persons performing similar functions and effected by the companys board of directors

management and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation

of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the

International Accounting Standards Board companys internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures

that pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions

of the assets of the company provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of

financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards

Board and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and

directors of the company and provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition

use or disposition of the companys assets that could have material effect on the financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting including the possibility of collusion or improper

management override of controls material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or detected on timely basis

Also projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to

the risk that the controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies

or procedures may deteriorate

In our opinion the Company maintained in all material respects effective internal control over financial reporting as of December

31 2013 based on the criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework 1992 issued by the Committee of Sponsoring

Organizations of the Treadway Commission

We have also audited in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards and the standards of the Public Company

Accounting Oversight Board United States the consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31 2013 of

the Company and our report dated March 26 2014 expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements

/5/ Deloitte LLP

Chartered Accountants

Vancouver Canada

March 26 2014

49



PAN AMERICAN SILVER CORP
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

As at December 31 2013 and 2012

in thousands of U.S dollars

Decemer 31 2013 Decemer 31 2012 Recast

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents Note 25 249937 346208

Short-term investments Note 172785 196116

Trade and other receivables Note 114782 134612

Income taxes receivable 40685 18671

Inventories Note 10 284352 266663

Derivative financial instruments Note 25

Prepaids and other current assets 9123 9546

871664 971841

Non-current assets

Mineral properties plant and equipment Note 11 1870678 2205252

Long-term refundable tax Note 9801 9937

Deferred tax assets Note 28 165 1358

Other assets Note 13 8014 7291

Goodwill Note 12 7134 198946

Total Assets
2767456 3394625

Liabilities

Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities Note 14 125609 136149

Loan payable Note 15 20095

Provisions Note 16 3172 7022

Current portion of finance lease Note 17 4437 12473

Current income tax liabilities 29319 52217

182632 207861

Non-current liabilities

Provisions Note 16 43817 45661

Deferred tax liabilities Note 28 285947 326171

Share purchase warrants Note 20 207 8594

Long-term portion of finance lease Note 17 5717 24377

Long-term debt Note 18 34302 41134

Other long-term liabilities Note 19 26045 23256

Total Liabilities
578667 677054

Equity

Capital and reserves Note 20

Issued capital 2295208 2300517

Share option reserve 21110 20560

Investment revaluation reserve 137 964

Retained deficit earnings 133847 388202

Total Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company 2182334 2710243

Non-controlling interests 6455 7328

Total Equity 2188789 2717571

Total liabilities and Equity 2767456 3394625

Commitments and Contingencies Notes 29

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements

APPROVED BY THE BOARD ON MARCH 26 2014

signed Ross Beat Director signed Geoff Burns Director
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PAN AMERICAN SILVER CORP
Consolidated Income Statements

For the years ended December 31 2013 and 2012

in thousands of U.S dollars

2013 2012 Recast

Revenue Note 26 824504 928594

Cost of sales

Production costs Note 21 530613 485163

Depreciation and amortization Note 11 135913 104409

Royalties
26459 35077

692985 624649

Mine operating earnings 131519 303945

General and administrative 17596 20790

Exploration and project development 15475 36746

Impairment charge Note 12 540228 100009

Acquisition costs Note 16162

Foreign exchange gains losses 14637 5577

Gain on commodity and foreign currency contracts 4551 421

Gain on sale of mineral properties plant and equipment Note 14068 9652

Other income and expenses Note 27 8287 5370

Loss earnings from operations 438613 151258

Gain on derivatives Note 20 16715 24159

Investment income 3086 6178

Interest and finance expense Note 23 10277 7678

Loss earnings before income taxes 429089 173917

Income taxes Note 28 16757 95562

Net loss earnings for the year 445846 78355

Attributable to

Equity
holders of the Company 445851 78201

Non-controlling interests
154

445846 78355

loss earnings per share attributable to common shareholders Note 24

Basic loss earnings per share 2.94 0.56

Diluted loss earnings per share 2.96 0.49

Weighted average shares outstanding in 000s Basic 151501 140883

Weighted average shares outstanding in 000s Diluted 153430 142442

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive loss Income

For the
years

ended December 31 2013 and 2012

in thousands of U.S dollars

2013 2012 Recast

Net loss earnings for the year 445846 78355

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to net earnings

Unrealized net losses gains on available for sale securities

net of zero dollars tax in 2013 and 2012 2163 2452

Reclassification adjustment for net losses gains on available for sale

securities included in earnings net of zero dollars tax in 2013 and 2012 1062 3634

Total comprehensive loss Income for the year 446947 77173

Total comprehensive loss income attributable to

Equity holders of the Company 446952 77019

Non-controlling interests
154

446947 77173
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PAN AMERICAN SILVER CORE
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For the years ended December 31 2013 and 2012

in thousands of U.S dollars

445846

Current income tax expense Note 28

Deferred income tax recovery Note 28

Depreciation and amortization Note 11

Impairment of mineral property Note 12

Accretion on closure and decommissioning provision Note 16

Unrealized gains losses on foreign exchange

Share-based compensation expense

Unrealized losses gains on commodity contracts Note

Gain on derivatives Note 20

Gain on sale of mineral property plant and equipment Note

Changes in non-cash operating working capital Note 25

Operating cash flows before interest and income taxes

55691

38934

135913

540228

3030

922

2173

25

16715

14068

1673

218902

101050

5488

104409

100009

2999

6124

4142

25

24159

9652

11062

346702

Interest paid 3425 3639

Interest received 2138 2575

Income taxes paid 98009 152333

Net cash generated from operating activities 119606 193305

Cash flow from investing activities

Payments for mineral properties plant and equipment 159401 159915

Proceeds from short term investments 19920 30383

Acquisition of Minefinders net of cash acquired Note 86528

Proceeds from sale of mineral property plant and equipment 13681 1692

Net refundable tax and other asset expenditures 452 1989

Net cash used in investing activities 125348 39323

Cash flow from
financing activities

Proceeds from issue of equity shares
3195

Shares repurchased and cancelled Note 20 6740 41749
Dividends paid 75755 24919

Proceeds from short term loan Note 15 23496

Payment of construction and equipment leases 30238 6213
Distributions to non-controlling interests 925 1074

Net cash used in financing activities 90162 70760
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 367 85

Net decrease increase in cash and cash equivalents 96271 83307

Cash atthe beginning of the year 346208 262901

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 249937 346208

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements

Cash flow from operating activities

Net loss earnings for the year

2013 2012 Recast

78355
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PAN AMERICAN SILVER CORP
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity

For the years ended December 31 2013 and 2012

in thousands of U.S dollars except for number of shares

Attributable to equity holders of
the_Company

Retained

earnings

deficit

339821

Non-

Total controlling
Total equity

interests

8248

Issued shares Issued capital

Share

option

reserve

Investment

revaluation

reserve

Balance December 31 2011 104492743 1243241 8631 2146 1593839 1602087

Total comprehensive income

Net earnings for the year 78201 78201 154 78355

Other comprehensive loss 1182 1182 1182

1182 78201 77019 154 77173

Transaction with owners

Shares issued on the exercise of

stock options 288796 4947 1765 3182 3182

Shares issued as compensation 57369 1060 1060 1060

Shares issued on the exercise

of warrants 379 13 13 13

Shares repurchased and

cancelled 2411240 36848 4901 41749 41749

Issued to acquire Minefinders 49392588 1088104 10739 1098843 1098843

Issued on replacement awards 699 699 699

Distributions by subsidiaries to

non-controlling interests 1074 1074

Share-based compensation on

option grants
2256 2256 2256

Dividends paid
24919 24919 24919

Balance December 31 2012

Recast 151820635 2300517 20560 964 388202 2710243 7328 2717571

Total comprehensive loss

income

Net loss forthe year 445851 445851 445846

Other comprehensive loss 1101 1101 1101

1101 445851 446952 446947

Transaction with owners

Shares issued as compensation 94659 1035 1035 1035

Shares repurchased and

cancelled 415000 6344 396 6740 6740

Distributions by subsidiaries to

non-controlling interests 47 47 878 925

Share-based compensation on

option grants
550 SS0 SS0

Dividends paid
75755 75755 75755

Balance December 31 2013 151500294 2295208 21110 137 133847 2182334 6455 2188789

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

As at December 31 2013 and 2012

Tabular amounts are in thousands of U.S dollars except number of options and warrants and per share amounts

NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Pan American Silver Corp is the ultimate parent company of its

subsidiary group collectively the Company or Pan American

Pan American Silver Corp is incorporated and domiciled in Canada

and its office is at Suite 1500 625 Howe Street Vancouver

British Columbia V6C 2T6

The Company is engaged in the production and sale of silver gold

and base metals including copper lead and zinc as well as other

related activities including exploration extraction processing

refining and reclamation The Companys primary product silver

is produced in Peru Mexico Argentina and Bolivia Additionally

the Company has project development activities in Peru Mexico

and Argentina and exploration activities throughout South

America Mexico and the United States

At December 31 2013 the Companys principal producing

properties were comprised of the Huaron and Morococha mines

located in Peru the Alamo Dorado La Colorada and Dolores mines

located in Mexico the San Vicente mine located in Bolivia and the

Manantial Espejo mine located in Argentina

The Companys significant development project at December 31

2013 was the Navidad project in Argentina

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of Compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in

accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as

issued by the International Accounting Standards Board IFRS
IFRS comprises IFRS5 International Accounting Standards lASs
and interpretations issued by the IFRS Interpretations Committee

IFRICs and the former Standing Interpretations Committee

SICs

These consolidated financial statements were approved for

issuance by the Board of Directors on March 26 2014

Basis of Preparation

The Companys accounting policies have been applied consistently

in preparing these consolidated annual financial statements

for the year ended December 31 2013 and the comparative

information as at December 31 2012 which has been recast due

to finalization of the purchase price allocation for the acquisition

of Minefinders note

Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation The financial statements consolidate

the financial statements of Pan American and its subsidiaries

All intercompany balances transactions unrealized profits

and losses arising from intra-company transactions have been

eliminated in full The results of subsidiaries acquired or sold are

consolidated for the periods from or to the date on which control

passes Control is achieved where the Company is exposed

or has rights to variable returns from its involvement with an

investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its

power over the investee This occurs when the Company has

existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant

activities is exposed or has rights to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee when the investors returns from its

involvement have the potential to vary as result of the investees

performance and the ability to use its power over the investee

to affect the amount of the investors returns Where there is

loss of control of subsidiary the financial statements include

the results for the part of the reporting period during which the

Company has control Subsidiaries use the same reporting period

and same accounting policies as the Company

For partly owned subsidiaries the net assets and net earnings

attributable to non-controlling shareholders are presented as

net earnings attributable to non-controlling interest in the

consolidated statement of financial position consolidated income

statement Total comprehensive income is attributable to the

owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests

even if this results in the non-controlling interest having deficit

balance

The consolidated financial statements include the wholly-owned

and partially-owned subsidiaries of the Company the most

significant at December 31 2013 and 2012 are presented in the

following table

ri1j
Pan American Silver Huaron S.A Peru 100% Consolidated Huaron mine

Compaæia Minera Argentum S.A Peru 92% Consolidated Morococha mine

Minera Corner Bay S.A Mexico 100% Consolidated Alamo Dorado mine

Plata Panamericana S.A de C.V Mexico 100% Consolidated La Colorada mine

Compaæia Minera Dolores S.A de C.V Mexico 100% Consolidated Dolores mine

Minera Triton Argentina S.A Argentina 100% Consolidated Manantial Espejo mine

Pan American Silver Bolivia S.A Bolivia 95% Consolidated San Vicente mine

Minera Argenta S.A Argentina 100% Consolidated Navidad Project
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Investments in associates An associate is an entity over which

the investor has significant influence but not control and that is

neither subsidiary nor an interest in joint venture Significant

influence is presumed to exist where the Company has between

20% and 50% of the voting rights but can also arise where the

Company has less than 20% if the Company has the power

to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions

affecting the entity The Companys share of the net assets and

net earnings or loss is accounted for in the consolidated financial

statements using the equity method of accounting

Basis of measurement These consolidated financial statements

have been prepared on historical cost basis except for derivative

financial instruments share purchase warrants and assets

classified as at fair value through profit or loss or available-for-sale

which are measured at fair value Additionally these consolidated

financial statements have been prepared using the accrual basis of

accounting except for cash flow information

Currency of presentation The consolidated financial statements

are presented in United States dollars USO which is

the Companys and each of the subsidiaries functional and

presentation currenc and all values are rounded to the nearest

thousand except where otherwise indicated

Business combinations Upon the acquisition of business the

acquisition method of accounting is used whereby the purchase

consideration is allocated to the identifiable assets liabilities

and contingent liabilities identifiable net assets acquired on

the basis of fair value at the date of acquisition When the cost

of the acquisition exceeds the fair value attributable to the

Companys share of the identifiable net assets the difference

is treated as purchased goodwill which is not amortized and

is reviewed for impairment annually or more frequently when

there is an indication of impairment If the fair value attributable

to the Companys share of the identifiable net assets exceeds

the cost of acquisition the difference is immediately recognized

in the income statement Acquisition related costs other than

costs to issue debt or equity securities of the acquirer including

investment banking fees legal fees accounting fees valuation

fees and other professional or consulting fees are expensed as

incurred The costs to issue equity securities of the Company as

consideration for the acquisition are reduced from share capital

as share issuance costs The costs to issue debt securities are

capitalized and amortized using the effective interest method

Non-controlling interests are measured either at fair value or

at the non-controlling interests proportionate share of the

recognized amounts of the acquirers identifiable net assets as at

the date of acquisition The choice of measurement basis is made

on transaction by transaction basis

Control of business may be achieved in stages Upon the

acquisition of control any previously held interest is re-measured

to fair value at the date control is obtained resulting in gain or

loss upon the acquisition of control Additionally any change

relating to interest previously recognized in other comprehensive

income is reclassified to the income statement upon the

acquisition of control

If the initial accounting for business combination is incomplete

by the end of the reporting period in which the combination

occurs the Company reports provisional amounts for the items for

which the accounting is incomplete These provisional amounts

are adjusted during the measurement period or additional assets

or liabilities are recognized to reflect new information obtained

about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date

that if known would have affected the amounts recognized at

that date

Revenue reco2nition Revenue associated with the sale of

commodities is recognized when all significant risks and rewards

of ownership of the asset sold are transferred to the customer

usually when insurance risk and title has passed to the customer

and the commodity has been delivered to the shipping agent At

this point the Company retains neither continuing managerial

involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor

effective control over the commodities and the costs incurred or

to be incurred in respect of the sale can be reliably measured

Revenue is recognized at the fair value of the consideration

receivable to the extent that it is probable that economic

benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be

reliably measured Sales revenue is recognized at the fair value of

consideration received which in most cases is based on invoiced

amounts

The Companys concentrate sales contracts with third-party

smelters in general provide for provisional payment based

upon provisional assays and quoted metal prices Final settlement

is based on applicable commodity prices set on specified

quotational periods typically ranging from one month prior to

shipment and can extend to three months after the shipment

arrives at the smelter and is based on average market metal

prices For this purpose the selling price can be measured reliably

for those products such as silver gold zinc lead and copper for

which there exists an active and freely traded commodity market

such as the London Metals Exchange and the value of product sold

by the Company is directly linked to the form in which it is traded

on that market

Sales revenue is commonly subject to adjustments based on

an inspection of the product by the customer In such cases

sales revenue is initially recognized on provisional basis using

the Companys best estimate of contained metal and adjusted

subsequently Revenues are recorded under these contracts at the

time title passes to the buyer based on the expected settlement

period Revenue on provisionally priced sales is recognized

based on estimates of the fair value of the consideration

receivable based on forward market prices At each reporting

date provisionally priced metal is marked to market based on the

forward selling price for the quotational period stipulated in the

contract Variations between the price recorded at the shipment

date and the actual final price set under the smelting contracts

are caused by changes in metal prices and result in an embedded

derivative in the accounts receivable The embedded derivative

is recorded at fair value each period until final settlement occurs

with the fair value adjustments recognized in revenue

Refining and treatment charges under the sales contract with

third-party smelters are netted against revenue for sales of metal

concentrate

Financial instruments financial instrument is any contract that

gives rise to financial asset of one entity and financial liability

or equity instrument of another entity

Financial assets

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following

categories at fair value through profit or loss loans and

receivables available-for-sale and held-to-maturity investments
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

As at December 31 2013 end 2012

Tabular amounts are in thousands of US dollars except number of options and warrants and per share amounts

The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial

assets were acquired Management determines the classification

of financial assets at initial recognition

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are classified as at fair value through profit or

loss when the financial asset is either held for trading or it is

designated as at fair value through profit and loss Derivatives are

included in this category and are classified as current assets or

non-current assets based on their maturity date The Company

does not acquire financial assets for the purpose of selling in the

short term Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or

loss are initially recognized at fair value The directly attributable

transaction costs are expensed in the income statement in the

period in which they are incurred Subsequent changes in fair

value are recognized in net earnings

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with

fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an

active market Loans and receivables comprise trade and other

receivables other assets and cash in the statement of financial

position Loans and receivables are carried at amortized costless

any impairment

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are

either specifically designated as available-for- sale or not classified

in any of the other categories They are included in non-current

assets unless the Company intends to dispose of the investment

within 12 months of the statement of financial position date

Changes in the fair value of available-for-sale financial assets

denominated in currency other than the functional currency of

the holdei other than equity investments are analyzed between

translation differences and other changes in the carrying amount

of the security The translation differences are recognized in the

income statement Any impairment charges are also recognized

in the income statement while other changes in fair value are

recognized in other comprehensive income When financial assets

classified as available-for-sale are sold the accumulated fair

value adjustments previously recognized in accumulated other

comprehensive income are reclassified to the income statement

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are also

recognized in the income statement within investment income

when the Companys right to receive payments is established

Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable

payments and fixed maturity are classified as held-to-maturity

when the Company has the positive intention and ability to hold

to maturity Investments intended to be held for an undefined

period are not included in this classification Other long-term

investments that are intended to be held-to-maturity such as

bonds are measured at amortized cost This cost is computed

as the amount initially recognized minus principal repayments

plus or minus the cumulative amortization using the effective

interest method of any difference between the
initially recognized

amount and the maturity amount This calculation includes all

fees paid or received between parties to the contract that are an

integral part of the effective interest rate transaction costs and

all other premiums and discounts For investments carried at

amortized cost gains and losses are recognized in income when

the investments are derecognized or impaired as well as through

the amortization process

ii Financial liabilities

Borrowings and other financial liabilities are classified as other

financial liabilities and are recognized initially at fair value net

of transaction costs incurred and are subsequently stated at

amortized cost Any difference between the amounts originally

received net of transaction costs and the redemption value is

recognized in the income statement over the period to maturity

using the effective interest method

Borrowings and other financial liabilities are classified as current

liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to

defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the

statement of financial position date

iii Derivative finaricia/instruments

When the Company enters into derivative contracts these

transactions are designed to reduce exposures related to assets

and liabilities firm commitments or anticipated transactions All

derivatives are initially recognized at their fair value on the date

the derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re

measured at their fair value at each statement of financial position

date

Embedded derivatives Derivatives embedded in other financial

instruments or other host contracts are treated as separate

derivatives when their risks and characteristics are not closely

related to their host contracts

iv Fair value

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset

or paid to transfer
liability in an orderly transaction between

market participants at the measurement date Where relevant

market prices are available these are used to determine fair

values In other cases fair values are calculated using quotations

from independent financial institutions or by using valuation

techniques consistent with general market practice applicable to

the instrument

The fair values of cash and short term borrowings approximate

their carrying values as result of their short maturity or

because they carry floating rates of interest

Derivative financial assets and liabilities are measured at fair

value based on published price quotations for the period for

which liquid active market exists

Impairment of financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets

The Company assesses at each statement of financial position

date whether there is objective evidence that financial

asset or group of financial assets is impaired In the case of

equity securities classified as available for sale an evaluation

is made as to whether decline in fair value is significant or
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prolonged based on an analysis of indicators such as significant

adverse changes in the technological market economic or legal

environment in which the investee operates

If an available-for-sale financial asset is impaired an amount

comprising the difference between its cost net of any principal

payment and amortization and its current fair value less any

impairment loss previously recognized in the income statement

is transferred from equity to the income statement Reversals in

respect of equity instruments classified as available-for-sale are

not recognized in the income statement Reversals of impairment

losses on debt instruments are reversed through the income

statement if the increase in fair value of the instrument can be

objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss

was recognized

vi De-recognition of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets

financial asset is derecognized when its contractual rights to the

cash flows that comprise the financial asset expire or substantially

all the risks and rewards of the asset are transferred

Financial liabilities

financial liability is de-recognized when the obligation under the

liability is discharged cancelled or expired Gains and losses on

de-recognition are recognized within finance income and finance

costs respectively

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from

the same lender on substantially different terms or the terms of

an existing liability are substantially modified such an exchange

or modification is treated as de-recognition of the original

liability and the recognition of new liability and any difference

in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the income

statement

vii Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recognized initially at fair value and are

subsequently measured at amortized cost reduced by any

provision for impairment provision for impairment of trade

receivables is established when there is objective evidence

that the Company will not be able to collect all amounts due

Indicators of impairment would include financial difficulties of the

debtor likelihood of the debtors insolvency default in payment

or significant deterioration in creditworthiness Any impairment

is recognized in the income statement within doubtful accounts

provision When trade receivable is uncollectable it is written

off against the provision for impairment Subsequent recoveries

of amounts previously written off are credited against doubtful

accounts provision in the income statement

viii Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities are recognized initially at

fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the

effective interest method

Derivative Financial Instruments The Company employs metals

and currency contracts including forward contracts to manage

exposure to fluctuations in metal prices and foreign currency

exchange rates For metals production these contracts are

intended to reduce the risk of falling prices on the Companys

future sales Foreign currency derivative financial instruments

such as forward contracts are used to manage the effects of

exchange rate changes on foreign currency cost exposures Such

derivative financial instruments are initially recognized at fair

value on the date on which derivative contract is entered into

and are subsequently re-measured at fair value Derivatives are

carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities

when the fair value is negative and any gains or losses arising from

changes in fair value on derivatives are taken directly to earnings

for the year The fair value of forward currency and commodity

contracts is calculated by reference to current forward exchange

rates and prices for contracts with similar maturity profiles

Derivatives including certain conversion options and warrants

with exercise prices in currency other than the functional

currency are recognized at fair value with changes in fair value

recognized in
profit or loss

Normal Durchase or sale exemotion Contracts that were entered

into and continue to be held for the purpose of the receipt or

delivery of nonfinancial item in accordance with the Companys

expected purchase sale or usage requirements fall in the

exemption from lAS 32 and lAS 39 which is known as the normal

purchase or sale exemption with the exception of those with

quotational period clauses which result in the recognition of an

embedded derivative Refer to note 8b for more information

For these contracts and the host part of the contracts containing

embedded derivatives they are accounted for as executory

contracts The Company recognizes such contracts in its statement

of financial position only when one of the parties meets its

obligation under the contract to deliver either cash or non

financial asset

Convertible Notes The Company has the right to pay all or

part of the liability associated with the Companys outstanding

convertible notes in cash on the conversion date Accordingly

the Company classifies the convertible notes as financial

liability with an embedded derivative The financial liability and

embedded derivative are recognized initially at their respective

fair values The embedded derivative is subsequently recognized

at fair value with changes in fair value reflected in profit or loss

and the debt liability component is recognized at amortized

cost using the effective interest method Interest gains and

losses related to the debt liability component or embedded

derivatives are recognized in profit or loss On conversion the

equity instrument is measured at the carrying value of the liability

component and the fair value of the derivative component on the

conversion date

Cash and cash equivalents Cash and cash equivalents include cash

on hand and cash in banks It also includes short-term money

market investments that are readily convertible to cash with

original terms of three months or less Cash and cash equivalents

are classified as loans and receivables and therefore are stated at

amortized cost less any impairment

Short-term investments Short-term investments are classified

as avaiIabIe-for-sale and consist of highly-liquid debt securities

with original maturities in excess of three months and equity

securities These debt and equity securities are initially recorded

at fair value which upon their initial measurement is equal to

their cost Subsequent measurements and changes in the market

value of these debt and equity securities are recorded as changes

to other comprehensive income Investments are assessed

quarterly for potential impairment

Inventories Inventories include work in progress concentrate

ore dare processed silver and gold heap leach inventor and
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

As at December 31 2013 and 2012

Tabular amounts are in thousands of US dollars except number of options and warrants and
per

share amounts

operating materials and supplies Work in progress inventory

includes ore stockpiles and other partly processed material

Stockpiles represent ore that has been extracted and is

available for further processing The classification of inventory

is determined by the stage at which the ore is in the production

process Inventories of ore are sampled for metal content and

are valued based on the lower of cost or estimated net realizable

value based upon the period ending prices of contained metal

Cost is determined on weighted average basis or using first-

in-first-out basis and includes all costs incurred in the normal

course of business including direct material and direct labour

costs and an allocation of production overheads depreciation

and amortization and other costs based on normal production

capacity incurred in bringing each product to its present location

and condition Material that does not contain minimum quantity

of metal to cover estimated processing expense to recover the

contained metal is not classified as inventory and is assigned no

value The work in progress inventory is considered part of the

operating cycle which the Company classifies as current inventory

and hence heap leach and stockpiles are included in current

inventory Quantities are assessed primarily through surveys and

assays

The costs incurred in the construction of the heap leach pad

are capitalized Heap leach inventory represents silver and gold

contained in ore that has been placed on the leach pad for cyanide

irrigation The heap leach process is process of extracting silver

and gold by placing ore on an impermeable pad and applying

diluted cyanide solution that dissolves portion of the contained

silver and gold which are then recovered during the metallurgical

process When the ore is placed on the pad an estimate of the

recoverable ounces is made based on tonnage ore grade and

estimated recoveries of the ore type placed on the pad The

estimated recoverable ounces on the pad are used to compile the

inventory cost

The Company uses several integrated steps to scientifically

measure the metal content of the ore placed on the leach pads

The tonnage grade and ore type to be mined in period is first

estimated using the Mineral Resource model As the ore body

is drilled in preparation for the blasting process samples are

taken of the drill residue which is assayed to determine their

metal content and quantities of contained metal The estimated

recoverable ounces carried in the leach pad inventory are

adjusted based on actual recoveries being experienced Actual

and estimated recoveries achieved are measured to the extent

possible using various indicators including but not limited to

individual cell recoveries the use of leach curve recovery trends

in the levels of carried ounces depending on the circumstances or

cumulative pad recoveries

The Company then processes the ore through the crushing facility

where the output is again weighed and sampled for assaying

metallurgical reconciliation with the data collected from the

mining operation is completed with appropriate adjustments

made to previous estimates The crushed ore is then transported

to the leach pad for application of the leaching solution The

samples from the automated sampler are assayed each shift

and used for process control The quantity of leach solution

is measured by flow meters throughout the leaching and

precipitation process The pregnant solution from the heap leach

is collected and passed through the processing circuit to produce

precipitate which is retorted and then smelted to produce dorØ

bars

The Company allocates direct and indirect production costs to

by-products on systematic and rational basis With respect to

concentrate and dore inventory production costs are allocated

based on the silver equivalent ounces contained within the

respective concentrate and dore

The inventory is stated at lower of cost or net realizable value

with cost being determined using weighted average cost

method The ending inventory value of ounces associated with the

leach pad is equal to opening recoverable ounces plus recoverable

ounces placed less ounces produced plus or minus ounce

adjustments

The estimate of both the ultimate recovery expected over time

and the quantity of metal that may be extracted relative to the

time the leach process occurs requires the use of estimates which

rely upon laboratory test work and estimated models of the

leaching kenetics in the heap leach pads Test work consists of

leach columns of up to 400 day duration with 150 days being the

average from which the Company projects metal recoveries up to

three years in the future The quantities of metal contained in the

ore are based upon actual weights and assay analysis The rate at

which the leach process extracts gold and silver from the crushed

ore is based upon laboratory column tests and actual experience

The assumptions used by the Company to measure metal content

during each stage of the inventory conversion process includes

estimated recovery rates based on laboratory testing and assaying

The Company periodically reviews its estimates compared to

actual experience and revises its estimates when appropriate The

ultimate recovery will not be known until the leaching operations

cease

Supplies inventories are valued at the lower of average cost and

net realizable value using replacement cost plus cost to dispose

net of obsolescence Concentrate and dorØ inventory includes

product at the mine site the port warehouse and product held

by refineries At times the Company has limited amount of

finished silver at minting operation where coins depicting Pan

Americans emblem are stamped

Mineral Prooertv Plant and Equipment On initial acquisition

mineral property plant and equipment are valued at cost

being the purchase price and the directly attributable costs of

acquisition or construction required to bring the asset to the

location and condition necessary for the asset to be capable

of operating in the manner intended by management When

provisions for closure and decommissioning are recognized the

corresponding cost is capitalized as part of the cost of the related

assets representing part of the cost of acquiring the future

economic benefits of the operation The capitalized cost of closure

and decommissioning activities is recognized in mineral propert

plant and equipment and depreciated accordingly

In subsequent periods buildings plant and equipment are stated

at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment in

value whilst land is stated at cost less any impairment in value

and is not depreciated
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Each asset or parts estimated useful life has due regard to both

its own physical life limitations and the present assessment of

economically recoverable reserves of the mine property at which

the item is located and to possible future variations in those

assessments Estimates of remaining useful lives and residual

values are reviewed annually Changes in estimates are accounted

for prospectively

The expected useful lives are included below in the accounting

policy for depreciation of property plant and equipment The

net carrying amounts of mineral property land buildings plant

and equipment are reviewed for impairment either individually

or at the cash-generating unit level when events and changes

in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may not

be recoverable To the extent that these values exceed their

recoverable amounts that excess is recorded as an impairment

provision in the financial year in which this is determined

In countries where the Company paid Value Added Tax VAT
and where there is uncertainty of its recoverability the VAT

payments have either been deferred with mineral property

costs relating to the property or expensed if it relates to mineral

exploration If the Company ultimately recovers previously

deferred amounts the amount received will be applied to

reduce mineral property costs or taken as credit against current

expenses depending on the prior treatment

Expenditure on major maintenance or repairs includes the cost of

the replacement of parts of assets and overhaul costs Where an

asset or part of an asset is replaced and it is probable that future

economic benefits associated with the item will be available to

the Company the expenditure is capitalized and the carrying

amount of the item replaced derecognized Similarly overhaul

costs associated with major maintenance are capitalized and

depreciated over their useful lives where it is probable that future

economic benefits will be available and any remaining carrying

amounts of the cost of previous overhauls are derecognized All

other costs are expensed as incurred

Where an item of mineral property plant and equipment is

disposed of it is derecognized and the difference between its

carrying value and net sales proceeds is disclosed as earnings or

loss on disposal in the income statement Any items of mineral

property plant or equipment that cease to have future economic

benefits are derecognized with any gain or loss included in the

financial year in which the item is derecognized

Operational Mining Prooerties and Mine Development When it

has been determined that mineral property can be economically

developed as result of establishing proven and probable reserves

which occurs upon completion of positive economic analysis of

the mineral deposit the costs incurred to develop such property

including costs to further delineate the ore body and remove

overburden to initially expose the ore body prior to the start of

mining operations are also capitalized Such costs are amortized

using the units-of-production method over the estimated life of

the ore body based on proven and probable reserves

Costs associated with commissioning activities on constructed

plants are deferred from the date of mechanical completion of

the facilities until the date the Company is ready to commence

commercial service Any revenues earned during this period

are recorded as reduction in deferred commissioning costs

These costs are amortized using the units-of-production method

described below over the life of the mine commencing on the

date of commercial service

Acquisition costs related to the acquisition of land and mineral

rights are capitalized as incurred Prior to acquiring such land or

mineral rights the Company makes preliminary evaluation to

determine that the property has significant potential to develop

an economic ore body The time between initial acquisition and

full evaluation of propertys potential is dependent on many

factors including location relative to existing infrastructure

the propertys stage of development geological controls and

metal prices If mineable ore body is discovered such costs

are amortized when production begins If no mineable ore body

isdiscovered such costs are expensed in the period in which

it is determined the property has no future economic value In

countries where the Company has paid Value Added Tax and

where there is uncertainty of its recoverability the VAT payments

have either been deferred with mineral property costs relating

to the property or expensed if it relates to mineral exploration If

the Company ultimately makes recoveries of the VAT the amount

received will be applied to reduce mineral property costs or

taken as credit against current expenses depending on the prior

treatment

Major development expenditures on producing properties

incurred to increase production or extend the life of the mine

are capitalized while ongoing mining expenditures on producing

properties are charged against earnings as incurred Gains or

losses from sales or retirements of assets are included in gain or

loss on sale of assets

Depreciation of Mineral Property Plant and Equipment The

carrying amounts of mineral property plant and equipment

including initial and any subsequent capital expenditure are

depreciated to their estimated residual value over the estimated

useful lives of the specific assets concerned or the estimated life

of the associated mine or mineral lease if shorter Estimates of

residual values and useful lives are reviewed annually and any

change in estimate is taken into account in the determination

of remaining depreciation charges and adjusted if appropriate

at each statement of financial position date Changes to the

estimated residual values or useful lives are accounted for

prospectively Depreciation commences on the date when the

asset is available for use as intended by management

Units of produclion basis

For mining properties and leases and certain mining equipment

the economic benefits from the asset are consumed in pattern

which is linked to the production level Except as noted below

such assets are depreciated on unit of production basis

In applying the units of production method depreciation is

normally calculated using the quantity of material extracted from

the mine in the period as percentage of the total quantity of

material to be extracted in current and future periods based on

proven and probable reserves

Straight line basis

Assets within operations for which production is not expected to

fluctuate significantly from one year to another or which have

physical life shorter than the related mine are depreciated on

straight line basis

Mineral property plant and equipment are depreciated over

its useful life or over the remaining life of the mine if shorter

The major categories of property plant and equipment are

depreciated on unit of production and/or straight-line
basis as

follows
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Land not depreciated

Mobile equipment to years

Buildings and plant facilities 25 to 50 years

Mining properties and leases based on reserves on unit

of production basis Capitalized evaluation and development

expenditure based on applicable reserves on unit of

production basis

Exploration and evaluation not depreciated until mine goes

into production

Assets under construction not depreciated until assets are

ready for their intended use

Exploration and Evaluation Expenditure relates to costs incurred

on the exploration and evaluation of potential mineral reserves

and resources and includes costs such as exploratory drilling and

sample testing and the costs of pre-feasibility studies Exploration

expenditures relates to the initial search for deposits with

economic potential Evaluation expenditure arises from detailed

assessment of deposits or other projects that have been identified

as having economic potential

Expenditures on exploration activity are not capitalized

Capitalization of evaluation expenditures commences when

there is high degree of confidence in the projects viability and

hence it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the

Company

Evaluation expenditures other than that acquired from the

purchase of another mining company is carried forward as an

asset provided that such costs are expected to be recovered in full

through successful development and exploration of the area of

interest or alternatively by its sale

Purchased exploration and evaluation assets are recognized as

assets at their cost of acquisition or at fair value if purchased as

part of business combination

In the case of undeveloped projects there may be only inferred

resources to form basis for the impairment review The review

is based on status report regarding the Companys intentions

for the development of the undeveloped project In some cases

the undeveloped projects are regarded as successors to ore

bodies smelters or refineries currently in production Where this

is the case it is intended that these will be developed and go into

production when the current source of ore is exhausted or to

replace the reduced output which results where existing smelters

and/or refineries are closed It is often the case that technological

and other improvements will allow successor smelters and/or

refineries to more than replace the capacity of their predecessors

Subsequent recovery of the resulting carrying value depends on

successful development or sale of the undeveloped project If

project does not prove viable all irrecoverable costs associated

with the project net of any related impairment provisions are

written off

An impairment review is performed either individually or at

the cash generating unit level when there are indicators that

the carrying amount of the assets may exceed their recoverable

amounts To the extent that this occurs the excess is expensed

in the financial year in which this is determined Capitalized

exploration and evaluation assets are reassessed on regular

basis and these costs are carried forward provided that the

conditions discussed above for expenditure on exploration activity

and evaluation expenditure are met

Expenditures are transferred to mining properties and leases

or assets under construction once the technical
feasibility

and commercial
viability of extracting mineral resource are

demonstrable and the work completed to date supports the

future development of the property

Deferred Stripping Costs In open pit mining operations it is

necessary to remove overburden and other waste in order to

access the ore body During the preproduction phase these

costs are capitalized as part of the cost of the mine property and

subsequently amortized over the life of the mine or pit on units

of production basis

The costs of removal of the waste material during mines

production phase are deferred where they give rise to future

benefits These capitalized costs are subsequently amortized on

unit of production basis over the reserves that directly benefit

from the specific stripping activity

Asset ImDairment Management reviews and evaluates its assets

for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate

that the related carrying amounts may not be recoverable

Impairment is normally assessed at the level of cash-generating

units which are identified as the smallest identifiable group of

assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of

the cash inflows from other assets In addition an impairment loss

is recognized for any excess of carrying amount over the fair value

less costs to sell of non-current asset or disposal group held

for sale When an impairment review is undertaken recoverable

amount is assessed by reference to the higher of value in use

being the net present value of expected future cash flows of

the relevant cash generating unit and fair value less costs to sell

FVLCTS The best evidence of FVLCTS is the value obtained

from an active market or binding sale agreement Where neither

exists FVLCTS is based on the best information available to reflect

the amount the Company could receive for the cash generating

unit in an arms length transaction This is often estimated using

discounted cash flow techniques

Where the recoverable amount is assessed using discounted cash

flow techniques the resulting estimates are based on detailed

mine and/or production plans For value in use recent cost levels

are considered together with expected changes in costs that are

compatible with the current condition of the business and which

meet the requirements of lAS 36 Impairment of Assets The cash

flow forecasts are based on best estimates of expected future

revenues and costs including the future cash costs of production

capital expenditure close down restoration and environmental

clean-up These may include net cash flows expected to be

realized from extraction processing and sale of mineral resources

that do not currently qualify for inclusion in proven or probable

ore reserves Such non reserve material is included where there

is high degree of confidence in its economic extraction This

expectation is usually based on preliminary drilling and sampling

of areas of mineralization that are contiguous with existing
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reserves Typically the additional evaluation to achieve reserve

status for such material has not yet been done because this would

involve incurring costs earlier than is required for the efficient

planning and operation of the mine

Where the recoverable amount of cash generating unit is

dependent on the life of its associated ore body expected future

cash flows reflect long term mine plans which are based on

detailed research analysis and iterative modeling to optimize

the level of return from investment output and sequence

of extraction The mine plan takes account of all relevant

characteristics of the ore body including waste to ore ratios ore

grades haul distances chemical and metallurgical properties

of the ore impacting on process recoveries and capacities

of processing equipment that can be used The mine plan is

therefore the basis for forecasting production output in each

future year and for forecasting production costs

The Companys cash flow forecasts are based on estimates of

future commodity prices which assume market prices will revert

to the Companys assessment of the long term average price

generally over period of three to five years These assessments

often differ from current price levels and are updated periodically

The discount rates applied to the future cash flow forecasts

represent an estimate of the rate the market would apply having

regard to the time value of money and the risks specific to the

asset for which the future cash flow estimates have not been

adjusted including appropriate adjustments for the risk profile

of the countries in which the individual cash generating units

operate The great majority of the Companys sales are based

on prices denominated in USD To the extent that the currencies

of countries in which the Company produces commodities

strengthen against the USD without commodity price offset

cash flows and therefore net present values are reduced Non

financial assets other than goodwill that have suffered impairment

are tested for possible reversal of the impairment whenever

events or changes in circumstances indicate that the impairment

may have reversed

Closure and Decommissionine Costs The mining extraction

and processing activities of the Company normally give rise

to obligations for site closure or rehabilitation Closure and

decommissioning works can include facility decommissioning

and dismantling removal or treatment of waste materials site

and land rehabilitation The extent of work required and the

associated costs are dependent on the requirements of relevant

authorities and the Companys environmental policies Provisions

for the cost of each closure and rehabilitation program are

recognized at the time that environmental disturbance occurs

When the extent of disturbance increases over the life of an

operation the provision is increased accordingly Costs included in

the provision encompass all closure and decommissioning activity

expected to occur progressively over the life of the operation

and at the time of closure in connection with disturbances at

the reporting date Routine operating costs that may impact the

ultimate closure and decommissioning activities such as waste

material handling conducted as an integral part of mining or

production process are not included in the provision Costs

arising from unforeseen circumstances such as the contamination

caused by unplanned discharges are recognized as an expense

and liability when the event gives rise to an obligation which is

probable and capable of reliable estimation The timing of the

actual closure and decommissioning expenditure is dependent

upon number of factors such as the life and nature of the

asset the operating license conditions and the environment

in which the mine operates Expenditure may occur before and

after closure and can continue for an extended period of time

dependent on closure and decommissioning requirements

Closure and decommissioning provisions are measured at the

expected value of future cash flows discounted to their present

value and determined according to the probability of alternative

estimates of cash flows occurring for each operation Discount

rates used are specific to the underlying obligation Significant

judgements and estimates are involved in forming expectations

of future activities and the amount and timing of the associated

cash flows Those expectations are formed based on existing

environmental and regulatory requirements which give rise to

constructive or legal obligation

When provisions for closure and decommissioning are initially

recognized the corresponding cost is capitalized as component

of the cost of the related asset representing part of the cost of

acquiring the future economic benefits of the operation The

capitalized cost of closure and decommissioning activities is

recognized in Property plant and equipment and depreciated

accordingly The value of the provision is progressively increased

over time as the effect of discounting unwinds creating

an expense recognized in finance expenses Closure and

decommissioning provisions are also adjusted for changes in

estimates Those adjustments are accounted for as change in

the corresponding capitalized cost except where reduction in

the provision is greater than the un-depreciated capitalized cost

of the related assets in which case the capitalized cost is reduced

to nil and the remaining adjustment is recognized in the income

statement In the case of closed sites changes to estimated costs

are recognized immediately in the income statement Changes to

the capitalized cost result in an adjustment to future depreciation

and finance charges Adjustments to the estimated amount and

timing of future closure and decommissioning cash flows are

normal occurrence in tight of the significant judgements and

estimates involved

The provision is reviewed at the end of each reporting period for

changes to obligations legislation or discount rates that impact

estimated costs or lives of operations and adjusted to reflect

current best estimate The cost of the related asset is adjusted for

changes in the provision resulting from changes in the estimated

cash flows or discount rate and the adjusted cost of the asset is

depreciated prospectively

Foreign Currency Translation The Companys functional

currency and that of its subsidiaries is the USD as this is the

principal currency of the economic environments in which they

operate Transaction amounts denominated in foreign currencies

currencies other than USD are translated into USO at exchange

rates prevailing at the transaction dates Carrying values of

foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are re-translated

each statement of financial position date to reflect the U.S

exchange rate prevailing at that date

Gains and losses arising from translation of foreign currency

monetary assets and liabilities at each period end are included

in earnings except for differences arising on decommissioning

provisions which are capitalized for operating mines

Share-based Payments The Company makes share-based awards

including free shares and options to certain employees

For equity-settled awards the fair value is charged to the income
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statement and credited to equity on straight-line basis over

the vesting period after adjusting for the estimated number of

awards that are expected to vest The fair value of the equity-

settled awards is determined at the date of grant Non-vesting

conditions and market conditions such as target share price upon

which vesting is conditioned are factored into the determination

of fair value at the date of grant All other vesting conditions

are excluded from the determination of fair value and included

in managements estimate of the number of awards ultimately

expected to vest

The fair value is determined by using option pricing models At

each statement of financial position date prior to vesting the

cumulative expense representing the extent to which the vesting

period has expired and managements best estimate of the awards

that are ultimately expected to vest is computed after adjusting

for non-market performance conditions The movement in

cumulative expense is recognized in the income statement with

corresponding entry within equity No expense is recognized

for awards that do not ultimately vest except for awards where

vesting is conditional upon market condition which are treated

as vesting irrespective of whether or not the market condition

is satisfied provided that all other performance conditions are

satisfied

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified as

minimum an expense is recognized as if the terms had not

been modified over the original vesting period In addition an

expense is recognized for any modification which increases the

total fair value of the share-based payment arrangement or is

otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of

modification over the remainder of the new vesting period

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled it is treated as if

it had vested on the date of cancellation and any expense not

yet recognized for the award is recognized immediately Any

compensation paid up to the fair value of the awards at the

cancellation or settlement date is deducted from equity with

any excess over fair value being treated as an expense in the

income statement However if new award is substituted for the

cancelled award and designated as replacement award on the

date that it is granted the new awards are treated as if they are

modification of the original award as described in the previous

paragraph

Leases The determination of whether an arrangement is or

contains lease is based in the substance of the arrangement

at the inception date including whether the fulfillment of the

arrangement is dependent on the use of specific asset or

assets or whether the arrangement conveys right to use the

asset reassessment after inception is only made in specific

circumstances

Assets held under finance leases where substantially all the

risks and rewards of ownership of the asset have passed to the

Company are capitalized in the statement of financial position at

the lower of the fair value of the leased property or the present

value of the minimum lease payments during the lease term

calculated using the interest rate implicit in the lease agreement

These amounts are determined at the inception of the lease and

are depreciated over the shorter of their estimated useful lives

or lease term The capital elements of future obligations under

leases and hire purchase contracts are included as liabilities in the

statement of financial position The interest elements of the lease

or hire purchase obligations are charged to the income statement

over the periods of the leases and hire purchase contracts

and represent constant proportion of the balance of capital

repayments outstanding

Leases where substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership

have not passed to the Company are classified as operating leases

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the income

statement on straight-line basis over the lease term

Income Taxes Taxation on the earnings or loss for the year

comprises current and deferred tax Taxation is recognized in the

income statement except to the extent that it relates to items

recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity in

which case the tax is recognized in other comprehensive income

or equity

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for

the year using rates enacted or substantively enacted at the year

end and includes any adjustment to tax payable in respect of

previous years

Deferred tax is provided using the statement of financial position

liability method providing for the tax effect of temporary

differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities

for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for tax

assessment or deduction purposes Where an asset has no

deductible or depreciable amount for income tax purposes but

has deductible amount on sale or abandonment for capital gains

tax purposes that amount is included in the determination of

temporary differences

The tax effect of certain temporary differences is not recognized

principally with respect to goodwill temporary differences

arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities other

than those arising in business combination or in manner that

initially impacted accounting or taxable earnings and temporary

differences relating to investments in subsidiaries jointly

controlled entities and associates to the extent that the Company

is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and the

temporary difference is not expected to reverse in the foreseeable

future The amount of deferred tax recognized is based on the

expected manner and timing of realization or settlement of the

carrying amount of assets and liabilities with the exception of

items that have tax base solely derived under capital gains tax

legislation using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at

period end To the extent that an items tax base is solely derived

from the amount deductible under capital gains tax legislation

deferred tax is determined as if such amounts are deductible in

determining future assessable income

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed

at each statement of financial position date and reduced to the

extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable earnings

will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax

asset to be utilized To the extent that an asset not previously

recognized fulfils the criteria for recognition deferred income

tax asset is recorded

Deferred tax is measured on an undiscounted basis at the tax rates
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that are expected to apply in the periods in which the asset is

realized or the liability is settled based on tax rates and tax laws

enacted or substantively enacted at the statement of financial

position date

Current and deferred taxes relating to items recognized in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity are recognized in

other comprehensive income or equity and not in the income

statement Mining taxes and royalties are treated and disclosed

as current and deferred taxes if they have the characteristics of

an income tax Judgements are required about the application

of income tax legislation These judgements and assumptions

are subject to risk and uncertainty hence there is possibility

that changes in circumstances will alter expectations which

may impact the amount of deferred tax assets and deferred tax

liabilities recognized on the statement of financial position and

the amount of other tax losses and temporary differences not yet

recognized In such circumstances some or the entire carrying

amount of recognized deferred tax assets and liabilities may

require adjustment resulting in corresponding credit or charge

to the income statement

Deferred tax assets including those arising from tax losses capital

losses and temporary differences are recognized only where it

is probable that taxable earnings will be available against which

the losses or deductible temporary differences can be utilized

Assumptions about the generation of future taxable earnings

and repatriation of retained earnings depend on managements

estimates of future cash flows These depend on estimates

of future production and sales volumes commodity prices

reserves operating costs closure and decommissioning costs

capital expenditure dividends and other capital management

transactions

Earnines lossi Per Share Basic earnings loss per share is

calculated by dividing earnings attributable to ordinary equity

holders of the parent entity by the weighted average number of

ordinary shares outstanding during the period

The diluted earnings per share calculation is based on the earnings

attributable to ordinary equity holders and the weighted average

number of shares outstanding after adjusting for the effects

of all potential ordinary shares This method requires that the

number of shares used in the calculation be the weighted average

number of shares that would be issued on the conversion of all

the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares This

method assumes that the potential ordinary shares converted

into ordinary shares at the beginning of the period or at the

time of issuance if not in existence at beginning of the period

The number of dilutive potential ordinary shares is determined

independently for each period presented

For convertible securities that may be settled in cash or shares

at the holders option returns to preference shareholders and

income charges are added back to net earnings used for basic

EPS and the maximum number of ordinary shares that could be

issued on conversion are used in the computing diluted earnings

per share

Borrowine Costs Borrowing costs that are directly attributable

to the acquisition construction or production of qualified

assets are capitalized Qualifying assets are assets that require

substantial amount of time to prepare for their intended use

including mineral properties in the evaluation stage where there

is high likelihood of commercial exploitation Qualifying assets

also include significant expansion projects at the operating mines

Borrowing costs are considered an element of the historical cost

of the qualifying asset Capitalization ceases when the asset is

substantially complete or if construction is interrupted for an

extended period Where the funds used to finance qualifying

asset form part of general borrowings the amount capitalized

is calculated using weighted average of rates applicable to the

relevant borrowings during the period Where funds borrowed are

directly attributable to qualifying asset the amount capitalized

represents the borrowing costs specific to those borrowings

Where surplus funds available out of money borrowed specifically

to finance project are temporarily invested the total borrowing

cost is reduced by income generated from short-term investments

of such funds

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS

Changes in Accounting Policies

The Company adopted the following new accounting standards

along with any consequential amendments effective January

2013

IFRS 10 ConsolIdated Financial Statements establishes principles

for the presentation and preparation of consolidated financial

statements when an entity controls one or more other entities

This standard requires parent entity an entity that controls

one or more other entities to present consolidated financial

statements ii defines the principle of control and establishes

control as the basis for consolidation iii sets out how to apply

the principle of control to identify whether an investor controls

an investee and therefore must consolidate the investee and

iv sets out the accounting requirements for the preparation

of consolidated financial statements IFRS 10 supersedes lAS

27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements and SIC-12

Consolidation Special Purpose Entities The application of IFRS

10 does not have an impact on the Companys consolidated

financial statements

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements establishes the core principle that

party to joint arrangement determines the type of joint

arrangement in which it is involved by assessing its rights and

obligations and accounts for those rights and obligations in

accordance with that type of joint arrangement The application

of IFRS 11 does not have an impact on the consolidated financial

statements

IIRS 12 Disclosure of Interests In Other Entities requires

the disclosure of information that enables users of financial

statements to evaluate the nature of and risks associated with

its interests in other entities and the effects of those interests on

its financial position financial performance and cash flows The

Company has completed its assessment on this standard and

concluded that this standard does not have significant impact on

the consolidated financial statements

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement defines fair value sets out in

single IFRS framework for measuring fair value and requires

disclosures about fair value measurements IFRS 13 applies when

another IFRS requires or permits fair value measurements or

disclosures about fair value measurements and measurements

such as fair value less costs to sell based on fair value or

disclosures about those measurements except for share-based
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payment transactions within the scope of IFRS Share-based

Payment leasing transactions within the scope of lAS 17 Leases

measurements that have some similarities to fair value but that

are not fair value such as net realizable value in lAS Inventories

or value in use in lAS 36 Impairment of Assets The Company has

completed its assessment on this standard and concluded that

this standard did not have an impact on the consolidated financial

statements The Company has applied IFRS 13 on prospective

basis commencing January 2013 Additional disclosure on

the fair value of certain financial instruments is included in the

consolidated financial statements as result of applying IFRS 13

lAS Presentation of Financial Statements lAS amendment

issued by the lASS in June 2011 requires an entity to group items

presented in the Statement of Comprehensive Income on the

basis of whether they may be reclassified to earnings subsequent

to initial recognition For those items presented before taxes the

amendments to lAS also require that the taxes related to the

two separate groups be presented separately The amendments

are effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 2012

with earlier adoption permitted The application of lAS does not

have significant impact on the Companys consolidated financial

statements

lAS 19 Employee Benefits amendment issued by the IASB on

June 2011 introduced changes to the accounting for defined

benefit plans and other employee benefits The amendments

include elimination of the options to defer or recognize in full

in earnings actuarial gains and losses and instead mandates the

immediate recognition of all actuarial gains and losses in other

comprehensive income and requires use of the same discount rate

for both the defined benefit obligation and expected asset return

when calculating interest cost Other changes include modification

of the accounting for termination benefits and classification of

other employee benefits The application of the amended lAS 19

does not have significant impact on the Companys consolidated

financial statements

IFRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase ala Surface

Mine clarifies the requirements for accounting for the costs of

stripping activity in the production phase when two benefits

accrue useable ore that can be used to produce inventory

and ii improved access to further quantities of material that will

be mined in future periods The application of IFRIC 20 did not

result in an adjustment to the Companys consolidated financial

statements

Accounting interpretation effective January 2014

IFRIC 21 Levies IFRIC 21 is an interpretation of lAS 37

Provisions Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets lAS 37
on the accounting for levies imposed by governments In lAS 37

the criterion for recognizing liability includes the requirement

for an entity to have present obligation resulting from past

event IFRIC 21 provides clarification on the past event that gives

rise to the obligation to pay levy as the activity described in the

relevant legislation that triggers the payment of the levy IFRIC

21 is effective for annual periods commencing on or after January

2014 The Company does not anticipate the application of

FRIC 21 to have material impact on its consolidated financial

statements

Accounting standards Issued but not yet effective

IFRS Financial Instruments is intended to replace lAS 39

Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement in its

entirety and some of the requirements of IFRS Financial

Instruments Disclosures including added disclosure about

investments in equity instruments measured at fair value in

Other Comprehensive Income OCI and guidance on financial

liabilities and derecognition of financial instruments The

mandatory effective date will be added when all phases of IFRS

are completed with sufficient lead time for implementation

SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENTS IN
APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Judgements that have the most significant effect on the amounts

recognized in the Companys consolidated financial statements are

as follows

Capitalization of evaluation costs The Company has determined

that evaluation costs capitalized during the year relating to

the operating mines and certain other exploration interests

have potential future economic benefits and are potentially

economically recoverable subject to impairment analysis as

discussed in Note 12 In making this judgement the Company has

assessed various sources of information including but not limited

to the geologic and metallurgic information history of conversion

of mineral deposits to proven and probable mineral reserves

scoping and feasibility studies proximity to existing ore bodies

operating management expertise and required environmental

operating and other permits

Commencement of commercial production During the

determination of whether mine has reached an operating level

that is consistent with the use intended by management costs

incurred are capitalized as mineral property plant and equipment

and any consideration from commissioning sales are offset

against costs capitalized The Company defines commencement

of commercial production as the date that mine has achieved

sustainable level of production based on percentage of design

capacity along with various qualitative factors including but not

limited to the achievement of mechanical completion continuous

nominated level of production the working effectiveness of the

plant and equipment at or near expected levels and whether

there is sustainable level of production input available including

power water and diesel

Assets carrying values and impairment charges In determining

carrying values and impairment charges the Company looks at

recoverable amounts defined as the higher of value in use or

fair value less cost to sell in the case of assets and at objective

evidence that identifies significant or prolonged decline of

fair value on financial assets indicating impairment These

determinations and their individual assumptions require that

management make decision based on the best available

information at each reporting period

Functional currency The functional currency for the Company

and its subsidiaries is the currency of the primary economic

environment in which each operates The Company has

determined that its functional currency and that of its subsidiaries
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is the USD The determination of functional currency may

require certain judgements to determine the primary economic

environment The Company reconsiders the functional currency

used when there is change in events and conditions which

determined the primary economic environment

Business combinations Determination of whether set of

assets acquired and liabilities assumed constitute business may

require the Company to make certain judgments taking into

account all facts and circumstances business consists of inputs

including non-current assets and processes including operational

processes that when applied to those inputs have the ability

to create outputs that provide return to the Company and its

shareholders

Deferral of stripping costs In determining whether stripping

costs incurred during the production phase of mining property

relate to mineral reserves and mineral resources that will be

mined in future period and therefore should be capitalized

the Company treats the costs of removal of the waste material

during mines production phase as deferred where it gives

rise to future benefits These capitalized costs are subsequently

amortized on unit of production basis over the reserves

that directly benefit from the specific stripping activity As at

December 31 2013 the carrying amount of stripping costs

capitalized was $59.2 million comprised of Manantial $13.8

million Dolores $32.8 million and Alamo Dorado $12.6 million

2012 $23.6 million was capitalized comprised of $6.9 $13.5 and

$3.2 million respectively

Replacement convertible debenture As part of the 2009

Aquiline transaction the Company issued replacement

convertible debenture that allowed the holder to convert the

debenture into either 363854 Pan American shares or Silver

Stream contract The holder subsequently selected the Silver

Stream contract The convertible debenture is classified and

accounted for as deferred credit In determining the appropriate

classification of the convertible debenture as deferred credit the

Company evaluated the economics underlying the contract as of

the date the Company assumed the obligation As at December

31 2013 the carrying amount of the deferred credit arising from

the Aquiline acquisition was $20.8 million 2012 $20.8 million

Convertible Notes The Company has the right to pay all or

part of the liability
associated with the Companys outstanding

convertible notes in cash on the conversion date Accordingly

the Company classifies the convertible notes as financial

liability with an embedded derivative The financial liability and

embedded derivative are recognized initially at their respective

fair values The embedded derivative is subsequently recognized

at fair value with changes in fair value reflected in profit or loss

and the debt liability component is recognized at amortized

cost using the effective interest method Interest gains and

losses related to the debt liability component or embedded

derivatives are recognized in profit or loss On conversion the

equity instrument is measured at the carrying value of the liability

component and the fair value of the derivative component on the

conversion date

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY IN THE
APPLICATION OF ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Key sources of estimation uncertainty that have significant risk

of causing material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets

and liabilities are

Revenue recognition Revenue from the sale of concentrate

to independent smelters is recorded at the time the risks and

rewards of ownership pass to the buyer using forward market

prices on the expected date that final sales prices will be fixed

Variations between the prices set under the smelting contracts

may be caused by changes in market prices and result in an

embedded derivative in the accounts receivable The embedded

derivative is recorded at fair value each period until final

settlement occurs with changes in the fair value classified in

revenue In period of high price volatility as experienced under

current economic conditions the effect of mark-to-market price

adjustments related to the quantity of metal which remains to

be settled with independent smelters could be significant For

changes in metal quantities upon receipt of new information and

assay the provisional sales quantities are adjusted

Estimated recoverable ounces The carrying amounts of the

Companys mining properties are depleted based on recoverable

ounces Changes to estimates of recoverable ounces and

depletable costs including changes resulting from revisions to the

Companys mine plans and changes in metal price forecasts can

result in change to future depletion rates

Mineral reserve estimates The figures for mineral reserves and

mineral resources are determined in accordance with National

Instrument 43 -101 Standards of Disclosure for Mineral Projectsc

issued by the Canadian Securities Administrators There are

numerous uncertainties inherent in estimating mineral reserves

and mineral resources including many factors beyond the

Companys control Such estimation is subjective process and

the accuracy of any mineral reserve or mineral resource estimate

is function of the quantity and quality of available data and of

the assumptions made and judgments used in engineering and

geological interpretation Differences between managements

assumptions including economic assumptions such as metal prices

and market conditions could have material effect in the future

on the Companys financial position and results of operation

Valuation of Inventory In determining mine production costs

recognized in the consolidated income statement the Company

makes estimates of quantities of ore stacked in stockpiles placed

on the heap leach pad and in process and the recoverable silver

in this material to determine the average costs of finished goods

sold during the period Changes in these estimates can result in

change in mine operating costs of future periods and carrying

amounts of inventories Refer to Note 10 for details

Depreciation and amortization rates for mineral property

plant and equipment and mineral interests Depreciation and

amortization expenses are allocated based on assumed asset

lives and depreciation and amortization rates Should the asset

life or depreciation rate differ from the initial estimate an

adjustment would be made in the consolidated income statement

prospectively change in the mineral reserve estimate for assets

depreciated using the units of production method would impact

depreciation expense prospectively
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Impairment of mining interests While assessing whether

any indications of impairment exist for mining interests

consideration is given to both external and internal sources of

information Information the Company considers include changes

in the market economic and legal environment in which the

Company operates that are not within its control and affect the

recoverable amount of mining interests Internal sources of

information include the manner in which mineral propert plant

and equipment are being used or are expected to be used and

indications of the economic performance of the assets Estimates

include but are not limited to estimates of the discounted future

after-tax cash flows expected to be derived from the Companys

mining properties costs to sell the mining properties and the

appropriate discount rate Reductions in metal price forecasts

increases in estimated future costs of production increases

in estimated future capital costs reductions in the amount of

recoverable mineral reserves and mineral resources and/or

adverse current economics can result in write-down of the

carrying amounts of the Companys mining interests Impairments

of mining interests are discussed in Note 12

Estimation of decommissioning and restoration costs and

the timing of expenditures The cost estimates are updated

annually during the life of mine to reflect known developments

e.g revisions to cost estimates and to the estimated lives of

oerations and are subject to review at regular intervals

Decommissioning restoration and similar liabilities are estimated

based on the Companys interpretation of current regulatory

requirements constructive obligations and are measured at

the best estimate of expenditure required to settle the present

obligation of decommissioning restoration or similar liabilities

that may occur upon decommissioning of the mine at the end of

the reporting period The carrying amount is determined based

on the net present value of estimated future cash expenditures

for the settlement of decommissioning restoration or similar

liabilities that may occur upon decommissioning of the mine Such

estimates are subject to change based on changes in laws and

regulations and negotiations with regulatory authorities Refer to

Note 16 for details on decommissioning and restoration costs

Income taxes and recoverability of deferred tax assets In

assessing the probability of realizing income tax assets recognized

the Company makes estimates related to expectations of

future taxable income applicable tax planning opportunities

expected timing of reversals of existing temporary differences

and the likelihood that tax positions taken will be sustained

upon examination by applicable tax authorities In making its

assessments the Company gives additional weight to positive

and negative evidence that can be objectively verified Estimates

of future taxable income are based on forecasted cash flows

from operations and the application of existing tax laws in

each jurisdiction The Company considers relevant tax planning

opportunities that are within the Companys control are feasible

and within managements ability to implement Examination

by applicable tax authorities is supported based on individual

facts and circumstances of the relevant tax position examined

in
light

of all available evidence Where applicable tax laws and

regulations are either unclear or subject to ongoing varying

interpretations it is reasonably possible that changes in these

estimates can occur that materially affect the amounts of income

tax assets recognized Also future changes in tax laws could limit

the Company from realizing the tax benefits from the deferred tax

assets The Company reassesses unrecognized income tax assets

at each reporting period

Accounting for acquisitions The provisional fair value of assets

acquired and liabilities assumed and the resulting goodwill if

any requires that management make certain judgments and

estimates taking into account information available at the time of

acquisition about future events including but not restricted to

estimates of mineral reserves and resources required exploration

potential future operating costs and capital expenditures future

metal prices long-term foreign exchange rates and discount rates

Changes to the provisional values of assets acquired and liabilities

assumed deferred income taxes and resulting goodwill if any

are retrospectively adjusted when the final measurements are

determined within one year of the acquisition date

Share purchase warrants The carrying value of share

purchase warrants is equal to fair value The share purchase

warrants are classified and accounted for as financial liabilities

and as such are measured at their fair value with changes in

fair value reported in the income statement as gain or loss

on derivatives The Company utilizes the Black-Scholes pricing

model to determine the fair value of the share purchase warrants

as the best approximation of fair value given the warrants are

not listed or publically traded The Company uses significant

judgment in the evaluation of the input variables in the Black

Scholes calculation which include risk free interest rate expected

stock price volatility expected life expected dividend yield and

quoted market price of the Companys shares on the Toronto

Stock Exchange Refer to Note 20 for details on share purchase

warrants

Contingencies Due to the size complexity and nature of

the Companys operations various legal and tax matters are

outstanding from time to time In the event the Companys

estimates of the future resolution of these matters changes

the Company will recognize the effects of the changes in its

consolidated financial statements on the date such changes occur

Refer to Note 29 for further discussion on contingencies

ACQUISITIONAND DIVESTURE

Acquisition of Minefinders Corporation Ltd

On March 30 2012 the Company acquired all of the issued and

outstanding common shares of Minefinders Corporation Ltd

Minefinders for total consideration amounting to $1264.3

million comprising $1088.1 million in common shares of Pan

American $165.4 million in cash and $10.7 million in replacement

options In addition the Company recorded $16.2 million of

acquisition costs to complete this transaction Minefinders was

engaged in precious metals mining and had exploration properties

in Mexico and the United States Minefinders primary mining

property was its 100% owned Dolores gold and silver mine located

in Chihuahua Mexico

The acquisition was aligned with managements objectives of

enhanced operating and development portfolio diversification
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and its mission to be the largest low-cost primary silver mining

company worldwide The Company believes that the strategic

benefits to shareholders resulting from the acquisition include

enhanced portfolio diversification of producing assets into

more stable mining jurisdiction iiadditional near-term cash

flow iii improved organic growth opportunities iv meaningful

reduction of average silver cash costs across the Companys

production portfolio on net of by-product basis addition of

significant silver and gold mineral reserves and resources with

excellent potential to increase even further through exploration

and vi increases in the Companys exposure to the prices of

silver and gold The transaction was accounted for as business

combination with Pan American as the acquirer

Under the terms of the arrangement former Minefinders

shareholders who elected the full proration option received

$1.84 Canadian CAD and 0.55 of Pan American share in

respect of each of their Minefinders shares Former Minefinders

shareholders who elected the Pan American share option received

0.6235 Pan American shares and CAD$0.0001 for each of their

Minefinders shares and those who elected the cash option

received CAD$2.0306 and 0.5423 of Pan American share in

respect of each of their shares

Pan American exchanged and replaced all outstanding options

at an exchange ratio of 0.6325 and at strike price equivalent to

the original strike prices divided by 0.6325 Pan American share

value utilized for valuing the consideration of shares issued was

the closing price on March 30 2012 the effective date of the

transaction Replacement options were valued using the Black

Scholes option pricing model Assumptions used were as follows

Dividend yield
0.3%

Expected volatility
40.75%

Risk free interest rate 0.93%

Expected life 0.25 3.5 years

The purchase consideration has been allocated to the assets

acquired and liabilities assumed based upon their estimated fair

values at the date of acquisition Fair values were determined

using the income cost and market price valuation methods as

deemed appropriate The purchase price allocation was finalized

during the quarter ended March 31 2013 with the assistance

of an independent third party resulting in adjustments to the

preliminary allocations These adjustments resulted in $10.7

million increase in fair value allocated to mineral interests

as compared to the preliminary fair value Retrospective

application of the changes made to the allocation of the purchase

consideration in the 2013 first quarter decreased net earnings

for the year ended December 31 2012 by $9.2 million due to an

increase in cost of sales reduced by depreciation and income tax

expense

Goodwill was recognized as result of the requirement to record

deferred tax liability for the difference between the fair values

of assets acquired and liabilities assumed over the tax bases of

assets acquired and liabilities assumed None of the goodwill is

deductible for tax purposes

The following tables summarize the final purchase consideration

the preliminary purchase price allocation reported in the

Companys 2012 year-end financial statements and the final

purchase price allocation with the applicable recast adjustments

made upon finalization during the first quarter of 2013

Purchase consideration

Fair value of Pan American shares issued 1088104

1264256

Net working

capital acquired11 333478 897 332581

Mineral property

plant and

equipment 1045326 10728 1056054

Goodwill 211292 12346 198946

Closure and

decommissioning

provisions 10880 5316 5564

Long-term debt 49685 49685

Deferred tax

liabilities 265275 2801 268076

1264256 1264256

Includes cash of $251.9 million for net cash received of $86.5 million and

accounts receivable of $11.3 million

The following table summarizes the Companys recast and

previously reported December 31 2012 consolidated balance

sheets

Assets

Inventories 266663 270089

Mineral property plant and

equipment 2205252 2182742

Deferred tax asset 1358 1450

Goodwill 198946 211292

Uabilides and quity

Accounts payable and accrued

liabilities 136149 136757

Cash 165413

Replacement option awards 10739

Purchase price

Preliminary Adjustments Final

allocation

December 31 December 31

2012 Recast 2012

Income tax liabilities 52217

Deferred tax liabilities 326171 321630

Retained earnings 388202 397360

40346

As previously presented in the consolidated financial statements for

the year ended December 31 2012

67



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

As at December 31 2013 and 2012

Tabular amounts are in thousands of US dollars except number of options and warrants and per share amounts

The following table summarize the Companys recast and

previously reported year ended December 31 2012 consolidated

income statements

Earnings per share attributable

to common shareholders

Basic earnings per share 0.56

Diluted earnings per share 0.49

As previously presented in the annual consolidated financial

statements for the year ended December 31 2012

Dispositions of mineral property plant and equipment

On January 30 2013 subsidiary of the Company Plata

Panamericana S.A de C.V entered into sale and option

agreement with Compaflia Minera Cuzcatlan SA de C.V

Cuzcatlan to sell 55% of its interest in certain Mexican

exploration properties to Cuzcatlan for $4.0 million The Company

also granted Cuzcatlan the option to acquire the remaining

45% interest in the exploration properties for $6.0 million of

which $2.0 million was paid to third party according to prior

unrelated agreement within ten days of Cuzcatlan making

production decision The option was exercised during the

second quarter of 2013 In addition the Company agreed to sell

concessions near the Huaron mine to nearby mining company

For the year ended December 31 2013 the Company recorded

gain on sale of assets of $8.0 million and $5.0 million respectively

related to the disposition of the above interests in exploration

properties The Company recorded net gain on disposition of

assets of $14.1 million during 2013 2012 -$9.7 million

MANAGEMENT OF CAPITAL

The Company is not subject to externally imposed capital

requirements and the Companys overall strategy with respect to

capital risk management remains unchanged from the year ended

December 31 2012

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and liabilities dassified as at fair value

through profit or loss FVTPL

The Companys financial assets and liabilities classified as at FVTPI

are as follows

25

25

Non-current derivative liabilities

Share purchase warrants 207 8594

Conversion feature on

convertible notes 1419 9746

1626 18340

Twelve months ended December 31

2012 Recast 2012

Revenue

Cost of Sales

Production costs

Depreciation and amortization

Royalties

The Companys objective when managing its capital is to maintain

its
ability

to continue as going concern while at the same

time maximizing growth of its business and providing returns

to its shareholders The Companys capital structure consists of

shareholders equity comprising issued capital plus share option

928594 928594 reserve plus retained earnings plus investment revaluation

reserve with balance of $2.2 billion as at December 31 2013

485163 474001
2012 $2.7 billion The Company manages its capital structure

and makes adjustments based on changes to its economic
104409 108153 environment and the risk characteristics of the Companys assets

35077 35077 The Companys capital requirements are effectively managed

624649 617231
based on the Company having thorough reporting planning and

forecasting process to help identify the funds required to ensure

303945 311363 the Company is able to meet its operating and growth objectives

151258 158676 The Company had $150.0 million credit facility with syndicate

173 917 181 335
of international banks which the Company cancelled effective

December 31 2012

95562 93822

Mine operating earnings

Earnings from operations

Earnings before income taxes

Income taxes

Net earnings for the period 78355 87513

Attributable to

Equity holders of the Company 78201 87359

Non- controlling interests 154 154

78355 87513

0.62

0.55

December 31 December 31

2013 2012

Current derivative assets

Commodity and foreign currency

contracts
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In addition accounts receivable arising from sales of metal

concentrates have been designated and classified as at FVTPL

December 31 lecernber 31

2013 2012

Trade receivables from

provisional concentrates sales 31727 39116

Not arising from sale of metal

concentrates 83055 95496

Trade and other receivables 114782 134612

Normal purchase or sale exemption

Contracts that were entered into and continue to be held for

the purpose of the receipt or delivery of nonfinancial item in

accordance with the Companys expected purchase sale or usage

requirements fall in the exemption from lAS 32 and lAS 39 which

is known as the normal purchase or sale exemption For these

contracts and the host part of the contracts containing embedded

derivatives they are accounted for as executory contracts The

Company recognizes such contracts in its statement of financial

position only when one of the parties meets its obligation under

the contract to deliver either cash or non-financial asset

In response to the sharp decline in silver and gold prices in

the quarter-ended June 30 2013 the Company evaluated its

alternatives to mitigate the financial risk of further price declines

The Company decided it was appropriate to protect portion

of its precious metal production associated with its higher cost

Peruvian and Argentine operations against the potential of further

price erosion As such starting July 2013 program the Company

entered into forward contracts limited to year and up to 25% of

its silver and gold production

On September 10 2013 the Company decided to discontinue

its silver and gold hedges after re-evaluation of the financial

risk of further price declines The re-evaluation of the financial

risk resulted in the Company concluding that as of September

10 2013 these forward contracts were financial liabilities It was

determined that for accounting purposes upon the re-evaluation

event that the forward contract derivative be initially recognized

at fair value and then subsequently measured at fair value

through profit or loss At December 31 2013 the total realized

loss recognized from the Companys silver and gold hedges is $5.2

million

Financial assets designated as available-for-sale

The Companys short term investments are designated as

available-for-sale The unrealized losses on available-for-sale

investments recognized in other comprehensive loss income for

the years ended December 31 were as follows

Unrealized loss gain on equity

securities

Reclassification adjustment for net

losses gains on available for sale

securities included in earnings 1062 3634

1101 1182

Overview

The Company has exposure to risks of varying degrees of

significance which could affect its ability to achieve its strategic

objectives for growth and shareholder returns The principal

financial risks to which the Company is exposed are metal

price risk credit risk interest rate risk foreign exchange rate

risk and
liquidity

risk The Companys Board of Directors has

overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of

the Companys risk management framework and reviews the

Companys policies on an ongoing basis

Metal Price Risk

Metal price risk is the risk that changes in metal prices will

affect the Companys income or the value of its related financial

instruments The Company derives its revenue from the sale

of silver gold lead copper and zinc The Companys sales are

directly dependent on metal prices that have shown significant

volatility and are beyond the Companys control Except for the

short hedging program described above in Note 8b and consistent

with the Companys mission to provide equity investors with

exposure to changes in silver prices the Companys current policy

is to not hedge the price of silver 10% increase in all metal

prices for the year ended December 31 2013 would result in an

increase of approximately $88.7 million 2012 $97.2 million

in the Companys revenues 10% decrease in all metal prices

for the same period would result in decrease of approximately

$90.7 million 2012 $98.2 million in the Companys revenues

The Company also enters into provisional concentrate contracts

to sell the zinc lead and copper concentrates produced by the

Huaron Morococha San Vicente and La Colorada mines 10%

increase in metal prices zinc lead copper and silver on open

positions for provisional concentrate contracts for the year ended

December 31 2013 would result in an increase of approximately

$19.4 million 2012- $11.5 million in the Companys before

tax earnings which would be reflected in 2014 results 10%

decrease in metal prices for the same period would result in

decrease of approximately $19.7 million 2012 -$11.8 million in

the Companys before tax earnings

The Company mitigates the price risk associated with its base

metal production by committing some of its forecasted base

metal production from time to time under forward sales and

option contracts The Board of Directors continually assess the

Companys strategy towards its base metal exposure depending

on market conditions At December 31 2013 the Company

did not have outstanding contracts to sell any of its base metals

production

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if customer

or counterparty to financial instrument fails to meet its

contractual obligations and arises principally from the Companys

trade receivables The carrying value of financial assets represents

the maximum credit exposureDecember 31 December 31

2013 2012
The Company has long-term concentrate contracts to sell the

zinc lead and copper concentrates produced by the Huaron

2163 2452 Morococha San Vicente and La Colorada mines Concentrate

contracts are common business practice in the mining industry

The terms of the concentrate contracts may require the Company

to deliver concentrate that has value greater than the payment
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received at the time of delivery thereby introducing the Company

to credit risk of the buyers of our concentrates Should any of

these counterparties not honor supply arrangements or should

any of them become insolvent the Company may incur losses for

products already shipped and be forced to sell its concentrates on

the spot market or it may not have market for its concentrates

and therefore its future operating results may be materially

adversely impacted At December 31 2013 the Company had

receivable balances associated with buyers of its concentrates

of $31.7 million 2012- $39.1 million The vast majority of the

Companys concentrate is sold to eight well known concentrate

buyers

Silver dorØ production from La Colorada Alamo Dorado Dolores

and Manantial Espejo is refined under long term agreements with

fixed refining terms at three separate refineries worldwide The

Company generally retains the risk and title to the precious metals

throughout the process of refining and therefore is exposed to the

risk that the refineries will not be able to perform in accordance

with the refining contract and that the Company may not be

able to fully recover precious metals in such circumstances At

December 31 2013 the Company had approximately $54.7

million 2012 -$48.8 million of value contained in precious

metal inventory at refineries The Company maintains insurance

coverage against the loss of precious metals at the Companys

mine sites in-transit to refineries and whilst at the refineries

The Company maintains trading facilities with several banks and

bullion dealers for the purposes of transacting the Companys

trading activities None of these facilities are subject to margin

arrangements The Companys trading activities can expose the

Company to the credit risk of its counterparties to the extent

that our trading positions have positive mark-to-market value

However the Company minimizes this risk by ensuring there is no

excessive concentration of credit risk with any single counterparty

by active credit management and monitoring

Refined silver and gold is sold in the spot market to various bullion

traders and banks Credit risk may arise from these activities if

the Company is not paid for metal at the time it is delivered as

required by spot sale contracts

Management constantly monitors and assesses the credit risk

resulting from its refining arrangements concentrate sales and

commodity contracts with its refiners trading counterparties

and customers Furthermore management carefully considers

credit risk when allocating prospective sales and refining business

to counterparties In making allocation decisions Management

attempts to avoid unacceptable concentration of credit risk to any

single counterparty

At December 31 2013 the Company has recorded an allowance

for doubtful accounts provision in the amount of $7.6 million

2012 $7.6 million $7.6 million relates to amounts owing from

Doe Run Peru DRP one of the buyers of concentrates from

the Companys Peruvian operations for deliveries of concentrates

that occurred in early 2009 The Company will continue to pursue

every possible avenue to recover the amounts owed by DRP At

December 31 2013 no additional provision for doubtful accounts

were recorded other than those described above

Cash trade accounts receivable and other receivables that

represent the maximum credit risk to the Company consist of the

following

December 31

2013 2012

cash and cash equivalents 249937 346208

Current portion of refundable tax 38225 46680

Trade accounts receivable 31727 39116

Advances to suppliers and

24265 21144
contractors

Export tax receivable 3803 5996

Insurance receivable 3855 5081

Royalty receivable 2370 4828

Employee loans 1768 2097

Silver
royalty receivable Note 25 1572

Other 8769 8098

Total accounts receivable 114782 134612

Total cash and accounts

receivable 364719 480820

Long-term refundable tax

receivable 9801 9937

Total 374520 490757

The Company invests its cash which also has credit risk with

the objective of maintaining safety of principal and providing

adequate liquidity to meet all current payment obligations

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair values and future cash

flows of the Company will fluctuate because of changes in market

interest rates At December 31 2013 the Company has $10.2

million in lease obligations 2012 $36.4 million equipment

and construction advances of $nil 2012 $0.4 million that are

subject to an annualized interest rate of 2.2% and unsecured

convertible notes with principal amount of $36.2 million

2012 $36.2 million that bear interest at 4.5% payable semi

annually on June 15 and December 15 The interest paid by the

Company for the year ended December 31 2013 on its lease

obligations and equipment and construction advances was $0.2

million 2012 $1.4 million The Company has received short

term loans in Argentina totaling $130.0 million Argentina Pesos

USD $23.5 million at an annual interest rate of 25.7% $30.0

million Argentine pesos are due in February 2014 and $100.0

million Argentine pesos are due in June 2014 The interest paid

by the Company for the year ended December 31 2013 on the
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convertible notes was $1.6 million 2012 $1.6 million The

Company is not subjected to variable market interest rate changes

as all debt included above have stated interest rates

The average interest rate earned by the Company during the year

ended December 31 2013 on its cash and short term investments

was 0.68% 10% increase or decrease in the interest earned

from financial institutions on cash and short term investments

would result in $0.3 million increase or decrease in the

Companys before tax earnings 2012 $0.3 million

Foreign Exchange Rate Risk

The Company reports its financial statements in USD however the

Company operates in jurisdictions that utilize other currencies As

consequence the financial results of the Companys operations

as reported in USD are subject to changes in the value of the

USD relative to local currencies Since the Companys sales are

denominated in USD and portion of the Companys operating

costs and capital spending are in local currencies the Company is

negatively impacted by strengthening local currencies relative to

the USD and positively impacted by the inverse

In order to mitigate this exposure from time to time the Company

has purchased Peruvian Nuevo soles PEN Mexican pesos

MXN and CAD to match anticipated spending At December

31 2013 the Company had no outstanding contracts to purchase

in PEN MXN or CAD The Companys net earnings are affected by

the revaluation of its monetary assets and monetary liabilities at

each balance sheet date The Company has reviewed its monetary

assets and monetary liabilities and is exposed to foreign exchange

risk through the following financial assets and liabilities and

deferred income tax liabilities denominated in currencies other

than USD asshown in the table below The Company estimates

that 10% change in the exchange rate of the foreign currencies

in which its December 31 2013 non-USD net monetary liabilities

were denominated would result in an income before taxes change

of about $38.3 million 2012 $24.2 million

The Company is exposed to currency risk through the following

financial assets and liabilities and deferred income tax assets and

liabilities denominated in foreign currencies

Income taxes receivable Accounts payable and

Cash and short- Other current and payable current and accrued liabilities and Deferred income tax

At December 31 2013 term investments non-current assets non-current non-current lIabilities assets liabilities

Canadian dollar 156610

Mexican peso 6149 34105 8776

Argentinian peso 4178 36315 3075

Bolivian boliviano 1635 1187 3104

39067 235513

47055 26720

Peruvian Nuevo soles 3279 13838 3359 27832 23332

171851 87214 12110 126114 285782

Income taxes receivable Accounts payable and

Cash and short Other current and payable current and accrued liabilities and Deferred income tax

At December 31 2012 term investments non-current assets non-current non-current liabilities assets liabilities

Canadian dollar 117175 3619 10353

Mexican peso 3836 35214 4763 43046 269515

Argentinian peso 173 43875 11426 33352 26309

Bolivian boliviano 293 2037 7697 6116 352

Peruvian Nuevo soles 2174 12960 2956 29411 24801

123651 97705 20930 122278 320273

Uquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they come due The Company manages its

liquidity risk by continuously monitoring forecasted and actual cash flows The Company has in place rigorous planning and budgeting

process to help determine the funds required to support the Companys normal operating requirements on an ongoing basis and its

expansion plans The Company strives to maintain sufficient liquidity to meet its short-term business requirements taking into account

its anticipated cash flows from operations its holdings of cash and short-term investments and its committed loan facilities

1769 5143

7017 217
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Commitments

The Companys commitments have contractual maturities which are summarized below

Payments due by period 2012 Recast

Total Within year years 4- years After years

Finance lease obligations 40142 13759 14761 11622

current liabilities 192195 192195

Severance accrual 3434 966 771 1144 553

Employee compensation plan 9526 4763 4763

Convertible notes 41127 1631 39496

Total contractual obligations 286424 213314 59791 12766 553

Includes lease obligations in the amount of $10.9 million December 31 2012 -$39.7 million with net present value of $10.2 million December 31
2012 $36.4 million and equipment and construction advances in the amount of nil December 31 2012- $0.4 million both discussed further in Note 17

Includes all current liabilities as per the Statement of financial position less items presented separately in this table that are expected to be paid but

not accrued in the books of the Company reconciliation of the current liabilities balance per the statement of financial position to the total contractual

obligations within one year per the commitment schedule is shown in the table below

Add

Future interest component of

Finance lease

Convertible note

Future commitments less portion accrued for

Restricted share units

Contribution plan

Total contractual oblleations within one year

2361 1768

188037 213314

Includes retention plan obligation in the amount of $3.4 million 2012 $7.8 million that vests in two instalments the first 50% on June 2013 and

the remaining 50% on June 2014 and RSU obligation in the amount of $2.3 million 2012 $1.7 million that will be settled in cash The RSUs vest in

two instalments the first 50% vest on December 2013 and further 50% vest on December 2014

Represents the face value of the replacement convertible note and future interest payments related to the Minefinders acquisition Refer to Note 18 for

further details

Amounts above do not include payments related to the Companys anticipated closure and decommissioning obligation the deferred credit arising from

the Aquiline acquisition discussed in Note 19 and deferred tax liabilities

Payments due by period 2013

Total Within year years 4- years After years

Finance lease obligations 10856 4800

Current liabilities 156241 156241

Loan obligation Note 15 20095 20095

Severance accrual 3726 649 412

Employee compensation plan 3228 3228

Restricted share units RSUs 2288 1393 895

Convertible notes 39497 1631 37866

Total contractual
obligations 235931 188037 43590

4417 1639

2138

3777 527

527

Total Current liabilities per Statements of Financial Position

2013 2012 Recast

182632

363

1631

1050

207861

1286

1631

768
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying value of share purchase warrants and the conversion

feature on the convertible notes are stated at fair value and the

carrying value of cash trade and other receivables accounts

payable and accrued liabilities approximate their fair value due

to the relatively short periods to maturity of these financial

instruments Share purchase warrants with an exercise price

denominated in currency other than the Companys functional

currency are classified and accounted for as financial liabilities

and as such are measured at their fair values with changes in fair

values included in net earnings

Fair value estimates are made at specific point in time based on

relevant market information and information about the financial

instrument These estimates are subjective in nature and involve

uncertainties and matters of significant judgement and therefore

cannot be determined with precision Changes in assumptions

could significantly affect the estimates

The following table sets forth the Companys financial assets and

liabilities measured at fair value grouped into Levels ito based

on the degree to which the fair value is observable The hierarchy

gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active

markets for identical assets or liabilities Level measurement

and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs Level

measurements The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are

described as follows

Level Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are

accessible at the measurement date for identical unrestricted

assets or liabilities

Level Quoted prices in markets that are not active or inputs

that are observable either directly or indirectly for substantially

the full term of the asset or liability and

Level Prices or valuation techniques that require inputs that are

both significant to the fair value measurement and unobservable

supported by little or no observable market data

At December 31 2013 the levels in the fair value hierarchy into

which the Companys financial assets and liabilities are measured

and recognized on the Consolidated Statements of Financial

Position at fair value are categorized as follows

Fair Value at December 31 2013

Total Level Level Level

Fair Value at December 31 2012

Total Levell LeveIZ LeveI3

Assets and Liabilities

Short-term investments 196116 196116

Trade receivable from provisional concentrate sales 39116 39116

Derivative financial instruments 25 25

Share purchase warrants 8594 8594

Conversion feature of convertible notes 9746 9746

216917 196116 20801

The methodology and assessment of inputs for determining the

fair value of financial assets and liabilities as well as the levels

of hierarchy for the Companys financial assets and liabilities

measured at fair value remains unchanged from that at December

31 2012

Valuation Techniques

Short-term investments and other investments

The Companys short-term investments and other investments

are valued using quoted market prices in active markets and as

such are classified within Level of the fair value hierarchy and

are primarily money market securities and U.S Treasury securities

The fair value of the investment securities is calculated as the

quoted market price of the investment and in the case of equity

securities the quoted market price multiplied by the quantity of

shares held by the Company

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Companys unrealized gains and losses on commodity and

foreign currency contracts are valued using observable market

prices and as such are classified as Level of the fair market

value hierarchy As of December 31 2013 the unrealized gains

and losses on commodity and foreign currency contracts was $nil

2012 -$0.4 million

Share purchase warrants

The Companys unrealized gains and losses on share purchase

warrants are valued using observable inputs and as such are

classified as Level of the fair market value hierarchy The

share purchase warrants are classified and accounted for as

financial liability at fair value with changes in fair value included

in net earnings The fair value of the share purchase warrants is

determined using the Black Scholes pricing model which is further

Assets and Liabilities

Short-term investments

Trade receivable from provisional concentrate sales

Share purchase warrants

Conversion feature of convertible notes

172785172785

31727

207

1419

202886 172785

31727

207

1419

30101
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discussed in Note 20 During the year ended December 31 2013

the unrealized gain on share purchase warrants was $8.4 million

2012 -$15.1 million

Convertible notes

The Companys unrealized gains and losses on conversion feature

of the convertible note are valued using observable inputs and as

such are classified as Level of the fair market value hierarchy

The conversion feature on the convertible notes is considered

an embedded derivative and re-measured at fair value each

reporting period The fair value of the conversion feature of the

convertible notes is determined using model that includes the

volatility and price of the Companys common shares and credit

SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS

spread structure with reference to the corresponding fair value

of the debt component of the convertible notes During the year

ended December 31 2013 the unrealized gain on the convertible

note was $8.3 million 2012 $9.1 million The approximate

current fair value of the notes excluding the conversion feature at

December 31 2013 is $34.7 million 2012 $34.4 million

Receivables from Provisional Concentrate Sales

The Companys trade receivables arose from provisional

concentrate sales and are valued using quoted market prices

based on the forward London Metal Exchange LME for copper

zinc and lead and the London Bullion Market Association P.M fix

London P.M fix for gold and silver

December 31 2013 December 31 2012

Accumulated unrealized

holding gains

10 INVENTORIES
Inventories consist of

11 MINERAL PROPERTIES PLANT
AND EQUIPMENT

75 471
Capitalization of evaluation expenditures commences when

there is high degree of confidence in the projects viability and
61217

hence it is potential that future economic benefits will flow to the

Company Evaluation expenditures other than that acquired from

the purchase of another mining company are carried forward as

an asset provided that such costs are expected to be recovered in

full through successful development and exploration of the area

of interest or alternatively by its sale Evaluation expenditures

include delineation drilling metallurgical evaluations and

geotechnical evaluations amongst others

Available for Sale Fair Value Cost

Accumulated unrealized

holding losses

Short term investments 172785 172922 137 196116 195152 964

Fair Value Cost

December 31 December 31

2013 2012 Recast

Concentrate inventory

Stockpile ore 42389

Heap leach inventory 90456

DorØ and finished inventory 58256

Acquisition costs of investment and non-producing properties

together with costs directly related to mine development

expenditures are capitalized Exploration expenditures on

32189 26617 investment and non-producing properties are charged to expense

in the period they are incurred
48243

Materials and
supplies 61062 55115

284352 266663

Production costs including depreciation and amortization and

royalties for the year ended December 31 2013 were $693.0

million 2012 $624.6 million Production costs represent cost of

inventories sold during the year During 2013 $13.0 million 2012

$nil net realizable value adjustment was recognized and included

in production costs Note 21 The Stockpile ore of $42.4 million

2012 $48.2 million and portion of the heap leach inventory

amounting to $49.3 million 2012 -$41.0 million are expected to

be recovered or settled after more than twelve months
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Mineral properties plant and equipment consist of

Mining Properties

Depletable Non-depletable

Reserves and Reserves and Exploration Plant and
Total

Resources Resources and Evaluation Equipment

Carrying value

As at January 12013 867381 341362 618221 378288 2205252

Additions 113918 16 61 48738 162733

Disposals
2371 2371

Depreciation 67450 68463 135913

Depreciation charge captured in inventory 5581 5581

Impairment charges 197044 109921 15387 26065 348417

Transfers 293 5042 846 4489

Capitalized borrowing costs 1658 1658

Closure and decommissioning changes in estimate 5758 925 6683

Note 16

As at December 31 2013 706831 226415 602816 334616 1870678

Cost as at December 31 2013 1221767 336336 718212 665710 2942025

Accumulated deprecIation and Impairments 514936 109921 115396 331094 1071347

CarryIng value

December 31 2013 706831 226415 602816 334616 1870678

Mining Properties

Depletable Non-depletable

Reserves and Reserves and Exploration Plant and
Total

Resources Resources and Evaluation Equipment

Carrying Value

As at January 2012 280583 24974 590795 293356 1189708

Additions 91295 1086 10149 71115 173645

Acquisition of operations 541399 318101 117787 78767 1056054

Disposals 222 24 1491 1737

Depreciation 46335 58074 104409

Depreciation charge captured in inventory 6583 6583

Impairments charges 100009 100009

Transfers 8661 2775 501 5385

Capitalized borrowing costs 1419 1419

VAT collected 2093 2093

Closure and decommissioningchanges in estimate 743 743

Note 16

As at December 31 2012 Recast 867381 341362 618221 378288 2205252

As at December 31 2012

Cost 1110493 341362 718230 619401 2789486

Accumulated depreciation and impairments 243112 100009 241113 584234

Carrying value

December 31 2012 Recast 867381 341362 618221 378288 2205252
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767194 296751 470443 680047 29453 650594

321047 162058 158989 309744 130217 179527

124859 55727 69132

Navidad Project Argentina

During the year ended December 31 2013 the Company

capitalized $nil of evaluation costs and mineral propert plant

and equipment at the Navidad Project in Argentina 2012 $11.3

million

At December 31 2012 it was determined that the estimated

realizable value of the Navidad project was below its carrying

value and an impairment charge of $100.0 million was recorded

The Company concluded that as at December 31 2013 there was

no further impairment or reversal of impairment to be recorded

Refer to Note 12 for further details

Morococha Mine Peru

During the second quarter of 2010 the Companys wholly owned

subsidiary Compania Minera Argentum S.A Argentum reached

an agreement with Minera Chinalco Peru MCP or Chinalco

subsidiary of the Aluminum Corporation of China which clearly

defines each partys long term surface rights in the area of the

Morococha mine The primary focus of the agreement is on

the lands and concessions around the Morococha mine and

MCPs Toromocho copper project MCP requires certain lands

and concessions in order to proceed with the development of

Toromocho including the surface lands within the planned open

pit mining area of the Toromocho project While Argentum does

not own this land much of the Morococha mine infrastructure

and facilities are located on this ground

Under the terms of the agreement Argentum will relocate the

core Morococha facilities over year period and transfer certain

mineral concessions and access rights to MCP In exchange

Argentum will receive package of surface rights easements and

other rights that are sufficient to relocate the facilities and to

continue uninterrupted operations Lastly Argentum will receive

periodic cash payments from MCP totaling $40.0 million of which

to December 31 2013 the Company received $23.8 million 2012

$13.8 million which has been recognized as other income For

the year ended December 31 2013 the Company capitalized nil

in interest related to the advances on capital expenditures 2012

-$1.2 million

Dolores Mine Mexico

On March 30 2012 the Company acquired all of the issued and

outstanding common shares of Minefinders Minefinders primary

mining property is its 100% owned Dolores gold and silver mine

located in Chihuahua Mexico Refer to Note for further details

about the acquisition

During the year ended December 31 2013 the Company

capitalized $86.6 million of mineral property plant and equipment

2012 $57.1 million which included pad construction additions

of $27.2 million 2012- $15.0 million For the year ended

December 31 2013 the Company capitalized $1.6 million in

interest related to the capital expenditures 2012 $1.4 million at

capitalization rate of 10% 2012 10%

Huaron mine Peru

La Colorada mine Mexico

Dolores mine Mexico

Manantial Espejo mine Argentina

San Vicente mine Bolivia

Morococha mine Peru 202213 68220 133993 183907 51369 132538

Alamo Dorado mine Mexico 193035 143330 49705 184866 126028 58838

107002 52588 54414 93839 45030 48809

117751 46306

3975

71445

20280Other 24735 4476 20259 24255

Total 1887476 846028 1041448 1729894 484225 1245669

Land and Exploration and Evaluation

Land 8513 8497

Navidad project Argentina 462400 462400

Minefinders exploration projects Mexico 317117 434677

Morococha Peru 10432 15474

Other
30768 38535

Total non-producing properties 829230 959583

Total mineral properties plant and equipment 1870678 2205252
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At June 30 2013 it was determined that the estimated realizable

value of the Dolores mine was below its carrying value and an

impairment charge of $187.5 million net of tax of $1.1 million

was recorded which included $184.7 million of goodwill Refer to

Note 12 for further details

At December 31 2013 it was determined that the estimated

realizable value of the Dolores mine was below its carrying value

and further impairment charge of $218.1 million net of tax of

$118.7 million was recorded Refer to Note 12 for further details

12 IMPAIRMENT OF NON
CURRENT ASSETS AND GOODWILL
Non-current assets are tested for impairment when events or

changes in circumstance indicate that the carrying amount may

not be recoverable The Company performs an impairment

test for goodwill at each financial year end and when events

or changes in circumstances indicate that the related carrying

value may not be recoverable The Company considers use of

its internal discounted cash flow economic models as proxy

for the calculation of fair value less cost to sell given willing

market participant would use such models in establishing value

for the properties The Company considered impairment at the

cash generating unit CGU level which is considered to be an

individual mine or development property

Imoairment at June 30 2013

As at June 30 2013 the Company determined there were several

indicators of potential impairment of its producing mineral

properties which included the sharp decline in silver and gold

metal prices during the quarter ended June 30 2013 and as well

as other regulatory changes introduced in Mexico and Argentina

Based on the Companys assessment at June 30 2013 of potential

impairments with respect to its mineral properties the Company

concluded that impairment charges were required as at June 30

2013 for the Dolores mine

The Company used for key assumptions then-current information

on operating and capital costs long term silver price of $25 per

ounce long term gold price of $1350 per ounce range of

possible outcomes related to proposed Mexican royalt and

risk adjusted project specific discount rate of 6% Additionally

and consistent with prior periods the Company used analysts

consensus pricing for the first four years of its economic modeling

for impairment purposes and as such these near metal prices

had deteriorated considerably since year end 2012 At June 30

2013 the Company determined that the carrying value related

to the Dolores mine of approximately $1061 million including

goodwill and net of associated deferred tax liabilities was greater

than its recoverable amount of $872.5 million Based on the

above assessment at June 30 2013 the Company recorded an

impairment charge related to the Dolores mine of $187.5 million

net of tax $188.6 million before tax comprised of goodwill of

$184.7 million and non-current assets of $3.9 million

Furthermore at June 30 2013 the Company reclassified certain

exploration assets from assets held for sale to exploration and

evaluation property which required assessment of their carrying

amount based on fair value less costs to sell These assets were

classified as held for sale in the first quarter of 2013 when the

Company entered into an agreement to potentially dispose of

them and recorded an impairment charge of $18.3 million At

June 30 2013 it was determined that the estimated recoverable

value of the non-current assets on fair value less costs to sell

basis required an impairment recovery of $3.4 million and brought

the impairment charge of approximately $14.9 million as at June

30 2013 for these properties

Impairment at December 31 2013

Due to the sustained decrease in metal prices that began during

the second quarter of 2013 and carried on through the year

during the fourth quarter of 2013 the Company lowered the silver

and gold prices used in its long term reserve prices and updated

the metal prices used in the near-term and mid-term periods up
to 2017 in its life of mine cash flow models and concluded that

these changes constituted further indication of impairment

indicator in the fourth quarter

Based on the Companys assessment at December 31 2013 of

potential impairments with respect to its mineral properties

the Company concluded that further impairment charges were

required for the Dolores mine from those recorded at June 30

2013

The Companys key assumptions included the most current

information on operating and capital costs long term silver price

of $22 per ounce long term gold price of $1300 per ounce the

effects of the Mexican tax reforms that were substantively enacted

in the fourth quarter and risk adjusted project specific discount

rate of 6% The Company used median of analysts consensus

pricing for the first four years of its economic modeling for

impairment purposes which had further deteriorated since June

30 2013 At December 31 2013 the Company determined that

the carrying value related to the Dolores mine of approximately

$723.1 million net of associated deferred tax liabilities was

greater than its recoverable amount of $505.1 million Based

on the above assessment at December 31 2013 the Company

recorded further charge related to the Dolores mine of $218.1

million net of tax $336.8 million before tax comprised of mineral

property of $194.6 million exploration and evaluation property of

$116.1 million and property plant and equipment assets of $26.1

million

The total impairment charge for the year ended December 31

2013 is $420.4 million net of tax of $119.8 million before tax

$540.2 million The total impairment charge for the year ended

December 31 2012 associated with the Navidad project was

$100.0 million net of tax of $nil

Impairment at December 31 2012

The 2012 impairment charge of $100.0 million with nil tax effect

related to the Navidad project in Argentina The impairment was

result of the deterioration in economic conditions in Argentina

including rampant inflation increasing capital and operating costs

government imposed capital restrictions and the nationalization

of certain petroleum assets in 2012 which resulted in higher

discount rates used in the companys impairment testing for this

project The Company used for key assumptions information

on operating and capital costs long term silver price of $25

per ounce along with long term forecast base metal prices

probability weighted range of possible outcomes related to

the timing of the start of construction taxation regulatory and

economic risks including range of possible future exchange

rates between the USO and the Argentine peso ARG ranging

from 4.5 to 10.5 ARS/USD and risk adjusted project specific

discount rate of 12.5% It was determined that the estimated
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recoverable value of the Navidad project on FVLCFS basis was

below its carrying value and as resu tan impairment charge of

$100.0 million was recorded at December 31 2012 The Company

concluded that as at December 31 2013 there was no further

impairment or reversal of impair ment to be recorded

Key essumptions and sensitivity

The metal prices used to calculate the recoverable amounts at

December 31 2013 are based on analysts consensus prices and

the Companys long term reserve prices and are summarized in

the following table

Commodity Pflce% 2014 2017 average Long term

Silver Price 5/on $22.43 $22.00

bold Price 5/os 513311 $1300

Zinc Price $/DMT $2184 $1850

Lead Prite 5/ElM $2205 53950

Metsrl prices used at June 30 2033

Commodity Prices 2013d 016 average Long term

tiler Price 5/on $26.7L $25.00

Sold Price 5/on $1608 $lo3tO

Zinc Price $/DMT $2236 $1150

Lear Price 5/PM $2221 $1850

Metal prices used at December 31 2012

ernmodlfy Prices 20133O16 average Long term

Silver Price $/oi $30.38 $25.00

Sold Price $/oz $1641 $3350

Zinc Price S/DMa 32289 $1750

lead Price $/DMT $2213 $1850

lIce Company assesses impairment at tie cashgenerating

unit vel which is considered to be individual mine sites or

development properties The discount rates used to present

value the Companys life of mine cash flows are derived from the

Companys weighted average cost of capital which was calculated

as 8% for 2013 2012 8% with rates applied to the various

mines and projects ranging from 5.5% ton 12.5% depending on

the Companys assessment of country sk project risk and other

potertial risks specific to each CGU

The key assumptions in determining the recoverable value of

the Companys mineral properties are metal prices operating

and capital costs foreign exchange rates and discount rates At

December 31 2013 the Company perfermed sensitivity analysis

on all key assumptions that assumed negative 10% change for

each individual assumption while holdir the other assumptions

constint Under certain of such scenarios the carrying value

of the Companys mineral properties asrociated with the Alamo

Doraclo mine and the Manantial Espejo mine may exceed their

recoverable amount for the purposes of the impairment test

For the Alamo Dorado mine either of decrease in the silver price

of 2% decrease in the gold price of 8% an increase in operating

costs of 2% or an appreciation of the Mexican peso of 5% would

in isolation cause the estimated recoverable amount to be equal

to the carrying value of $57.7 million 2012$56 million At

December 31 2012 none of these factors if negatively affected

by 10% would have caused the carrying value to equal or exceed

the recoverable value

For the Manantial Espejo mine either of decrease in the silver

or gold price of 7% or an increase in operating costs of 4% would

in isolation cause the estimated recoverable amount to be equal

to the carrying value of $160.5 million 2012-.$1467 million At

December 31 2012 none of these factors if negatively affected

by 10% would have caused the carrying value to equal or exceed

the recoverable value

In the case of the Dolores mine the Navidad project and certain

norwcore exploration properties which all have had their carrying

values adjusted to fair value less cost to sell through impairment

charges modest decrease in any one key assumption would

reduce the recoverable amount below the carrying amount as

there is only thin margin between the carrying value and the

companys estimate of recoverable amount

Goodwill consists of

As at December 31 2011

Acquisition of Minefindems Note

As at December 31 2012

Impairment of La Boiw property 71241

Impairment of Dolores mine 184688

As at December 31 2013 /134

13 OTHER ASSETS
Other assets consist of

Investments in Associates 1450

Reclamation bonds

Lease receivable 788

Other assets 36

__________
8014 7291

Represents prcprcrd deposit relate Ito th Cm Ii Proj tir

54anartjcl nice

198946

198946

Long term prepaid expense 5648 5239

92

1450

602
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33 /30
Note

Quiruvuka duspos tior

388
Orko duspos tion

966
harged redited to earnings

Closure end Decommissioning Cost Provision

The total inflated and undiscounted amount of cstimated

cash flows equired to settle the Companys closure and

decommissioning provision is $107 milhon 2012 $83 million

which has been discounted using discount rates between 4%

and 11% Rev sions made to the reclamation obligations in 2013

were primaiily result of increased site disturbance at the mines

as well as revisions to the estimate bascd on per odic reviews of

closure plan actual exoenditures incurred and concurrent closure

activities omplsted These obligations will be funded fro ii

operating cast flows reclamation deposits and cash on ha id

The accretion expense charged to 2014 earn ngs as finance

expense was $3 million compared to $3 mullion in 2012

Reclamation expenditures during the current year weie $0

million compared to $0 million in 2012

11 AC COUNTS PAYABLE AND
ACCRUED LIABR ITIES

\ccou pay ble arid crucd abilitie consist of

December II 2013

tic at ou ts payable arid 8419

act iii ated accrua

55773

Revisions in stimates and

649

yi
id rs latea lx reSts 9463

tax ryable

Advance in in nt 810

644

5664

18 78

272

4900 9064

161 21329

2/2

348

136149

Olay

rw IC

new provisions

whangn ow or pivisions

charged ii the year 895

Accretion expensc Note 23 2999

December 31 2012 Recast 46b40

Revi ions in estimates and

obligations incLirred 6189

chargs redutecl to

earnings

new pr naisions

unused smourits reversed

exchamie gains cn ovisions

charged iii
the year 412

Act retio expe is Note 23 3030

Oeccmbei 33i013 41469

Matunty anaysm of tota prornskrn8

825 1825

13 13

T854 1749

2999

7043 52684

789

1238 12313

166 166

341 341

254 1666

3030

5520 46989
3401

Nw loan iabk 20095

ia S/rius

diii Ti 00 3lu

ii
ii ci ri Is ho

ir iii ii add tin al loan ivi

lit 01 tai uruiul tive

hrgIicpetotJ5 4i xliii II ion utiruesrurieyeai mm
in ci vii air

ic lbs ii bna air

Non current 43817 45661

46989 52683
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As at Otcemb 31 2013 rd 012

Tabula storrnts thousands of otars cxc pt urrrbe of rptrons an war ants and per shara counts

Litfqatfon ProvIsion

The litigation provision consists of amounts accrued for labour

claims at several of the Companys mine operations The balance

of $5.5 million at December 31 2013 2012 $70 million

represents the Companys best estimate for all known and

anticipated future obligations related to the above claims The

amount and timing of any expected payments are uncertain as

their determination is outside the control of the Company

17 FINANCE LEASE OBLIGATIONS

10154 36850

Lets than year

years 2585

years 1832

years 1639

yea 5811

10856 39703

Less future finance charges 702

Present value of minimum

lease payments 10154

As part of the Minefinders acquisition and pursuant to the

First Supplemental Indenture Agreement the Company issued

replacement unsecured convertible senior notes with an

aggregate principal amount of $36.2 million the Notes Until

such time as the earlier of December 15 2015 and the date the

Notes are converted each Note shall bear interest at 45% payable

semi-annually on June 15 and December 15 of each year The

principal outstanding on the Notes is due on December 15 2015
if any Notes are still outstanding at that time The Notes are

convertible into combination of cash and Pan American shares

If Note holder elects to convert all or part of its principal

amounts of Notes on or prior to November 2015 for each

$1000 principal amount of converted Notes such Notes shall be

converted at the discretion of Pan American into

96670 Preferred Shares the Conversion Rate upon

conversion by holder of Notes the Company may issue Class

voting participating 65% cumulative convertible preferred shares

in the capital of Minefinders the Preferred Shares

an amount of cash equal to the Conversion Rate multiplied

by CAD$1.84 plus the market value of 55 of Pan American

common share the Market Value of the Consideration at the

time of such conversion or

combination of Preferred Shares and cash having combined

value equal to the Cash Equivalent Conversion Consideration

which is the amount of cash equal to the Conversion Rate

multiplied by the Market Value of the Consideration at the time of

8913
such conversion

On November 2015 each holder of Preferred Shares shall

5811 receive in exchange for each Preferred Share at the discretion of

Pan American

CAD$184 and 055 of Pan American common shares

3292 an amount of cash equal to the Market Value of the

Consideration or

combination of Pan American Shares and cash having

combined value equal to the Market Value of the Consideration

at November 2015

if the Notehoider elects to convert all or part of the principal

amount of Notes held by such Noteholder after November

2015 for each $1000 principal amount of converted Notes the

Notes shall be converted at the option of Pan American into

18 LONG TERM DEBT

Conversion feature on the

convertible notes

1419 9746

Total long-term debt 34302 41134

Lease obligationsr

Equ pment and constru000n

advances1

10154 36411

439

Maturity analysis of finance leases

Currant

Non Current 5717 24377

10154 36850

On April 19 2012 the Company entered into Second

Supplemental Indenture Agreement the Agreement as part

of the Minefinders acquisition The terms of the Agreement

4437 12413
stipulate the following

Rejresents equip nent lease obligaoons stseveral of th Coinparrys

subsic aries ecosc rlratrorr of the cc tal futtr re minimum lease paynrrrrts

at Dr ember to herr present value is presented rrr tire table below

Rearescrrts forrdrrrg rrrangcrnent the cmpa ry
errtered into wherrby

II recervr advances oward soore oft mm projrct capital expenditures attire

Mororocha rrrrrr These advanc arc subject to an annrjsmlized interest

rate 2% arid are paid monthly until tIre ompletron of Ore construction

at wfrr -h print these advance payisren are converted into lersrnrg

srrar eerrrrrrc frc $04 rrrrllron rerrrain og balrnre as at Decerrrber 2012

rverted rrto leasrrrh ar angeri cut it fre hrst quarter of 2013

4800 13320

5848

36411
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rio aqual to the Cast Equivalent Conversion

drar hit 184 sb 055 Pan Amncan shares

numplie cy tn avenge or me dacly olume weigliccd averaCe

ice VWAP of an Ame share for the 10 consecutive

Pa Am mean trading co omoncing on he first Pan American

trad ng day afto th date of tIc Co rmanys notice of electron to

dr liv thc orve si so aider tion cash or combination of

dci har and cash if Not holder has not given notice

of rede tao ou suan to the cia of at Agreement or

so eombmatioi of Preferred Shares and cash having

cc iabir cct cal as eqs al tc the ash Equivalent Conversion

Cons der itior For urp cses of his clause ach Prefe red Share

sI all be deemed to aye ilue equa to the rket Valuc of

onsidoratac sri cci of unversion arid icrccnudiacely

ther ipon east prcferr shar so su shall be automatica ly

exchange ora on ideration JnitofCAti$1 84 plus he market

aalue of far Ams ornmor share

atert and pr pal amou ts ef the Notes are cia rifled

as debt habilite and the co ave sion opti in is class fled as

de rivativc liability as debt Ii ib lity is rr asured at amortized

As resul th earrymg clue of thc bt hability lower

tt an th aggregate lue he Notes The unwinding of

liacou at at etc inter st expense over Ihe terms of

notes using an effective interest rite Foi the year ended

01 $1 mil ccc apr alized iriial

crop ty ant inst uip ac 112011 iii lion The

Cc many tIe rip at to pay all or part of the liability associated

th he Corapanys out mdi convcrtble notes in cash on

tF orve scan date Icr rd
ig

the co ccc rsion feature on the

onvertabl no es is cons er an embedded der vative and re

ra ccl at fair value etch epnrting period he fair value of the

cci aioi feature of th onvertibbe aotes is dete mined using

add tha includes th vs Ia ility and price of the Companys

ir on sharcs and redit sp cad structur with refere cci

to th cariespo iding far valu of the debt component of the

nver lb lots Assumot on used tie fair value calculataor

at tF mboddd di rivatcv coriponent it December 31 2013

rc expected ato price vol tility of 41 1% expi cted life of

yes and xpi ted dividend yield of IV

Turn the
yi

ai ended Di ember 31 the Co capary recorded

mi ion gain tie revatuatro of the embedded derivative

on th convertible rc tcs 2012 $9 million

cc ic
rn ar dsrlyirc the ntract at he date St umpa ay

ccc cc obigatccn as put of ccc Arc clcnc as toOt on Subsiqu tb

dci cc oua tic the aterpar to ths epic mc nt debenture rrted

cc lv strca iii alternative nil or bc th ci ernat cc being

c4 if
an th ji lit cc scar he ccc cccv

ace cc ass the fa aahcc caics is cc tic cc unction the

alt iv dci ci ccc dct

20 SHARE CAPITAL AND
EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION PLANS

The Company has comprehensive stock option and

compensation share plan for its employees directors and officers

the Compensation Plan The Compensation Plan provides for

the issuance of common shares and stock options as incentives

The maximum number of stares whic
aaay

be issued pursuant to

options granted or bonus shares issued under the Compensation

Plan may be equal to but will riot exceed 61161410 shares The

exercise price of each option shall be the weighted average

trading price cit the Companys stock far the five trading days prior

to the award date The options can he granted for maximum

term of 10 ye irs with vesting provisions determined by tt

Companys Board of Directors Subject to certain exceptions any

modifications to the Compensation Plan require shareholders

approval

The Board has developed long terre incentive plan triP

guidelines which provide annual compensation to the senior

maccagers of the Company based on the long term performance of

both the Company and the individuals that participate in the
plan

The LTIP consists of an animal grant of options to buy shares of

tie Co pa iy arid grant of the Companys nommon shares with

two year no trading legend The or ions are combination office

year options which vest evenly in three annual instalments arid

seven year options which vest eve ily in two annual instalments

Options and common shares granted under the LI plan ire

based on employee salary levels individual perfoimance and their

future potential In addition the restricted share units RSUs
plan described below is part of the ClIP plan The Compensation

Committee oversees the LTI on heha1f of tha Board of Directors

The LOP p1 in guidelinea can be modified or suspended at the

discretion of the Board of Director Additionally from time to

ti rio the Corr pany issues replacement awards and warrants

related to acquisitions

As part of the Minefinders acquisition each Minefmnders option

holder is provided replacement option that is exercisable to

purchas Pan Anaericari shares The number of Pan American

shares the replacement option holder is entitled to purchase

equals 6230 multiplied by the number of Minsfiriders shares

subject to the Minefinders Option rounded down to the iaearest

whole number ol Pan American shares The exercise priec per

Pan Ameiican share equals the exeicise price per Minefinders

share otherwise purchasable pursuant to thi cument Minefinders

Option divided by 6235 rounded up to the nearest whole cent

ito abe Pi lOt es coo the Conversion gate

19 OTHER LONC TERM LIABILITIES

80

307/

26045 232511

ctii ii orca

ci ccti dub cc cc aa Iciw cc ids ccc cc

Ic cc it ci it
ii ccc car Ia Sri irr

ccc tc cc cc
ci

cc
fran tc idicj Pr gar hug

cc lc Ic cc cc rube ccci

pc cc cc

cr
ci ccii

On March 30 2012 the Company issued /60705 replacement
aleS

awards with fair value of $18 million Replacement awards

were valued using the Black Scholes option pricing model

Assumptao is used were dividend yield of Ci 3% cxpectei

volatili if 40.75% risk free interest rate of 093% and expected

Ife ofO2S to 35 years
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Notes to the Cot sohdated Financial Statements

As at Decernboi 31 1013 and 2012

labulur amounts re thousands of ooflars ewept nurnbcr of options aid warrants and per sham amounts

Transactions concerning stock options and share purchase warrants are summarized as follows in CAD

Fepired 90836

torfaited 683491

1319 35 00 289125

Exer tied

Expi ed 922965 25.19

Forfeited 202217 21.63 202277

35O0 9211975

ni ludcs 20 642 and 12 246 optior grins in Heu of rector fees during 2013 and 2012 respectiss

mc ghted sewage share price St thc date of ereicis it Denembei 31 2012 was A0$17 81

Long Term ncentive Man

Durirg the year ended December 31 2213 the Company awarded

94659 2012 49716 shares of common stock with two year

hold ig period and granted 326047 2012 243426 options

under this plan The Company used as its assumptions for

cacu ating the fair value risk free interest rate of 46% 2012

1.26% weighted average volatility of 47% using historical share

price 2012 38% expected lives rang ng from to 2012

to gears historical expected dividend yield of 3.6% and an

exercise price of AD$11.49 2012 CAD$18.53 per share The

weighted average fair value of each option was determined to be

CAD$3.38 2012 CAD$4.69

During the year end December 31 2013 nil common shares were

issued in connection with the exercise of options under the plan

December 31 2012 4424 common shares for proceeds of

$0.08 million

Replacement Awards

During the year ended December 31 2013 nil common shares

were issued 2012 284372 shares were issued

Share Option Man

The following table summarizes information concerning stock

options outstanding and options exercisable as at December

31 2013 The underlying option agreements are specified in

Canadian dollar amounts

For the year ended December 31 2013 the total employee stockbased compensation expense recognized in the income statement

was $7 million 2012 $41 million

SHARE PURCHASE WARRANTS

As part of the acquisition of Aquiline Resources Inc in 2009 the Company issued share purchase warrants The following table

summarizes information concerning the warrants outstanding and warrants exercisable as at December 31 2013 The underlying

optior agreements are specified in Canadian dollar amounts

Exercised

Gra ited 2016376 19.37 2016376

288796

As at December 31 2012

Grarrtedm

15.79

2841

1647

As at December 31 203.3

2196565 24.07 7814605 35.00 10011170

326047 11 57 326047

90836

1683491

1391370 2076 1814605

922965

31119 322.23

$2244 $25.19

47.31

550999 42.19 25.00 650999 25.00

$361234022 92342 4022

1397370 20.16 z3.9052 11

4022 92342

981 883
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Avirage Rernainir

ontractua life months

11 20

the ompany hare purchase warrants are classified and

accounted for as fi ianc al Ii bihty at fai value with changes

in va dude net ning Du ing the year ended

ccmber 2013 the wa denvative gain of S84 milk in

2012 pain of nIkon he foflowmg table provides detaf

the nov mc it tI shar ourchasc rrant liability betwc en

Oeccmb 31 2011 tid Dec iber 2013

40%

ci sok rirce otitrlrly 468%

cc ct rirtlrfe

If cony sion feature the convertible rote further discussed

Nc te 18 is conside rid an embedded derivarve and is dassified

and ccountcd for canci ii liability at fair value with changes

in for value includ earnings At ecember cii 2013 the

tctal un ihied der vativt gair attributable to both the warrants

ii onve ble ots was $1f mdli an 201 $242 million

Restricted Share Units

Average Exercise

Prce CAD$

2500

Under the companys RSU plan selected employees are granted

RSUs where each RSU has value equivalent to one Pan America

common share the RSU5 are sett ed in cash and vest in two

instalments the first 50% vest on the first anniversary date of the

grant and further 50% vest on the second anniversary date of

the grant Additional P505 are credited to reflect dividends paid

on Pan crnerican common sham uvvr the vEsting period

At Oecember 31 2013 the followirg P50s were outstanding

42 0% An additional element of the Company coripe isation structure

is retention program known as the Key Employee Long lerm

Contribution Plan the Contnbution Plan the Contribution

Plan was approved by the directors of tf ompany on June

2008 in response to heated labour market situation in the

mining sector and is intendod to reward certain key employees

of the Company over fixed tame period for remaining with

the Company May 15 2012 the directors the Company

approved the extension of the Key onployee Long Term

Contribution Plan the 2012 Cant bution Plan effective on

June 2012

The 2012 Contr bution Plan is two yea plan with percentage

of the retention bonus payable at the end 01 each year of the

program The 2012 Contribution Plan design consists of three

bonus levels thdt are commensurate with various levels of

responsibil ty and provides for specified annual payment for two

years start
rig

in June 2012 Each year the annual contribution

award will be paid in the form of ci her cash or shares of the

Company the minimum aggregate value that will be paid in

cash or issued in shares over the year period of the plan is $7.8

million As of Dccember 31 2013 $34 million remains to be

paid as described in NoteS No shares will he issued from the

treasury oc rsuant to the 2012 Contribution 5lan without the prior

ix irse CO Number Outstanding as

at Decewber 31 2013
40

43 00

Act ragr txercise Number Exercisable as

Price CAD$ December 31 2013

35 00 7814605

Compensation expense for P50s was $0 million in 2013 2012

23651 $0 08 million and is presented as componer of general and

administrat ye expenseWar its ecrrc cdii rn ear

Mark to ci rkct arn or the mci cation va rita 15 056

rrrb It 01 8524

Wir arrts xccrc daring tire ar

Ma to rm rket tarn or thc rcva itiorr warr rrts 38/

Deccmbc 0L3 207

Cc rn icr uses th 81 holes oric rig model to determine

fair celtic of hc Can dian dollar dencimi iated warrants

su aptior used ar as follows

112 1704

rrr hdrvdendvrcci

094

As at Dote saber 31 2011

Granted

cirange ira value

As it Dccc saber 31 2012 12S 1109

Granted 53353 1662

Paid out 22709 497

Forferted 5808 67

Change rn valce 519

0051 As at December 31 2013 196102 2288

Key Employee Long Term Contribution Plan

10%

Iluoted rrr rket prr rod rd 1241 18 64
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Notc to thu Cot sohdated Financial St sternentS

As at Dcmbcs 31 21 md 012

tabular amounts are in thousands of 13 $lars ew.s pt number of options and warrants and per shar amounts

approval of the plan by the shareholders of the Company and

any applicable securities regulatory au horitres The Companys

Contribution Plan is classified and accounted for as financial

liability and as such this liability is marked-to-market with

changes in value included in net earnings During the year ended

December 31 2013 there was $0.3 million unrealized gain on

the mark to-market of the Contribution Plan The Company uses

the Black Scholes pricing model to determine the fair value of the

Canadian dollar denominated Contribution Plan Assumptions

used are as follows stock price $12.41 CAD exercise price

$17 91 CAD expected life in years 042 years annualized
volatility

47 62% expected dividend yield 4.029% risk free interest rate

1.0% exchange rate 1CADUSD 1.0051

ssued share capfta

The Company is authorized to issue 200000000 common shares

of no par value

Norma Course issuer BId

On August 26 2011 the Company received regulatory approval

for normal course issuer bid to purchase up to 5395540 of its

common shares during the one year period from September

2011 to August 31 2012 The Company completed the approved

normal course issuer bid program during the quarter ended

September 30 2012

On August 29 2012 the Company rece ved regulatory approval

for second normal course issuer bid to purchase up to 7607277

of its common shares during the one ynar period from September

2W to September 2013

On November 28 2013 the Company received regulatory

approval for third normal course issuer bid to purchase up to

7.570 535 of its common shares during the one year period from

December 2013 to December 2014

Durin3 the year ended December 31 2013 the Company

purchased and cancelled 415000 shares 2012 2411240

shares for total consideration of $6.7 million allocated between

retained earnings $0.4 million arid share capital $6.3 million

2012 $41 million $4.9 million and $36.8 million respectively

DMdrmnds

On Fearuary 20 2013 the Company declared dividends payable

of $0 125 per common share payable to holders of record of its

common shares as of the close of business day on March 2013

On May 13 2013 the Company declared quarterly dividend of

$0125 per commcin share paid to holders of record of its common

shares as of the close of business on May 24 2013

On August 14 2013 the Company declared quarterly dividend

of $0 L25 per common share paid to holders of record of its

common shares as of the close of business on August 26 2013

On November 13 2013 the Company declared quarterly

divideid of $0125 per common share paid to holders of record

of its common shares as of the close oft usiness on November 25

2013

On February 19 2014 the Company declared dividends payable

of $0125 per common share payable to holders of record of its

common shares as of the close of business day on March 2014

These dividends were declared subsequent to the year end and

have not been recognized as distributions to owners during the

period presented

21 PRODUCTION COSTS
Production costs are comprised of the following

Consumption of raw materials and

consumables 214638 175503

Employee compensation and

benefits expense Note 22 152417

Contractors and outside services 89564

i.itilitles 22781

Other expenses 58124

Changes in inventories 6811 187001

530613 485163

includes Net reslizabls value tharge $13 millmo 2012 Soil

22 EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION
AND BENEFIT EXPENSES

wages salaries and bonuses 175112 181437

Share based payments 2173 3443

lotal employee compensation and

benefit expenses 177285

cess Expensed within General and

Administrative expenses

Less Expensed Exploration

expenses

Less Capitalized in inventory

Employee compensation arid

benefits expenses included in

production costs

23 INTEREST AND FINANCE
EXPENSE

Interest expense 6664 1542

Finance fees 583 313/

Accretion of Reclamation expense

Note 16 3030 2999

10277 1678

149082

105210

24512

49556

184880

14712 18115

5171 8847

4985 8836

152417 149082
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21 EARNINGS PFR SHARE BASiC AND DILUTED

fIt oft Ii icc 51 tIm

it cC 11 nOts

1futc

445851

8327 1929 9103 1452

454178 153430 296 69098 141442 049

iCy
clcfmrs oft it

viui adius icy of opti is

wmra lii it rosd

m. is

id iu is cnl Is ists

Shame based corn eisalmor ssued to

poyec and director

ash itbanks 182193 323008

Short tar ii money markets /ME 21200

ash md cash equmvslents 249937 346208

26 SEGMENTED INFORMATION

All of the Companys operations are within me mining secto0

conducted through operations in six countries Due to geographic

and political diversity the Company mining operations are

decentralized in nature wheieby Mine Gene al Managerl are

respons ble for achieving specified business res lts within

framework of global policies arid standards Couitry corporate

19642 othces provide support infrastructure to the mines in addressing

1283 local and country issues including linancial human resources

and exploration support The Company has separate budgeting

27462 process and measures the results of operations and exploration

activities irdepcndently Operating results of operating segments

are reviewed by the Companys operating decision maker to make

002 decisions about resources to be allocated to the segments and

sess thei performance The Corporat office provides support

to the mining and exploration activities with respect to onancial

human mesources and techn cal support Ma or products are

1088 104
silvo gold zinc lead and copper pioduced from mines located

in Mexico Peru Argentina and Bolivia Significant information

10

relating to the Companys reportable operating segments is

surr marized in the table below

loss nmngst 445851

151501 94 /8 201 14i883 056

107

ste hall dilutive curhe excluded in he diluted earnings

oc share calculatior ar the twelve onth nded December 31

013 921 out of is ney ootic ns and warrants 2012

25 SUPPLEMLNIAl CASH FLOW
INFORMATION

the fcml owing lath un me an lb cI anig in opt rating working

tal tern and si1nifi ant non ca items

11 045

counts iyabe 10 ccrimed

bilitms 4295

coisi 1659

163

placi wa ds ssueci

Vimnefi lots tiom

St out for xpc turns

asso ate sIt
tsp acem m5rmt

699

1/65

3331 11 538
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Notis to the oncoidated Hnancia Statements

As at December /1 2011 ard 2012

labuar amounts are thousands ol .S cotar cx eps rur bcr of urtions and wanants and per share amounts

Twve Mantha ended 0ecmber 31 2013

MexIco Agendas Bolivia

Alamo Mananilal sa
La Colorada Namdad

Dorado Espejo Vicente

Peru

Huaron Morocod
92887 82/SO

11175 18916

936 12

487

722 1t3c4

4C63 14/7

48 561

Iteve iue from euternal

ututrreers

Oeprmiation arid

amortIzation

Explnratxlii and project

deve opmeet

Acqu sitton costs

Intee st InSome

interest and financing

expenses

ta4t foss on

dlspoxitlori of aSsets

Gain in dei Natives

ForeIgn exchange

loss gain

Gain in commodity

and foreign currency

consult 35

ImpaIrment charge

Earnings loss before

ncoo taxes

lnosrrr 1ane eecoveryt

Net earnngs loss for

the period

aplts cups rsdlrase

Iota assets

1otf abilities

Dolores

364016 160129 1014318

37114 187611 7385

12/8 1296 325

-s

14 3711 142

1071 202 227

33 216 5011

150 565 t34

561 852 85

525342

540067 71164 28434

410/u 27/23 16119

494038 43941 11465

86641 11121 14574

973 078 112861 99523

260120 10689 25 6/0

149/18

32333

608

364

5194

194

-5

4519

-S

1379

lottt

2447

II 12110/

298544

131160

170

915

47

1616

5855

5922

246

470240

14/1

74036

9156

281

1/

31/6

18097

1452

12645

8165

9/001

40259

8011

1711

3245

33 687

129 134

45104

-S

1987

mc

7342

1719

18178

438211

Peru

Quiruvilca

laS4

340

146

313

Other

824

8135

906

1528

16 715

18 302

3053

148136

489

rl88

7383

013

405277

54 166

Other

730

1/544

lb 162

11179

3599

340

24 159

11

421

6086

3047

3041

1/86

480852

Total

824504

135 953

Is 4/5

rI 2146

102/7

34066

16115

E5 3463/

540228

423089

ax7a/

449846

399401

2767496

9/866/

9253 594

104409

46
1461

16 162

7678

9652

151/i

421

1110002

173917

78355J

1741461

3364625

67O4

Twela Months ended Ocember 312012 Recast

Mesuco Argentina

Alamo Mnantsal
Dolores La Colorada Navldad

Dorado Eapejo

1494011 201195 1l1360 1713143

23 098 16331 4761 27 785 296

2420 1806 1129 217 1046/

-5

659 21 11 1131

112 192 238 1466 46

10 33 51 289

1631 4314 1433 11 16 3049

.5

Huaron
IMorococha

Revenar fiom
10 7154 131 f9

external customer

Depre iation ad
8686 .11 117

amortzatsor

Exploration and

833 33
protec development

Acquisition costs

lnEeret income

nteiet and financing
739 675

eupen es

GaIn lass oi

285 /43
dispox Son of axtets

Gain derivatives

loreigneuthunge
17/ 49

floss vale

Gain os commodity

and to
eign currency

coritnai

Impair nerd rfsarge

Earnings loss before

18466 119
income tunes

Inmme tane

6929 124
recovery

Net ea sings loss for

11 543 7243
the period

apital expenditures 22 1146 194

Total asets 157476 210318

Iota Iibilittps 49 34/ 722/1

Bolivia

San

Vlcente

9x3411

11299

298

63

27623

84112

1912

3053

105298

34409

42

1433

318

1115

353

121 812 71 899

39791 34220

82015 57779

10936 21700

179883 123965

23597

402

15195

59038

1365463

300009

19 1021 109216

34312 1439

5788 107 777

15858 13292

301472 469 897

903/ 208425 83794 3.31823
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It Co aipar has ustomvr that account for 100c of the
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38934 5488
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502 Income tax expense differs from tt riounts that would result

1201/8
from applying the Canadian federal at provincial income tax

rates to cai nings before income taxes hese iferences result

from the items shown on the following table which result in

effective tax rates that vary considerably from the comparable

periods The main factors which have affected tie effective tax

rates for the year ended Decenber 31 013 and the comparable

period of 2012 were the non taxable portion of irealnzed

gains on he Companys derivatives foreign income tax rate

diffurentials additional rninng taxes paid and withholding

taxes paid on payments from foreign subsidiaries In addition

to the ion cash impairment charge it took on its Dolores assets

the Company reconded the deferred tax impact of the Mexican

corporate tax rate increase and new special mining duty which

were substantively enacted in 2013 the Company expects that

these and other factors wiff continue to cause volatility in effective

Loss info ire before taxes 429089
1512

Statutory tax rate

cQr3 Income tax recovery expense

based err above rates

Increase decrease due to

Non dedurnble urxoenses 5198

Charrge in net deferred tax

ssets riot erogni ed 5145

Norr taxable unrealized

gain on denuvahve financial

xrxtruments warrants and

convertible notes 4304

rore en fix rat diffenen xc 22164

Effect of other taxes paid

mining rind withholding 14851

harige ri net deferred tax

assets riot recognized fo

exploratic expenses 2042

Non deduchble foreign

exchange giin loss

mpai rnrnt changes

ripact
of xican tax ceforrri 86825

193 323

16757 95562

Effectivo tax rate 91% 54.95%

hr en ecast Si Ii 5tH ur cc

Afliti

cc coriccnni ratc

68094

As of April 2013 the applicable income tax rate in Canada was

inc.roased from 25 00% to 25.75% The charge in tax rate has no

income tax in pact because the deductible temporary differences

500928 554813 in Canada are not recognized

opp or ttrrt 92 881 181101

otcd 824504 928594

2101 HER INCOME AND EXPENSES
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tax rates in the future
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Nots to the or su idatsd titian ltd Statements

As at Dec mber 31 aOlda d2011

Tabular aounts are in thousands dellars ax apt number of optiurs and war rants and per shar amounts

Net deferred assets liabilities

beg timing of year

Deferred tax liability resulting

from Minefinders acquisition

NoteS

Recognized in net loss earnings

in yEar

Deferred tax assets derecognized

for ivestment sold

Other 97 92

Net Jeferred assets liabilities

end of year 185782 324813

Deferred tax assets 165 1358

Deferred tax liabilities 326171

Net leferred tax liability 324813

285947

285782

Closure and decommissioning costs

tax losses

Provision for doubtful debts and

nv mtory adjustments

Provision for employee vacation

sevranre retirement

Accounts payable and accrucd

liabilities

Trade and other receivables

Mn eral properties plant and

equipment

Estimated sales provisions

Pretaids and othr current assets

Withholding tax obligations

Other temporary differences and

provisions

Net deferred tax asset liability

209 1220

285782 324813

Tax loss revenue in nature 117100 122186

Net tax loss capital in nature 10531 10531

Resource poo1s 22682 23500

Financing fees 1777 5833

Property plant and equipment 8684 12631

004
Closure and decommissioning costs 21948 22842

110
Exploration expenses 25495 22822

Vacation accruals 1078 998

2507 Other temporary differences 262 654

209557 226996
408

Deferred tax assets and liabilities

The iolowing is the analysis of the deferred tax assets liabilities

presznted in the consolidated financia statements

Included in the amounts above are the following deferred tax

assets liabilities resulting from the acquisition of Minefinders

Deferred tax assets liabilities arising from

Closure and decommissioning costs 623

324813 60749 Provisions for doubtful debts and

inventory adlustrnients 9396

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 1566
268076

Mineral properties plant and equipment 260761

38934 5488
Prepaids arid other current assets 114

Other temporary differences and

11384 provisions 22

Net deferred tax asset liability 268016

Unrecognized deductible temporary dfferences unused tax lasses

and unused tax credits

Deductible temporary differences unused tax losses and unused

tax credits for which no deferred tax assets have been recognized

are attributable to the following

Components of deferred tax assets and liabilities

The deferred tax assets liabilities are comprised of the various

temporary differences as detailed below

from

6419

13965

16361

494

5405

10319

294347

10276

1609

8636

8612

334631

11351

1480

834

88 PAN AME 1CAN SILVER CORP



luded ir the ahoy rount tie losses which if not utilized will expire as foIlows

13542 SitS 1013 1162 33

Total tax ox as 96007 13542 2565 3688 1162 52 84 117100
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if ompar in
ry
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io law and icy il tions govorniny tie protection of the

ivirorimc it Ihcse laws and gulat ons aie continually changing

rid rr gen rally bcromi
ig

mon rr tnctive lie Company

icts ope as to orote .t th public health and

ci yiror mcii arid bcliev its operation in compliance

witi appl cit he laws and rrgu ions all rraterial resoects

001 any his is ado md xoects tn iaSe in the future

iditures to amply witt law and regulation but

cm iot cdi the II ai our tot such tu ure expenditures

ir utur mc amjtro ost arc hasc.d the xtent of

wc ik rcqu rcd and so ia cd coPs are dependcn on

qui erne its of levant rut iorite an the comoany

iv roirrental ole as ft ecember 12013 md Decmber

201 $33 iirlim nd 545 milli ir espectiv ly re

ac ed or red lion mts lating to mi oral properties See

alsc Pc

uome Taxes

oil pany ope ates ii our ierous ourtries around the world

ar iccord rgly sc bjec tc and pays inual income taxes

under the various income tax regimes in the countries in which it

operates Some of these tam regimes are donned by contractual

agreerncrnts with the local government and others are defined

by the general corporate inconie tar laws of the country The

Compary has historically filed and continurs to file all required

income tax eturns and to pay the taxes reasonably determined

to be du he tax rules and regulations in many countric.s are

highly complex and subject to interoretation From time to time

the Compa iy is subject to review of it hisi ore income tax filings

and in co inection with such reviews disputes can arise with the

taxing au horities over the initerpretatio or application of certain

rules to the Companys busi iess conducted Nithin the country

involved

In Decembi 2013 the Mexican Preside it passed bill that

in eases tire effective tax rate applicable to the Company

Mexican operatons The law is effective January 2014 and

increases the Future corporate income tax rate to 30% creates

10% withholding tax on dividends paid to non resident

sha eholders subject to any reduction by ar Income fax Treaty

and creates new Extraordinary Mining Dutg equal to 05% of

gross revenues from the sale of gold silver and olatinum In

addition the law requires taxpayers with mining concessions to

pay new 5% Special Mining Duty The Extraordinary Mining

Duty and Special Mining Duty will be tax deductible for income tax

purposes The Special Mining Duty will generally be applicable to

earnings before income tax depreciation depletion amortization

and inte rest In calculating tie Special Mining Duty there will be

deductions related to devebopmerrl type costs but exploration

and prospecting costs are dedectible when rcurrd

As result iF the law becoming en icted in the fourth quarter of

2013 the Company recognized ncn cash charge of $86.8 million

related to the deft rred tax impacts of the above tax charges

Finance Leasea

The present valuc of future iiinimum lease payments classified as

finance leases at December31 20i3 is 10.2 million 2012 $364

Ihion and the sd edule of timing of payments for this obligation

is found in Note 17

Law changes in Argentina

Government regulation in Argentir related to the economy

has increased substantially civer the past year In particular the

govirriment has intensified the use of price tort
ign exchange and

import controls in response to unfavourabhe domestic economic

trends During 201 an Argentmnean Ministry of Economy and

Public Financc resolution reduced the time within wh ch exporters

were requiied to repatriate net proceeds from export sales

from 180 days to 15 days after the date of export As result

of this change the Manantial Espejo operation temporarily

suspended dome shipments rwh Ic local management reviewed

how the new resolution would be app led th government In

response to petitions from umerous exporters for relief from

the new re olution on July 17 201 ft ie Miristr issued revised

resolution wh ch extended the 16 day limit to 120 days

.344
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Notc to Consolidated man al Stntements

at Dr ccmbr OH and 201

abi ar ouunts ae ri thou ends ters except number of options rod warrants and
per share amot.rnts

The Argentine government has also imposed restrictions on the

importation of goods and services and increased administrative

procedures required to import equipment materials and services

requ red for operations at Manantial In addition in May

2012 the government mandated that ilining companies establish

an internal function to be responsible for substituting Argentinian

produced goods and materials for imported goods and materials

Under this mandate the Company is rsquired to submit its plans

to import goods and materials for government review 120 days in

advance of the desired date of importation

The government of Argentina has also dghtened control over

capital flows and foreign exchange including informal restrictions

on dividend interest and service payrrents abroad and limitations

on the ability of individuals and busine.ses to convert Argentine

peso into United States dollars or oths hard currencies These

measures which are intended to curtail the outflow of hard

currency and protect Argentinas international currency reserves

may adversely affect the Companys ab lity to convert dividends

paid by current operations or revenues generated by future

operations into hard currency and to distribute those revenues

to offshore shareholders Maintaining perating revenues in

Argentine pesos could expose the Company to the risks of peso

devaluation and high domestic inflatior

In September 2013 the provincial government of Santa Cruz

Argentina passed amendments to its ta code that introduced

new mining property tax with rate of 1% to be charged annually

on published measured reserves which has the potential to

affect the Manantial Espejo mine as wed as other companies

operating in the province The new law came into effect on

July 2013 The Company has in place certain contracts that

could potentially affect or exempt the Company from having

this new tax applicable and as such is evaluating its options with

its adaisors The Company and other mining companies in the

province are also evaluating options that include challenging the

legality and constitutionality of the tax

On September 23 2013 Argentinas federal Income fax Statute

was amended to include 10% income tax withholding on

dividend distributions by Argentine corporations and branch
profit

distributions by foreign corporations

Labour law change In Mexico

In December 2012 the Mexican government introduced changes

to the Federal labour law which made certain amendments to the

law relating to the use of service companies and subcontractors

and the obligations with respect to employee benefits These

amen Iments may have an effect on the distribution of profits to

workers and this could result in additional financial obligations

to the Company At this time the Company is evaluating these

amendments in detail but currently believes that it continues

to be in compliance with the federal labour law and that these

amendments will not result in any new material obligations for the

Company Based on this assessment the Company did not accrue

any ariounts for the year ended December 31 2013 During

2014 the Company will continue to mor itor developments in

Mexico and to assess the potentia impact of these amendments

Political changes In Bolivia

In early 2009 new constitution was enacted in Bolivia that

further entrenches the governments ab lity to amend or enact

certain laws including those that may affect mining On May

2011 Bolivian President Evo Morales announced the formation

of multi-disciplinary committee to re-evaluate several pieces

of legislation including the mining law and this has caused some

concerns amongst foreign companies doing business in Bolivia

due to the governments policy objective of nationalizing parts

of the resource sector HoweveC Mr Morales made no reference

to reviewing or terminating agreements with private mining

companies Operations at San Vicente have continued to run

normally under Pan Americans administration and it is expected

that normal operations will continue status quo Pan American

will take every measure available to enforce its rights under

its agreement with COMIBOL but there is no guarantee that

governmental actions will not impact the San Vicente operation

and its
profitability Risks of doing business in Bolivia include being

subject to new higher taxes and mining royalties some of which

have already been proposed or threatened revision of contracts

and threatened expropriation of assets all of which could have

material adverse impact on the Companys operations or

profitability

Other Legal Matters

The Company is subject to various claims and legal proceedings

covering wide range of matters that arise in the ordinary course

of business activities many of them relating to rex-employees

Each of these matters is subject to various uncertainties and it is

possible that some of these matters may be resolved unfavorably

to the Company The Company establishes provisions for matters

that are probable and can be reasonably estimated included

within current liabilities and amounts are not considered

material

In assessing loss contingencies related to legal proceedings

that are pending against the Company or un asserted claims

that may result in such proceedings the Company arid its legal

counsel evaluate the perceived merits of any legal proceedings

or un-asserted claims as well as the perceived merits of the

amount of relief sought or expected to be sought In the opinion

of management there are no claims expected to have material

effect on the results of operations or financial condition of the

Company

Title Risk

Although the Company has taken steps to verify title to properties

in which it has an interest those procedures do not guarantee the

Companys title Property title may be subject to among other

things unregistered prior agreements or transfers and may be

affected by undetected defects

Royalty Agreements and Participation Agreements

The Company has various royalty agreements on certain mineral

properties entitling the counterparties to the agreements to

receive payments per terms as summarized below Royalty

liabilities incurred on acquisitions of properties are netted against

mineral property while royalties that become payable upon

production are expensed at the time of sale of the production

On September 22 2011 Perus Parliament approved law that

increased mining taxes to fund anti-poverty infrastructure projects

in the country effective October 2011 The law changed the

scheme for royalty payments so that mining companies that had

not signed legal stability agreements with the government had to

pay royalties of 1% to 12% on operating profit royalties under the

previous rules were 1% to 3% on net sales In addition to these

royalties such companies were subject to special tax at rate
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tori 24 43 fopcrating pro3 Companies that had

ciu fed gil stabil ty ag emerts under the Ceneral Mining

law will bc required pay special cc itribution of between

aid 129 of ooeratlng profits the change in thi royalty

au rewtix had natcr al imp cton the results ofthe

onp nysPeruv perrtons

oro cc of Cf ubut Argntina which is the location of the

Cc ipany Navid id ooerty here is provincial royalty of 3% of

Op ratmg orr Operating income is defined as revenue

us ur ductio sts rot including ing costs treatment

ransp rtatir harg Addrtionally tIe governor of the

pr vincc of Chubut Arge iti ia has subm tted to the provincial

Ic iO ur craft law which if fassed wif utroducc 8% net

tuin royal in addition to the 3% ovincial royalty

discussid above below to the Navidad project section

bclow or ft rth dot fs

th 2001 oil ue tr insaction thc Company issued

rep rm nt conver ihl dbc tur that allowd thc holder to
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Hoar rid Moroer cha rmnes

uric 2004 ru onh roproved bill that allows royalties

he aarged on rig projc These royalties are payable on

uvia ne productic at following progressive rates

0% fi companics ith al up to 60 million ii 0% for

aipa rio witf saks betwee $600 Ilion and $1200 llio

iii
13% for cor ipan es with sales greater than f120 million

II alty is ni sruelttr cturns yal the cost of which is
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Manantral Espejo mme
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So of smeltci rcturns derived from the production of

cc cr morn the prom rty
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Pr icc ar

San Vi nt mine

ía uai oto agrocriart onter cl irio with COMIPOI

Sc liv to mini ag company with respect to the development

cf the aan Vicente pioperty flit Company is obligated to pay

OMIE3OI partucipatior fee of 37 5% the Participation Fee

of tho uprrtions cash low Ir cc ful conarnercial production

of an Vii ati gan the Par cipatio 1c was reduced by 15%

ant thc
uipuiay

recov cdi nvestmcnt in the property

Pirtic itlo rio has verted bad to the orig nal

pi er ago lo year ended December 31 2013 he royalties

tc 301 arT ou utod to app oximately $31 million 2012

llior

oval uv cay iLHi MCSA or partne othe

LO cpa iy on the pro oct Ic oyalty isa 2% net smelta riturn

royalty as ocr th Ak cement payab only after the Co uupany

has recove ed its capital investment in the project and only when

the averzgo price of silver in given financial quarter is $1100 per

ounce or greater In December 2007 the Bolivian government

introduced new mining royalty that affect thc San Vicente

project ihe royalty is applied to gross mete value of sales before

smelting ad efining deductions arid the royalty percentage is

slidi ag scale depending on metal prices At current metal prices

the royalty 6% for silver metal ye ue and 5% for zinc and copper

metal value of sales The royalty is income tax deductible

Dolores mine

Producton from the Dolores mine us subject to underlying net

smelter return royalties comprised of 2% on gold and Iver

production and 25% on gold production These royalties are

payable to Royal Gold Inc and were effcctive in fu as of May

2009 on the conumencement of commenial production at

the Doicres mine br the year ended Drcrmber 31 2013 the

royilties to Royal Gold amounted to approximately $4 million

2012 $3.4 naillion

Navidad project

In late Ju ie 2012 the governor of the province of Chubut

submitted the provincial legislature draft law which if passed

would regulate all future oil and gas and mining activities in the

provincc The draft legislation incorporated the expected re

zoning of the province allowing for the development of Navidad

as an open pit mine However the draft legislation also introduced

series of ew regulations that would have greatly increased

provincial royaltis and mposecr the provinces direct participation

in all mining projects including Navidad

In October 012 the proposed bill was withdrawn for further

study however as result of uncertainty over the zoni ag

regulatory md tax laws which will ultimately apply the Company

has been forced to temporarily suspend prolect development

activities at Navidad As consequence of these events Pan

Americar recognized an impairment charge of $100.0 million

against the carrying value of the project for tIe year ended

Decerriber 31 2012

The Comoany remains committed to the development of

Navidad and to contributing to the positive economic and social

development of the province of Chubut .upon the adoption of

favorable logislativo framework

3ORELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended December 31 2013 company indirectly

owned by trust of which director of the ompany is

beneficiary was paid approximately $0.4 mi lion 2012 $0.3

million for consulting services Sinailarly at December 31 2013

an accrual was recorded for consulting services for nominal

amount 2012 $001 million These transaitroris are in the

normal course of operations and are measured at the exchange

amount which is the amount of coiasidrration established and

agreed to by the parties

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key

nuariagement personnel duriiag the year was as follows

Short term be aefits 8274 7288

Share-bawd oayments 1890 1857

10164 914
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